mellmk

Consolidated Income Statement

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
A BWA Interest income 6 8,146,214 7,901,337
B Interest expense 7 (7,528,253) (7,504,428)
HER B2 WA Net interest income 617,961 396,909
R A Insurance revenue 8 1,320,030 1,128,783
RERBRTFE X Insurance service expenses 12, 28 (3,299,828) (1,586,402)
Fris B BiREE LRI A SRR Net income from reinsurance
contracts held 10 352,922 278,699
REERIGEE Insurance service result (1,626,876) (178,920)
IR BRI E A Net finance expenses from insurance
WS F R contracts issued 9 (414,920) (1,700,443)
Fris B BIRR A 4/ Net finance income from reinsurance
B A F R contracts held 9 10,268 2,932
R B B 3% 2 R BE Insurance finance expenses, net (404,652) (1,697,511)
E A Other income 1 1,258,034 1,410,775
REFIRET Total operating loss (155,533) (68,747)
S Operating expenses 12 (362,166) (323,822)
REPREA R EEHE Operating loss before impairment (517,699) (392,569)
B Change in impairment allowances 14 (34,911) (19,987)
BRELRIES B Loss before taxation (552,610) (412,556)
TIE Taxation 15(a) 134,570 153,054
KREEEE Loss for the year (418,040) (259,502)

F2REAVEFAEMTE AR A MR —#D -

financial statements.

The notes on pages 232 to 409 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2024

2023
T
HK$'000
NEEEIE Loss for the year (418,040) (259,502)
Hip2mus (i) Other comprehensive income/(loss):
HEWEEF > BZER Items that are or may be reclassified
FIER : subsequently to profit or loss:
AP EZ L AEME2EIES  Debt instruments at fair value through
MEKTAE : other comprehensive income:
— N FEEHFHE — change in the fair value, net 15,213 8,698
— BB EEE) TR — change in the loss allowance, net 14 147 477
REM 2 ERERERRIR SR Cash flow hedges recognised in other
EplE comprehensive income:
— ANEEEFHE — change in the fair value, net (20,022) (120,247)
Fras 3R & 4UM B A A Finance income from insurance
contracts issued 9 339,509 68,493
FriFa BRR A AR B 752 Finance expenses from reinsurance
contract held 9 (124,574) (60,393)
IRIET I8 Deferred taxes 15(b) (52,454) (13,759)
AEFEEMEEKES(BE) Other comprehensive income/(I0ss)
HBR T IE for the year, net of tax 157,819 (116,731)
AEEZTHEBARE Total comprehensive loss for the year (260,221) (376,233)

F2REAVEFAEMTE AR A MR — 7D -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=Z=-MF+=A=+—AH
as at 31 December 2024

BE ASSETS
ReEREHES Cash and short-term funds 16 52,647,182 51,821,051
JE U FI| B K P 53X Interest and remittance receivables 17 3,221,379 3,370,378
TESRTAE Derivative financial instruments 18 664,618 828,542
BNRRER S A Loans with 100% guarantee
EREOER from the Government 19 82,782,698 97,362,356
BREAFE Loan portfolio, net:
— URFEE — fair value through profit or loss
FFAB 20(a) 2,596,858 1,907,045
— IREESHE AT IR — amortised cost 20(b) 10,117,117 10,230,417
‘?“#&i g Investment securities:
NEEZ{EETA — fair value through other
ﬁﬁﬁiﬁuﬁzx comprehensive income 21(a) 3,721,821 2,509,537
— URAFEZEEA — fair value through profit or loss
B 21(b) 9,774 9,870
— R SRR AN G| R — amortised cost 21(c) 15,105,470 14,573,985
HNE B ST TK Placements with the Exchange Fund 22 49,244,684 34,070,393
TN OE ~ &e Prepayments, deposits and other assets
K& E 24 385,987 1,582,032
BREANEE Reinsurance contract assets 28 1,081,689 761,043
EEEE Fixed assets 25 246,899 276,160
EEAT Total assets 221,826,176 219,302,809
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SEBKRREK Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2023
T4
HK$'000
aE LIABILITIES
FERTFILE Interest payable 26 3,342,324 3,684,415
FERTIRIE - FERTRISE Accounts payable, accrued expenses
REMEE and other liabilities 27 4,132,666 4,107,469
PTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments 18 1,740,649 2,825,522
HHARI A A S Current tax liabilities 15(b) 223,782 156,851
REANAG Insurance contract liabilities 28 24,850,887 19,288,197
BREBAHARE Reinsurance contract liabilities 28 195,009 87,648
BEEITERES Debt securities issued 29 148,299,636 161,718,497
EERTEA G Deferred tax liabilities 15(b) 174,488 307,254
BEHAEE Total liabilities 182,959,441 192,175,853
= EQUITY
oA AELRAR Capital and reserves attributable
Kt to the equity holder:
A&z Share capital 30 26,500,000 14,500,000
REB =T Retained profits 8,397,399 9,358,885
[2\ 22 15 A Contingency reserve 3,560,638 3,017,192
1R [ B TS Ak Insurance finance reserve 386,483 224,002
N ERE Fair value reserve 23,518 8,158
E S Hedging reserve (1,303) 18,719
FELSAE R Total equity 38,866,735 27,126,956
BERERAE Total liabilities and equity 221,826,176 219,302,809

BERER-E-_RERA-+TBHERERE  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 May
F1T o 2025.

REX YUE Wai Man, Eddie T E POU Hak Wan
BlFEF#H7TESE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #7728 F344%; Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

F2RNEBAVE FIH I RIRE MEHMEMN—E9 o The notes on pages 232 to 409 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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GARBSBE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2024

R& REBEHN ERAEE RREBEE ATERE HHRE B
Insurance
Share  Retained Contingency finance  Fair value Hedging

capital profits reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
TAT TAL TAL TAL TAL THL TATL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

MZZZ=F—F—B#%¢: Balance asat 1 January 2023 12,000,000 10,142,109 2493470 229,661 (1,017) 138966 25,003,189
TEEEE Loss for the year - (259,502) - - - - (259,502)
Hi2E(EE) M Other comprehensive (lossyincome - - - (5,69) 9,175 (120,247) (116,731)
rEERE(EE)/ Total comprehensive (0ss)/income

hsas for the year - (259,502) - (5,659) 9175 (120247)  (3762%9)
A2 (FzF30) Capital injection (Note 30) 2,500,000 - - = = - 2500000

R B FIE A 2 i EEARE Transfer of 50% or 75% of relevant

RERI50%575% premium eamed from retained
ZERGEE profits to contingency reserve - (701,073) 701,073 - - - -

AR E e E =R E % Release of contingency reserve

to retained profits - 177,351 (177,351) - - - -
RZB-ZF Balance as at 31 December 2023
TZA=tT-B&R 14,500,000 9,358,885 3,017,192 224,002 8,158 18719 27,126,956
TEEEE Loss for the year - (418,040) - - = - (418,040)
Ef2E%eE/(B8)  Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - - 162,481 15,360 (20022 157,819
REE2ENE/ Total comprehensive income/(loss)
(B8 % for the year - (418,040) - 162,481 15,360 (2002 (260221)
& (i 30) Capital injection (Note 30) 12,000,000 - = = - - 12000000

H{R A2 7 A\ 2 i B4R Transfer of 50% or 75% of relevant

{RBH50% 3 75% premium earned from retained
ZRREE profits to contingency reserve - (733,164) 733,164 - - - -

mERF ERDZRBER Release of contingency reserve
to retained profits - 189,718 (189,718) - - - -

R-E-MmE+=A Balance as at 31 December 2024
=T-HEH 26,500,000 8,397,399 3,560,638 386,483 23,518 (1,303) 38,866,735

E2RNEAVE Fsif s A A EHRERN—385 - The notes on pages 232 to 409 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2024

2023

TAT
HK$'000

REEBEIRERE cash flows from operating activities
AREEZRIAIERE Loss before taxation for the year (552,610) (412,556)
AT SIBEL TR Adjustments for:
A2 A Interest income 6 (8,146,214) (7,901,337)
FEZ Interest expense 7 7,528,253 7,504,428
fi% B A Dividend income 11 (289) (265)
R EINEE ST R K Income from placements with the
Exchange Fund 11 (1,374,291) (1,267,546)
AT EE T ABEREE Net loss/(gain) on investments at fair
BB () F 5 value through profit or loss 11 48 (238)
HERAFEE (LT AEMEE  Net gain on disposal of investments
ek H 1% B Uk 25 % 8 at FVOC| 11 (400)

BEREEN AT EEZE)FE Net change in fair value of loan portfolio 11 210,636 (51,532)

e Depreciation 12 89,748 82,158

BB EES) Change in impairment allowances 14 34,911 19,987

TR T AR EEE Change in fair value of financial

instruments (420,384) 114,773
SN Interest received 7,983,911 7,701,804
EENEEN Interest paid (7,345,111) (7,120,070)
KRR BER AGEEEALL  Cash flows used in operating activities
XBERAZRERE before changes in operating assets
and liabilities (1,991,792) (1,330,394)
JREIER A HEE =& A &9 Change in time deposits with original

TEHFEREE) maturity of more than three months (9,480,000) 3,948,172
JFEE 1 e 3k Change in remittance receivables 53,591 26,446
FERRE - e RHEMEEE Change in prepayments,

deposits and other assets 1,196,045 2,943,872
BTRET S B EROERE Change in loans with 100% guarantee

from the Government 14,579,658 (7,200,121)
ERHEeE Change in loan portfolio (820,232) (79,732)
FERIRIE « Rt & Change in accounts payable,

Hih g EE accrued expenses and other liabilities 43,352 (8,697,735)
HBR BRBRIZ IR G &Y Change in insurance contract liabilities,

BEEHE net of reinsurance 5,564,340 3,225,962
PE o, =58 Exchange differences 432,959 (364)
mREIEL (FR)2RE Cash generated from/(used in) operation 9,577,921 (7,163,894)
RE(B)FIE Taxation refunded/(paid) 16,281 (74,017)
B EE S (FR) 2 Net cash generated from/(used in)

&5 operating activities 9,594,202 (7,237,911)
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REZFBZHERE

Cash flows from investing activities

BEETEEE Purchase of fixed assets (38,734) (39,557)
BEUQAFEEFTA Purchase of investment securities
EMEEKGEHNESRE at fair value through other
comprehensive income 21(a) (1,512,090) (1,440,325)
BB IR A AR TIR 9B 58 & Purchase of investment securities
at amortised cost 21(c) (6,434,043) (3,945,347)
& RIEREHE A TS RIR Proceeds from sale and redemption
of investment securities 6,130,939 2,703,685
HNBE FL S 17 5K Placements with the Exchange Fund (13,800,000) (3,395,000)
HMNE B SR Withdrawals from the Exchange Fund - 3,449,524
B ETRERE Dividend received from listed
investments 289 265
B EEER RS F5E Net cash used in investing activities (15,653,639) (2,666,755)
RIS EE AR SR FE Net cash outflows before financing (6,059,437) (9,904,666)
METE2HERE Cash flows from financing activities
RITERETERIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 22,143,958 64,455,326
BEBITER Repayments of bank borrowings (22,143,958) (64,455,326)
BITIETS R %ﬁﬁ?%?k Proceeds from issue of debt securities 29 103,114,200 98,146,625
fEE B 3%171E %51 Redemption of debt securities issued 29 (117,658,640) (69,456,323)
HENRHEAS Principal elements of lease payments 25(b) (39,908) (35,182)
JEE TSR Proceeds from capital injection 30 12,000,000 2,500,000
REES (EH),ELE Net cash (used in)/generated from
2B e financing activities (2,584,348) 31,155,120
BeRERBELER (BL), Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
HEHNFEEE cash equivalents (8,643,785) 21,250,454
FUESRERESIEE Beginning cash and cash equivalents 51,128,198 29,883,316
ERHUEERZERELERZE Effect of exchange rates on cash and
cash equivalents (8,582) (5,572)
FRAESRERRELER Ending cash and cash equivalents 16 42,475,831 51,128,198

F2REAEFEMTE RERA MBI — B0

The notes on pages 232 to 409 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BERBBFERARD(FDH ) REMH
B (5 [ARE )R M HRE
RERBABEESHMASRHNEENS
HELER (REMEERNEREEHM R
HEA - FEGTEARRE)  BEQIR
By &t RAIEFBC(R AR R ERE -

AR MBHRRIZELKABIIRE - I
ERARFEIRNEHEEREREE
(BETESRTR)MEMELFE -

BrmITRRALSN - R ER A B TS 3RR P IE
ROEBERMFEIE  BUAE2HRY
PEFEMERMNER—% -

AN BB AMBRE LGS TR
=B ARBAETHREES MERE
EBREAASESARREFAQTTEL A
B o S RAREHEABEHENEIE - AW
REEFAEGEEVBERRBEEZNEE
B4 HRE -

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the Group) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a collective
term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASSs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and the methods of computation used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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2.

Summary of material accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

@)

New and amended standards effective on 1 January
2024

The Group has adopted the following amendments
to HKFRSs which are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the 2020 Amendments")
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and HKFRS 7

The nature and impact of the new and revised HKFRSs
that are applicable to the Group are described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
Since the Group has no sale and leaseback transaction
with variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate occurring from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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TR _TFERAERE RS
BESEARBIIERE AR
E - BIEMGEELEEMS R
AR RE RN BEFEEL
ERHERN - BEHNDETZ
BEEBITERLEEENEN
AIRE R E - BB ANE
BREEUNEESNERTA
B BEEEREENE
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ZEEFIABYER - ZEE
I A B G B SRR A
BEHNGE  BERNEH I E
EEEATE-

BRI ENFETRRBEY
BREERETROIEET RS
HEBRERFOREE - 1R
ERBEREHRINEE -
ZEETNRBERES EH
BRI ERE T RHERER
ERHHERNEE RN
BERRBUERRBANTZE -
MR ASE L EHEERE R
B Rt FERTHAEEN
FAVBERLEEMTZE -

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that
a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that
only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of
a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability
as current or non-current. Additional disclosures are
required for non-current liabilities that are subject to
the entity complying with future covenants within 12
months after the reporting period. The amendments
shall be applied retrospectively. The amendments
did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and
exposure to liquidity risk. As the Group does not have
supplier finance arrangements, the amendments did
not have any impact on the consolidated financial
information of the Group.

234  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



(b)

EEAEMRERNTENR
&3

RE B RN %L G B 7%
RPEATIIEEMERRE
BEVFE] RARIER] BB B 5
FEE - AEBBRNZELKE
R BB IRE ER £ RIRE
RZERIET (WER) -

BEMBHREED MBERLZHR

185 &S
EANBREED FAASHEMY
£19% WEAR : BB
EANKREEY SRIANHEE
ZORRERY EZE?
BlsEa
FIR2ET
EANEREED A% ELRENT
ZORREE  FABLEZREN
SHENE N BELERRA
ZIEFT
BAGIHER  BEARA
ENR2BT

BEMBREED BEYERSER
SHEANFE 1% BEUE
BE—FNE  HEENFE7IE-

BBHEREER
F9%  BEHE
HEERE 105
REBGHER
BT R

U RZZE-_RAF—A—A%kz#
B 4R B G FE B AE 3

2 RZZEZRF—A—B%z&
4R B G 2R A 3

g R_T—_tF—A—H=xZ%E
PR E, /& HAR £

4 AR TEE SR B AR A E - EA]
HRER AR

AHERERRNARENES
HBREEANESEHRT
St -

New standards and amendments issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these consolidated financial statements.
The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs, if
applicable, when they become effective.

HKFRS 18
HKFRS 19
Amendments to

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 21

Annual improvements
to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures®

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Lack of Exchangeability’

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2026

3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2027

0 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described

below.
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HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”. While a number of sections have
been brought forward from HKAS 1 with limited
changes, HKFRS 18 introduces new requirements for
presentation within the statement of profit or loss,
including specified totals and subtotals. Entities are
required to classify all income and expenses within
the statement of profit or loss into one of the five
categories: operating, investing, financing, income
taxes and discontinued operations, and to present
two new defined subtotals. It also requires disclosures
about management-defined performance measures in
a single note and introduces enhanced requirements
on the grouping (aggregation and disaggregation) and
the location of information in both the primary financial
statements and the notes. Some requirements
previously included in HKAS 1 are moved to HKAS
8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors”, which is renamed as HKAS 8
“Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements”. As a
consequence of the issuance of HKFRS 18, limited,
but widely applicable, amendments are made to HKAS
7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, HKAS 33 “Earnings Per
Share” and HKAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”. In
addition, there are minor consequential amendments
to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 18 and the consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027
with earlier application permitted. Retrospective
application is required. The Group is currently analysing
the new requirements and assessing the impact of
HKFRS 18 on the presentation and disclosure of the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply
reduced disclosure requirements while still applying
the recognition, measurement and presentation
requirements in other HKFRSs. To be eligible, at the end
of the reporting period, an entity must be a subsidiary
as defined in HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”, cannot have public accountability and
must have a parent (ultimate or intermediate) that
prepares consolidated financial statements available
for public use in compliance with HKFRSs. Earlier
application is permitted. As the Group has public
accountability, it is not eligible to elect to apply HKFRS
19.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
date on which a financial asset or financial liability
is derecognised and introduce an accounting policy
option to derecognise a financial liability that is settled
through an electronic payment system before the
settlement date if specified criteria are met. The
amendments clarify how to assess the contractual
cash flow characteristics of financial assets with
environmental, social and governance and other similar
contingent features. Moreover, the amendments
clarify the requirements for classifying financial
assets with non-recourse features and contractually
linked instruments. The amendments also include
additional disclosure requirements for investments in
equity instruments designated at FVOCI and financial
instruments with contingent features. The amendments
shall be applied retrospectively with an adjustment
to opening retained profits (or other component of
equity) at the initial application date. Prior periods are
not required to be restated and can only be restated
without the use of hindsight. Earlier application of
either all the amendments at the same time or only
the amendments related to the classification of
financial assets is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’'s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA.
However, the amendments are available for adoption
now. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
Statements.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity
shall assess whether a currency is exchangeable
into another currency and how it shall estimate a
spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of
financial statements to understand the impact of a
currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an
entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or to the cumulative
amount of translation differences accumulated in a
separate component of equity, where appropriate, at
the date of initial application. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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“Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards
— Volume 11" set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS
7 (and the accompanying Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7. Details of
the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”:
The amendments have updated certain wordings
in paragraph B38 of HKFRS 7 and paragraphs IG1,
IG14 and IG20B of the Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification or
achieving consistency with other paragraphs
in the standard and/or with the concepts and
terminology used in other standards. In addition,
the amendments clarify that the Guidance on
implementing HKFRS 7 does not necessarily
illustrate all the requirements in the referenced
paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor does it create
additional requirements. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

o HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”: The
amendments clarify that when a lessee has
determined that a lease liability has been
extinguished in accordance with HKFRS 9, the
lessee is required to apply paragraph 3.3.3 of
HKFRS 9 and recognise any resulting gain or 1oss
in profit or loss. In addition, the amendments
have updated certain wordings in paragraph
5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A of HKFRS 9 to
remove potential confusion. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”:
The amendments clarify that the relationship
described in paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is just
one example of various relationships that might
exist between the investor and other parties
acting as de facto agents of the investor, which
removes inconsistency with the requirement in
paragraph B73 of HKFRS 10. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”: The
amendments replace the term “cost method”
with “at cost” in paragraph 37 of HKAS 7
following the prior deletion of the definition of
“cost method”. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

2.2. Consolidation

240 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2024.

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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2.3.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interests in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest-bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider expected credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.
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2.4.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Other income

@)

(©

Fee income

Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Income from placements with the Exchange Fund

Changes in fair value of the placements with the
Exchange Fund classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” is recognised as income or
loss in the year in which they arise.
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2.5. Financial assets

@)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI, or through profit or loss); and

3 those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.

The Group has classified the placements with the
Exchange Fund as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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Subsequent measurement of the Group’s financial
assets are classified into the following categories,
depending on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset:

o amortised cost: assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of
a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

. fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI): assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OClI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other income/(l0ss).

. fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on investment that is subsequently measured at
FVPL and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in
the income statement within other income/(l0ss)
in the period in which it arises.
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2.6.

2.7.

() Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses (ECLS) associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.2
provides more details of how the ECLS is measured.

Equity securities and investment funds

Equity securities are measured at FVPL unless an election is
made to designate them at FVOCI upon initial recognition.

For equity securities at FVPL, changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The election of FVOCI is made upon initial recognition
on an instrument-by-instrument basis and once made is
irrevocable. Gains and losses on these equity securities are
recognised in OCI, which are not reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss, including when they are derecognised.

Investment funds are measured at FVPL. Changes in fair
value of these funds are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost. All the financial
liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
represent notes issued under the Medium Term Note (MTN)
Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss; or (i) financial
liabilities at amortised cost.
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2.8.

The notes classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of
the consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised
on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases
or sells the assets. Loan portfolio and receivables are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. When the Group neither transfers or retains
substantially all the risks and reward of ownership of a
financial asset and retains control of the transferred asset, it is
required to recognise the financial asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the financial asset. Under
the continuing involvement approach, the Group continues
to recognise part of the transferred asset. The Group also
recognises continuing involvement asset and liability, which
represents the extent of the Group's continuing exposure to
the risks and reward of the transferred asset.
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2.9.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and debt securities issued are recognised on the trade
date. Other financial liabilities are recognised when such
obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

The Group does not recognise an asset and a liability, when
the Group enters into an arrangement to pass through cash
flows from an asset and that arrangement meets specified
conditions. In these cases, the Group acts more as an agent
of the eventual recipients of the cash flows than as an owner
of the asset. Accordingly, to the extent that those conditions
are met the arrangement is treated as a transfer and
considered for derecognition even though the entity may
continue to collect cash flows from the asset. Conversely, to
the extent the conditions are not met, the entity acts more
as an owner of the asset with the result that the asset should
continue to be recognised.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subseqguently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
is negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.
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The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either: (i)
hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or
firm commitments (fair value hedge); or (i) hedges of highly
probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset
or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).
Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this
way provided certain criteria are met.

At the inception of the hedging, the Group documents the
economic relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, including whether changes in cash flows of
the hedging instruments are expected to offset changes in
the cash flows of hedged items. The Group documents its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
its hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items.
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Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in OCI and accumulated in
equity as hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
iS no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.
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2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.11.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (functional currency).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000)
which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.
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Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as FVOCI, a distinction is made between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount,
except impairment, are recognised in OCI.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at FVPL are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as FVOCI, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

shorter of the end of the useful life of
the right-of-use asset or the end of the

Right-of-use assets on
leased properties for

own Use lease term
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of the lease
Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease
Computer three years
Office equipment three years
Motor vehicle four years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company's
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.16.Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
OCl or directly in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.17.Employee benefits

(@)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
oCCurs.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee-administered
funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred.

254  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



2.18.749
@)

ERAERA

(0]

EREEE

AEBREERK B H
(AR EENHERA
H)EREAEEE - &
REEERKAR R
TEMREBEFTE -
ik o = 1 D= == R O
ERBEFLAR-ER
REEKNABREEHER
HEREBESE BEL
VN EERBERENFLR
Bzt 2 BE
SRR AE 7] 2 Y B
EEBE - -BIFEAEESR
BHEENEERAERE
DSHEEENHBE
BRIDERERAEEE
REMBFAERAFHR
HEHAREE BE)
RERERIE -

fif 3R < B EER
B 7] B X M @ 1 =
ek &8 - RH A2
BEATRERH - i
BERBERNEATR
E&8 A EEER
AEERRE- TlE S
BREE R T EMR T
ERANEEBEEHR
=& e

2.18.Leases

@)

As a lessee

0]

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless
the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds it recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the
Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable.
The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition to leases of assets that
are considered as low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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2.19.Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturities
of three months or less, including cash and balances with
banks that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2.20.Dividend distribution

2.21

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

.Insurance and reinsurance contracts classification

The Group issues insurance contracts in the normal course
of business, under which it accepts significant insurance
risk from its policyholders. In general, the Group determines
whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing
benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payable
if the insured event had not occurred. Insurance contracts
can also transfer financial risk.

In the normal course of business, the Group uses
reinsurance to mitigate its risk exposures. A reinsurance
contract transfers significant risk if it transfers substantially
all of the insurance risk resulting from the insured portion
of the underlying insurance contracts, even if it does not
expose the reinsurer to the possibility of a significant loss.

The Group issues reinsurance contracts in the normal course
of business to compensate other entities for claims arising
from one or more insurance contracts issued by those
entities.
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2.22.Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting
treatment

@)

Level of aggregation

HKFRS 17 requires an entity to determine the level of
aggregation for applying its requirements. The level
of aggregation for the Group is determined firstly by
dividing the insurance contracts written into portfolios.
Portfolios comprise groups of contracts with similar
risks which are managed together. Portfolios are
further divided based on expected profitability at
inception into three categories: onerous contracts,
contracts with no significant risk of becoming onerous,
and the remainder. This means that, for determining
the level of aggregation, the Group identifies a
contract as the smallest “unit’, i.e., the lowest common
denominator. The Group then makes an evaluation of
whether a series of contracts can be treated together
in making the profitability assessment based on
reasonable and supportable information, or whether
a single contract contains components that need to
be separated and treated as if they were stand-alone
contracts. HKFRS 17 also requires that no group for
level of aggregation purposes may contain contracts
issued more than one year apart. Accordingly, each
portfolio is disaggregated into groups of contracts that
are issued within a calendar year (annual cohorts).

The Group has defined portfolios of insurance and
reinsurance contracts issued based on its product lines
due to the fact that the products are subject to similar
risks and managed together. The expected profitability
of these portfolios at inception is determined based on
the existing actuarial valuation models which take into
consideration existing and new business.

The groups of contracts for which the fair value
approach has been adopted on transition include
contracts issued more than one year apart.
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The insurance contracts portfolios are divided into:

o a group of contracts that are onerous at initial
recognition;

. a group of contracts that at initial recognition
have no significant possibility of becoming
onerous subsequently; and

. a group of the remaining contracts in the
portfolio.

The reinsurance contracts held portfolios are divided
into:

o a group of contracts on which there is a net gain
on initial recognition,;

. a group of contracts that have no significant
possibility of a net gain arising subsequent to
initial recognition; and

. a group of the remaining contracts in the
portfolio.

Recognition

The Group recognises groups of insurance contracts
that it issues from the earliest of the following:

e the beginning of the coverage period of the
group of contracts;

3 the date when the first payment from a
policyholder in the group is due, or when the first
payment is received if there is no due date; or

o for a group of onerous contracts, as soon as
facts and circumstances indicate that the group
iS onerous.
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(©)

The Group recognises a group of reinsurance contracts
held it has entered into from the earliest of the
following:

o the beginning of the coverage period of the
group of reinsurance contracts held. However,
the Group delays the recognition of a group
of reinsurance contracts held that provide
proportionate coverage until the date when
any underlying insurance contract is initially
recognised, if that date is later than the
beginning of the coverage period of the group of
reinsurance contracts held; and

° the date the Group recognises an onerous group
of underlying insurance contracts if the Group
entered into the related reinsurance contract
held in the group of reinsurance contracts held at
or before that date.

Only contracts that individually meet the recognition
criteria by the end of the reporting period are included
in the groups. When contracts are identified to meet
the recognition criteria in the groups after reporting
date, they are added to the groups in the reporting
period in which they are identified to meet the
recognition criteria. The Group adds new contracts to
the group in the reporting period in which that contract
meets one of the criteria set out above.

Onerous groups of contracts

The Group has determined whether any contracts
issued form a group of onerous contracts before the
earlier of the beginning of the coverage period and
the date when the first payment from a policyholder
in the group is due. The Group looks at facts and
circumstances to identify if a group of contracts are
onerous based on:

. pricing information;

results of similar contracts it has recognised; and

. environmental factors, e.g., a change in market
experience or regulations.
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Contract boundary

The Group includes in the measurement of a group of
insurance contracts all the future cash flows within the
boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows
are within the boundary of an insurance contract if
they arise from substantive rights and obligations that
exist during the reporting period in which the Group
can compel the policyholder to pay the premiums,
or in which the Group has a substantive obligation to
provide the policyholder with services. A substantive
obligation to provide services ends when:

. the Group has the practical ability to reassess
the risks of the particular policyholder and, as
a result, can set a price or level of benefits that
fully reflects those risks; or

o the Group has the practical ability to reassess the
risks of the portfolio of insurance contracts that
contain the contract and, as a result, can set a
price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risk
of that portfolio; and

. the pricing of the premiums for coverage up to
the date when the risks are reassessed does not
take into account the risks that relate to periods
after the reassessment date.

A liability or asset relating to expected premiums or
claims outside the boundary of the insurance contract
are not recognised. Such amounts relate to future
insurance contracts.
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Insurance contracts — initial measurement

The Group measures a group of insurance contracts as
the total of:

. fulfilment cash flows; and

o a CSM representing the unearned profit the
Group will recognise as it provides service under
the insurance contracts in the group.

Fulfilment cash flows comprise unbiased and
probability-weighted estimates of future cash flows,
discounted to present value to reflect the time value
of money and financial risks, plus a risk adjustment for
non-financial risk.

The Group’s objective in estimating future cash
flows is to determine the expected value, or the
probability-weighted mean, of the full range of possible
outcomes, considering all reasonable and supportable
information available at the reporting date without
undue cost or effort. The Group estimates future cash
flows considering a range of scenarios which have
commercial substance and give a good representation
of possible outcomes. The cash flows from each
scenario are probability-weighted and apply the current
discount rates to reflect the time value of money and
the financial risks related to those cash flows.

When estimating future cash flows, the Group includes
all cash flows that are within the contract boundary
including:

. premiums and related cash flows;

. claims and benefits, including reported claims
not yet paid, incurred claims not yet reported
and expected future claims;

. an allocation of insurance acquisition cash flows
attributable to the portfolio to which the contract
belongs;
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o claims handling costs;

o policy administration and maintenance costs,
including recurring commissions that are
expected to be paid to intermediaries; and

. an allocation of fixed and variable overheads
directly attributable to fulfilling insurance
contracts.

The Group does not provide investment-return
services in respect of contracts that it issues, nor
does it perform investment activities for the benefit of
policyholders.

The Group incorporates, in an unbiased way, all
reasonable and supportable information available
without undue cost or effort about the amount,
timing and uncertainty of those future cash flows.
The Group estimates the probabilities and amounts
of future payments under existing contracts based on
information obtained, including:

. information about claims already reported by
policyholders;

. other information about the known or estimated
characteristics of the insurance contracts;

. historical data about the Group’s own experience,
supplemented when necessary with data from
other sources. Historical data is adjusted to
reflect current conditions; and

current pricing information, when available.

The measurement of fulfilment cash flows includes
insurance acquisition cash flows which are allocated
as a portion of premium to profit or loss (through
insurance revenue) over the period of the contract
in a systematic and rational way on the basis of the
passage of time. The Group does not elect to accrete
interest on insurance acquisition cash flows to be
allocated to profit or loss.
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The Group’s CSM is a component of the insurance
asset or liability for the group of insurance contracts
that results in no income at initial recognition. The
level of aggregation for CSM is on a group of contracts
basis consistent with the level of aggregation specified
above. If the fulfilment cash flows allocated to the
group of insurance contracts, together with any
previously recognised insurance acquisition cash flows
and any cash flows arising from the contracts at the
date of initial recognition in total are a net outflow,
the group of contracts is considered to be onerous. A
loss from onerous insurance contracts is recognised in
profit and loss immediately.

For reinsurance contracts, the Group recognises any
net gain or net cost as a CSM at initial recognition.
If any net cost of obtaining reinsurance coverage
relates to an insured event that occurred before
the purchase of the group of reinsurance contracts
held, it is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
In addition, if the underlying insurance contracts
are in an onerous position, the Group is allowed to
recognise a reinsurance gain immediately in profit or
loss for the portion of claims that the Group expects
to recover from the reinsurance, if the reinsurance
held was entered into prior to or at the same time as
the onerous contract. Consequently, a loss-recovery
component is created and adjusted for the group of
reinsurance contracts. This determines the amounts
that are subsequently presented in profit or loss as
reversals of recoveries of losses from the reinsurance
contracts and are excluded from the allocation of
reinsurance premiums paid. The Group adjusts the
loss-recovery component to reflect changes in the loss
of an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts.
The carrying amount of the loss-recovery component
must not exceed the portion of the carrying amount of
the loss of the onerous group of underlying insurance
contracts that the Group expects to recover from the
group of reinsurance contracts.
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Measurement of reinsurance contract cash flows is
consistent with the underlying insurance contracts, but
with an adjustment for any risk of non-performance by
the reinsurer.

Insurance contracts — subsequent measurement

The CSM at the end of the reporting period represents
the profit in the group of insurance contracts that has
not yet been recognised in profit or loss, because it
relates to future service to be provided.

For each profitability group of insurance contracts, the
carrying amount of the CSM of the group at the end of
the reporting period is adjusted by the Group to reflect
the effect of the following changes:

3 the effect of any new contracts added to the
group;

. interest accreted on the carrying amount of the
CSM during the reporting period, measured at
the discount rates at initial recognition;

o the changes in fulfilment cash flows relating to
future service, except to the extent that: (i) such
increases in the fulfilment cash flows exceed
the carrying amount of the CSM, giving rise to a
loss; or (i) such decreases in the fulfilment cash
flows are allocated to the loss component of the
liability for remaining coverage (LRC); and

. the amount recognised as insurance revenue
because of the transfer of services in the
period, determined by the allocation of the CSM
remaining at the end of the reporting period
(before any allocation) over the current and
remaining coverage period.
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The discount rate is determined periodically and only
the set of locked-in discount rates for a group of
contracts in each period will be applied for subsequent
measured. The discount rate used for accretion of
interest on the CSM is determined using the bottom-up
approach (Note 4.4(b)).

The CSM is recognised into insurance revenue over
the duration of the group of insurance contracts
based on the respective coverage units. The locked-in
discount rate is the rate applicable at the date of initial
recognition of contracts that joined a group for each
annual cohort.

The changes in fulfilment cash flows relating to future
service that adjust the CSM comprise:

. experience adjustments that arise from the
difference between the premium receipts
(and any related cash flows such as insurance
acquisition cash flows) and the estimate, at
the beginning of the period, of the amounts
expected. Differences related to premiums
received (or due) related to current or past
services are recognised immediately in profit
or loss while differences related to premiums
received (or due) for future services are adjusted
against the CSM;

. changes in estimates of the present value of
future cash flows in the liability for remaining
coverage, except those relating to the time
value of money and changes in financial
risk (recognised in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income rather than adjusting the
CSMy;
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o differences between any investment component
expected to become payable in the period and
the actual investment component that becomes
payable in the period; and

3 changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial
risk that relate to future service.

Except for changes in the risk adjustment, adjustments
to the CSM noted above are measured at discount
rates that reflect the characteristics of the cash
flows of the group of insurance contracts at initial
recognition.

Where, during the coverage period, a loss is created
for a group of insurance contracts becoming onerous
when there is an increase in fulfilment cash flows
that exceeds the carrying amount of the CSM. Once
a change in fulfilment cash flows reduces CSM to nil,
the excess establishes a loss which is recognised in
profit and loss immediately for the net cash outflow.
A loss component is established by the Group for the
liability for remaining coverage for such onerous group
depicting the losses recognised. Any subsequent
decrease in the fulfilment cash flows will reverse the
losses previously recognised in profit and loss. Any
remaining loss will be released based on a systematic
allocation of subsequent changes relating to future
service in the fulfilment cash flows.

The Group measures the carrying amount of a group
of insurance contracts at the end of each reporting
period as the sum of (i) the liability for remaining
coverage comprising fulfilment cash flows related to
future service allocated to the group at that date and
the CSM of the group at that date; and (i) the liability
for incurred claims (LIC) for the Group comprising the
fulfilment cash flows related to past service allocated
to the group at that date. The fulfilment cash flows at
the reporting dates are measured using the current
estimates of expected cash flows and current discount
rates.

For reinsurance contracts, the carrying amount
represents the sum of the asset for remaining
coverage and the asset for incurred claims. The asset
for remaining coverage comprises: (a) the fulfilment
cash flows that relate to services that will be received
under the contracts in future periods; and (b) any
remaining CSM at that date.
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Insurance contracts — modification and

derecognition
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The Group derecognises insurance contracts when:

the rights and obligations relating to the contract
are extinguished (i.e., discharged, cancelled or
expired); or

the contract is modified such that the
modification results in a change in the
measurement model or the applicable standard
for measuring a component of the contract,
or the modified contract would have had a
substantially different contract boundary, or the
modified contract would have been included
in a different group of contracts. In such cases,
the Group derecognises the initial contract
and recognises the modified contract as a new
contract.

Insurance acquisition cash flows

Insurance acquisition cash flows arise from the costs of
selling, underwriting and starting a group of insurance
contracts (issued or expected to be issued) that are
directly attributable to the portfolio of insurance
contracts to which the group belongs.
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Presentation

The Group has presented separately in the statement
of financial position the carrying amount of portfolios
of insurance contracts issued that are assets, portfolios
of insurance contracts issued that are liabilities,
portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are assets
and portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are
liabilities.

The Group disaggregates the amounts recognised in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income into insurance
service result, comprising insurance revenue and
insurance service expenses from investment results,
which comprises insurance finance income or
expenses.

The Group does not disaggregate the change in risk
adjustment for non-financial risk between a financial
and non-financial portion and includes the entire
change as part of the insurance service result.

The Group separately presents income or expenses

from reinsurance contracts held and from insurance
contracts issued.
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Insurance revenue

The Group's insurance revenue depicts the
performance of insurance services through
provision of coverage and other services arising
from a group of insurance contracts at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those services. Insurance revenue from a group
of insurance contracts is therefore the relevant
portion for the period of the total consideration
for the contracts, (i.e., the amount of premiums
paid to the Group adjusted for financing effect
(the time value of money) and excluding
investment components). The total consideration
for a group of contracts covers amounts related
to the provision of services and is comprised of:

o expected insurance service expenses for
claims and other insurance expenses,
excluding any amounts allocated to the loss
component of the liability for remaining
coverage,

o the risk adjustment for non-financial risk,
excluding any amounts allocated to the loss
component of the liability for remaining
coverage,

o the CSM release; and

o amounts related to recovery of insurance
acquisition cash flows.

For management judgement applied to the
amortisation of CSM, please refer to Note 4.4(d).
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Insurance services expenses

The insurance service expenses arising from
insurance contracts are recognised in profit
or loss as they are incurred. The insurance
service expenses comprise: (a) incurred claims
and other insurance expenses; (b) losses on
onerous contracts and reversal of such losses; (c)
adjustments to liability for incurred claims; and
(d) related to amortising of insurance acquisition
cash flows.

Loss components

The Group has grouped contracts that are
onerous at initial recognition separately from
contracts in the same portfolio that are not
onerous at initial recognition. Groups that
were not onerous at initial recognition can also
subsequently become onerous if assumptions
and experience changes. The Group has
established a loss component of the liability
for remaining coverage for any onerous group
depicting the future losses recognised.

A loss component represents a notional record
of the losses attributable to each group of
onerous insurance contracts (or contracts
profitable at inception that have become
onerous). The loss component is released based
on a systematic allocation of the subsequent
changes in the fulfilment cash flows to: (i) the
loss component; and (ii) the liability for remaining
coverage excluding the loss component. The
loss component is also updated for subsequent
changes in estimates of the fulfilment cash
flows related to future service. The systematic
allocation of subsequent changes to the loss
component results in the total amounts allocated
to the loss component being equal to zero by
the end of the coverage period of a group of
contracts (since the loss component will have
been materialised in the form of incurred claims).

EBRBEFERAT —TomassR 271



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB E B

il 7 6% B 72 ¥ 44 FE 7R —
B IEE R KRR S QR
BREKX HHEMmE
BEERERER A KR8
EER AREE AR
BH)— A BRRE G
RepRREE R BB

HORELEE Ui
R E R

W RAE X A R — 448
E@% BEMEREBE
Ho - AFEHHRER
ﬁ&é%¢ﬁﬁ*m%
BoSEREBUE
Jﬁi&ﬁf’

“Emﬁﬁmﬁi&ﬁ
REDREERRKE
fo - AAREEEHE
%E%E% VA B —
HEEEREBRREEYD
BRSO &) o

B E S K IREE
BETrERBAAEETES
REBFENBERRKRAE A
B 4% 1B Y 5 18 M A B AR
BE AR NEESY

IRESBEFRRNILD - £
It EAR o YA R B
T 3R B 5 48 Uk (=] 2B 5 Rk
LET . HEEE A
R A KM BIE R —
B BEEBEERER
& #4948 B A B 18 56 5
AT HITAT -

272 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024

Loss-recovery components

When the Group recognises a loss on initial
recognition of an onerous group of underlying
insurance contracts or when further onerous
underlying insurance contracts are added to a
group, the Group establishes a loss-recovery
component of the asset for remaining coverage
for a group of reinsurance contracts held
depicting the recovery of losses.

Where a loss component has been set up
subsequent to initial recognition of a group of
underlying insurance contracts, the portion of
income that has been recognised from related
reinsurance contracts held is disclosed as a loss-
recovery component.

Where a loss-recovery component has been
set up at initial recognition or subsequently, the
Group adjusts the loss-recovery component to
reflect changes in the loss component of an
onerous group of underlying insurance contracts.

The carrying amount of the loss-recovery
component must not exceed the portion of the
carrying amount of the loss component of the
onerous group of underlying insurance contracts
that the Group expects to recover from the group
of reinsurance contracts held. On this basis,
the loss-recovery component recognised at
initial recognition is reduced to zero in line with
reductions in the onerous group of underlying
insurance contracts and is nil when loss
component of the onerous group of underlying
insurance contracts is nil.
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Insurance finance income and expense

Insurance finance income or expenses comprise
the change in the carrying amount of the group
of insurance contracts arising from:

. the effect of the time value of money and
changes in the time value of money,; and

. the effect of financial risk and changes in
financial risk.

The Group disaggregates insurance finance
income or expenses on insurance and
reinsurance contracts issued between profit or
loss and OCI for general insurance business.
The impact of changes in market interest rates
on the value of the insurance and related
reinsurance assets and liabilities are reflected in
OCl in order to minimise accounting mismatches
between the accounting for financial assets and
insurance assets and liabilities. The impacts from
differences between current period rates and
locked-in rates are presented in OCI.

For general insurance business, the Group'’s
invested assets which are deposits and debt
securities investments backing the groups of
insurance contracts measured under the GMM
are measured at amortised costs. As a result, the
effect of the time value of money for the groups
of insurance contracts are reflected in profit or
loss and the effect of financial risk and changes
in financial risk is reflected in OCI.

The Group systematically allocates expected
total insurance finance income or expenses over
the duration of the group of contracts to profit
or loss using discount rates determined on initial
recognition of the group of contracts for which
changes in assumptions that relate to financial
risk do not have a substantial effect on the
amounts paid to the policyholder.

EHREVEERAT —T-_mEFH 273



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-ERRAHHKR
LFER— I RE A KB -
7N 52 1B o R B B 75 A
FFAXEHHAEER
1 7% 5% Al £ E fth 2 T8 HR
SR RERAERI(HE X))
TR BIEEH D

R -

EE2XEBIH BF
R A KR 1R B B 7%
WA B B 32 36 £ 3 A
RESHBEEMEER
RFEEMREE WA
AFEFEEHEEE

AR o

Fr#s B BRRE 4 H K
A SF R

(Vi)

AEBEFRABEREK
fRa2mRER P IR
B RE A B Y E TR
HF BN RTS8 B
RBRRBEBNODE - AR
BRREAEBEEORE
HBERBRAESRERR
FHBENBRREAT
EHBENREN B
Do BEEEBERESD
BREERKEABN
EEAARARBRR
RAREHEE - HR
HE A ARG BRR
Hene (flms THE
Mo HEE) - HERS
ENNBRRRERD
ENBEREREN DR
FEAREBE B MK
1B 9 BR 755 48 B8 &Y R BR 4R
REENEEZBEE -

274  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024

In the event of transfer of a group of insurance
contracts or derecognition of an insurance
contract, the Group reclassifies the insurance
finance income or expenses to profit or loss as
a reclassification adjustment of any remaining
amounts for the group (or contract) that were
previously recognised in OCI.

With respect to the annuity business, insurance
finance income or expenses on the issued
insurance contracts is not disaggregated because
the related financial assets are managed on a fair
value basis and measured at fair value through
profit or oss.

Net income or expense from reinsurance
contracts held

The Group presents on the face of the
consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income the net
amounts of expected recovery from reinsurers
and an allocation of the reinsurance premiums
paid. The Group treats reinsurance cash flows
that are contingent on claims on the underlying
contracts as part of the claims that are expected
to be reimbursed under the reinsurance contract
held. Amounts relating to the recovery of losses
from reinsurance of onerous direct contracts
are included as amounts recoverable from the
reinsurer. For reinsurance cash flows that are
not contingent on claims on the underlying
contracts (for example, some types of ceding
commissions), they are treated as reduction
in reinsurance premiums paid. The allocation
of reinsurance premiums paid represents the
total of the changes in the asset for remaining
coverage that relate to services for which the
Group expects to pay consideration.
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2.23.Loans that transfer significant insurance risk

There are contracts issued by the Group with a feature
combining a loan component with an agreement to
compensate the borrowers by waving the borrowers’
outstanding debt (for example, repayment of the loan
balance and payment of interest) if a specified uncertain
future event adversely affects the borrowers (for example,
death). The insurance risk transferred by these contracts
arises primarily from guarantees provided to the borrowers
of the maximum amount of outstanding debt that is
repayable if specified uncertain future events occur.
Following the adoption of HKFRS 17, the loan component is
no longer allowed to account separately from an insurance
contract. On the other hand, it is allowed to apply HKFRS 9 to
account for both components of such contracts in entirety.
The Group has applied HKFRS 9 to such contracts. The
objective of the Group's business model is to hold relevant
loans with insurance cover to collect contractual cash flows
until maturity rather than to sell. However, the cash flows
of these contracts fail to meet the “solely for payments
of principal and interest” test in view of the non-recourse
feature as the credit risk of the Group is exchanged for the
performance of underlying collateral value for repayment
of loan balance and payment of interest. Accordingly, such
contracts (with both loan and insurance components in
entirety) are measured as fair value through profit or loss
under HKFRS 9. The determination of the fair value of these
loans is based on income approach by discounting future
cash flows (including annuity payout, premium and interest
income, loan prepayment, collateral property value and so
on) to present value at a rate that market participant would
use when pricing the similar asset.

2.24.Contingency reserve

For general insurance business, 50% or 75% of the relevant
premiums or insurance premium earned, depending on
the respective product, under Insurance Ordinance basis
is set aside as a contingency reserve for a period of time
in accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals from
the contingency reserve can be made to meet excess claims
at any time during the period. At the end of the reporting
period, the unutilised balance of the contingency reserve can
be released to retained profits.
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3.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase
portfolios of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its
purchase of assets through issuance of debt securities; (iii)
to develop infrastructure financing business; (iv) to provide
mortgage insurance cover in respect of mortgage loans
and reverse mortgage loans originated by participating
lenders and secured on residential properties in Hong Kong,
life insurance policies and other assets, if applicable; (v) to
operate a scheme for the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (Government) providing
guarantee on loans advanced by participating lenders for
local small and medium enterprises (SMES) and to operate
a scheme for the Government providing 100% guarantee
on loans advanced by participating lenders for unemployed
individuals; and (vi) to offer life annuity products in or
from Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group’s activities
are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts, investments, and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group’s financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
group level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees
of the Company, including Infrastructure Financing and
Securitisation Investment Committee (IFSIC), Credit
Committee, Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO),
Transaction Approval Committee (TAC), Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) Committee, and Operational
Risk Committee (ORC) which report to the Corporate Risk
Management Committee.
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The IFSIC executes oversight and approval authority
over all investments in infrastructure loans. The Credit
Committee oversees the credit policies and standards for
asset acquisition. The ALCO oversees the implementation
of market risk management and investment guidelines
approved by the Board of Directors. The TAC conducts an in-
depth analysis of pricing economics and associated risks for
business transactions, whilst taking into consideration the
latest market conditions and business strategies approved
by the Board. The ESG Committee is established to direct
and oversee the development and implementation of ESG
strategy having regard to the relevant requirements and
guidelines. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all
business entities and line functions maintain an effective
operational risk and internal control framework. The ORC is
also responsible for providing directions and resolving issues
related to policies, controls and management of operational
issues referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring
prompt and appropriate corrective action in response to
audit findings related to operational risks or internal controls.
In addition, Group Internal Audit Department is responsible
for the independent review of the internal control systems of
the Group.

The Group established Longevity Risk Committee to manage
longevity risk of the Group. Its duties include approving
longevity risk management policies and hedging transactions
and reviewing longevity experiences and exposures of the
Group. It also monitors and analyses the general trend,
technological changes and their implications for human
longevity.

In respect of general insurance business, a Risk Committee
is established by HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI) as an
independent oversight committee to assist its Board to
oversee implementation of risk management framework
and manage all risks faced by the HKMCI. For HKMC Annuity
Limited (HKMCA), a Risk Committee is established to
manage the enterprise-wide risk matters, including financial
and non-financial risks.

The most important types of risks are credit risk, market risk
which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk, liquidity risk and insurance risk.
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3.2. Creditrisk

The Group's principal financial assets are its cash and
short-term funds, investment securities, placements with
the Exchange Fund, loan portfolio and loans with 100%
guarantee from the Government under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) and Dedicated 100% Loan
Guarantee Schemes (DLGS). The credit risk on liquid funds
and investment securities is limited because the credit
ratings of the counterparties, mainly sovereigns, quasi-
sovereign agencies, banks and companies, should meet the
minimum requirement in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The capital of
the HKMCA and the HKMCI as well as premium receipts of
the HKMCA are placed with the Exchange Fund managed by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA). The credit risk
on the placements with the Exchange Fund is very limited as
it is exposure to the Government. Regarding loans with 100%
guarantee from the Government, the credit default risk of the
loans is fully guaranteed by the Government.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. The Group therefore has a
prudent policy for managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the loan portfolios, the Group
adheres to a prudent risk management framework to (i)
select Approved Sellers with established criteria; (ii) adopt
prudent asset purchasing criteria; (iii) conduct effective
and in-depth due diligence reviews; (iv) implement robust
project structures and financing documentation; (v) perform
an ongoing monitoring and reviewing mechanism; and
(vi) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Business units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.
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Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio and loans with 100% guarantee from the
Government

The principal collateral types for residential mortgage
portfolio mainly consist of properties located in Hong Kong.
For hire purchase receivable, the collateral types include taxi
and public light bus licenses. Residential mortgage portfolio
and hire purchase receivable are generally fully secured
by collateral. The current collateral value of properties is
determined with the use of public indices on a portfolio
basis. The principal collateral types for infrastructure loan
portfolio mainly consist of security interests in the assets of
the borrowers and assignment of key project documents
and/or charge over bank accounts but the actual security
varies projects to projects.

Regarding loans with 100% guarantee from the Government,
no collateral is sought as the credit default risk of the loans is
fully guaranteed by the Government. Please refer to Note 19
for more details.

Time deposits with banks, investment securities and
placements with the Exchange Fund

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short-term maturity.
Investment securities and placements with the Exchange
Fund are generally unsecured.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into ISDA master agreement with all
counterparties for derivative transactions where each party
will be able to settle all outstanding amounts on a net basis
in the event of default of the other party. The Group also
executed Credit Support Annex (CSA) with all counterparties
in conjunction with the master agreement. Under CSA,
collateral is passed between the parties to mitigate the
counterparty risk inherent in outstanding positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group's market transactions on any single day.
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Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement

For financial assets, the following credit risk modelling
applies:

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information with the following indicators
incorporated:

o external credit rating (as far as available);

o actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower,

. significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees or credit enhancements; and

o significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group and changes
in the financial conditions of the borrower.

A three-stage approach to measuring ECLs is applied on
loan portfolio, cash and short-term funds and investment
securities accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCI.
Financial assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition:
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Stage 1: 12-month ECLS

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the
lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not
credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognised and interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
(net of impairment provision) rather than the gross carrying
amount.

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted
estimates of expected loss. The amount of the ECLS is
recognised using an impairment allowance account with the
movement in this account charged to income statement.

At initial recognition, impairment allowance is required for
ECLs resulting from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (12-month ECLS). At each reporting
date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for financial assets since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and
the date of initial recognition. In the event of a significant
increase in credit risk, impairment allowance is required
from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial assets (Lifetime ECLS). If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously
assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination,
then the impairment allowance reverts from Lifetime ECLS to
12-month ECLS.
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Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. Loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have substantially been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Where loans have been written off, the Group continues
to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are
recognised in profit or loss.

No impairment allowance was made on interest and
remittance receivables, deposits and other assets as the
amount was immaterial.

The Group uses three categories for loans which reflect their
credit risk and how the loan loss provision is determined for
each of those categories.

(@) Loans with 100% guarantee from the Government

These loans are fully guaranteed by the Government as
detailed in Note 19. The Group uses three categories
for loans which reflect their credit risk:

Stage 1. It represents performing loans with low risk
of default and the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet contractual cash flows.

Stage 2. It represents loans with significant increase
in credit risk since the moment of acquisition,
for example there is interest or principal
payment overdue between 30 days and 60
days.

Stage 3: It represents loans with significant increase in
credit risk with interest or principal payment
overdue for over 60 days, or loans with
default notice submitted by banks.
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As at 31 December 2024

Given the default loss of these loans are fully
guaranteed, no impairment allowance is recognised in
view of the minimal default risk of the Government.

F—MEE FoMEE E=MEE B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FER FET TR TR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

74,154,028 1,754,591 6,874,079 82,782,698

IRE AR E Gross carrying amount
BB R Impairment allowance
R E {8 Carrying amount

74,154,028 1,754,591 6,874,079 82,782,698

RZE_=F+=-A=+—~H
As at 31 December 2023

F—FER FEREER FE=PEER HaE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FATT FHTT FHIT FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

92,050,026 2,015,090 3,297,240 97,362,356

IR ARE Gross carrying amount
RER Impairment allowance
MR EE Carrying amount

92,050,026 2,015,090 3,297,240 97,362,356
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NG (b)  Loan portfolio

AEBEMEEBREERER
B ERER B LA T -

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the
Group’s ECL model on loans is as follows:

xRl
Category

F—FEE

Stage 1

F_PEER

Stage 2

e —

FE=PEE

Stage 3

Write-off

HRINES
Definition of category

ERAENRBRERIE - B EHENE

f
TAaNBRERE

Borrowers have a low risk of default and
a strong capacity to meet contractual
cash flows.

ERWMEERBRAEEN: WBFE
R/HECERBPBBIOKR - IR

Loans for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments
are more than 30 days past due.

FER/SRAEERBIEHOKX « K
ABRES M B o

Interest and/or principal repayments
are 90 days past due, borrowers with
bankruptcy or properties repossessed.

I 484 32 TE AR AT IR B HR ) 8 B AR
There is no reasonable expectation of
recovery on the delinquent interest
and/or principal repayments.

BRERFEHERBENER
Basis for recognition of
ECL provision

1218 A TR ERE B E5 18 (W0 & E M TE HR S B
L1218 A - Bl TE HA &5 18 1 H TE HR 4F AP
HE-)

12-month ECLs (Where the expected
lifetime of an asset is less than 12
months, expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime.)

BEMFEREEER — ABELEERE

Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

BEMEREEER —EFERE

Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

Asset is written off
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R EETERAT  A&H
AT A NI MEE L HE MR
HHERT © AEF Bk INER A B BN
ANEBERA GE 2 ZIREAREE

AHNEER  AEEBERSE
{EZH -

EERHARA - NEERES
BEHREEEREEERE A
EEEERR - £ EEY
1:??15&'5?@?57 CAEBEEES

BRERHEENELBIEE - I
AT ZB BB R
B o

R HR AR ERER B
EEERBERAS EgER
RN CE At (FH BB P MR A R

T f—‘cih)

AEBECRIZBERRIZAS
ELAE ST 6 1 S FE U 0R SRR
%$%ﬁﬂ%%& BRI
PR B B D B N R B 2R DA
ﬁ%ﬁ REMGAIR 8
REERESHARSKHER
HIRR R AT REIE B R o B AR
R THET AR A7 8 BB B
R FEIZ 408 3 e 4 7 19 BUET

s
H o
ZAF

SRR (ERIR B R EF AR EE
EXmE  ARECREEZIK
KEmAT= -« AR &R
B BETEEE  LERE
AR R F R ER - B
BHEE - EREFRTRAB
ST IARAR > B HIEHERIA
RELFNBEUERZEEERER
THIBER o

However, in certain cases, the Group will also consider a
loan to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
enhancements held by the Group.

Over the term of the loans, the Group accounts for its credit
risk by appropriately providing for ECLS on a timely basis.
In calculating the ECL rates, the Group considers historical
loss rates for each category of loan portfolio, and adjusts for
forward-looking macroeconomic data.

Loan portfolio at amortised cost consists of residential
mortgage portfolio, infrastructure loans and others which are
hire purchase receivable and microfinance loans.

The Group have adopted a range of economic cycle stages
for the assessment of mortgage loans and hire purchase
receivable by portfolio basis. Probabilities are assigned to
different economic cycle stages for the assessment. Based
on market outlook, Credit Committee members form a view
on the likelihood of each economic cycle stage. The default
probability is based on the weighted average of likelihood
of different economic cycle stage and the corresponding
default probability.

For infrastructure loans assessed by individual project
basis, the Group has selected a forward-looking view
based on outlook of global economy, relevant regional
economic indicators, specific industry data, and taking
into consideration of the impact of any special events.
Infrastructure loans are rated under various scenarios. The
probability table is set up to determine the probability of
each scenario under each forward-looking view.
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TREBRBHEKAIIRNE
RESNEERBRIHT o

R-B-MNFE+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December 2024

TR S5 2RI BE A9 Loan portfolio at

R
Stage 1

FET
HK$'000

EIEER
Stage 2
FET
HK$'000

FE=FE
Stage 3
THET
HK$'000

The following table contains an analysis of the credit risk
exposure of loan portfolio at amortised cost.

e
Total
FET
HK$'000

ERHEE amortised cost
IRE A Gross carrying amount
EERB\BEZRMS Residential mortgage
portfolio 2,807,202 3,844 5,501 2,816,547
EEER Infrastructure loans 7,290,487 - - 7,290,487
HAth Others 69,504 - 2,221 71,725
10,167,193 3,844 7,722 10,178,759
(B B Impairment allowance
FEIIBEFKHES Residential mortgage
portfolio (6,849) - - (6,849)
HEE% Infrastructure loans (52,940) - - (52,940)
HAih Others (259) - (1,594) (1,853)
(60,048) - (1,594) (61,642)
R & Carrying amount 10,107,145 3,844 6,128 10,117,117

R-Z—=

N—

F+=-—HA=+—H
As at 31 December 2023

TR S5 Ak 2RI MR A9 Loan portfolio at

—FEER
Stage 1
FBT
HK$'000

—FEER
Stage 2
T

HK$'000

E=[EE
Stage 3
FAT

HK$'000

B4EE amortised cost
VPEEZ" & Gross carrying amount
EERBEZRMS Residential mortgage
portfolio 2,795,317 5,042 4,501 2,804,860
EEER Infrastructure loans 7,361,398 - - 7,361,398
HAth Others 87,938 - 2,441 90,379
10,244,653 5,042 6,942 10,256,637
BB Impairment allowance
FEIIBEFKHES Residential mortgage
portfolio (2,134) - - (2,134)
HEs Infrastructure loans (22,555) - - (22,555)
EAth Others (184) - (1,347) (1,531)
(24,873) - (1,347) (26,220)
IREE Carrying amount 10,219,780 5,042 5,595 10,230,417
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J‘%‘:::@i-i—*ﬂ:-t——ﬁ The impairment allowance for loan portfolio as at 31
BB 2 AR A I (B 4 ER B D December 2024 reconciles to the opening impairment
@TﬁéﬁZﬁﬂEﬁDT _ allowance as follows:

E-RB EoREB 2 ok
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZZ-=F—H—HH# Impairment allowance

B as at 1 January 2023 13,222 5 1,447 14,674
EEENETRER Loans purchased and repayment 10,033 - - 10,033
FEE““@J?J%FEE’J Net measurement of impairment

arising from changes of stage - (5) - (5)
Movement due to changes in

credit risk 1,618 = 217 1,835

Hﬂz@iﬁmﬁliﬁ% Recoveries of loans not
written-off = = (32) (32)
11,651 (5) 185 11,831
BRES KR Transfer to stage 2 = - - -
BYEE=KER Transfer to stage 3 = = - -
G Write-offs - = (285) (285)

RZE-_=F+_H Impairment allowance as at
=+—RRRERE 31 December 2023 (Note 20)

GEX) 24,873 - 1,347 26,220
EE% BT RER Loans purchased and repayment 27,402 - = 27,402
PRERE B AR Net measurement of impairment
WETEFE arising from changes of stage - 2 - 22
REERREZEMm Movement due to changes in
EENEE credit risk 7,773 - 264 8,037
e Bl KA 88 S Recoveries of loans not
written-off = = (39) (39)
35,175 22 225 35,422
BREFRR Transfer to stage 2 = - - _
BREE= IZE. B Transfer to stage 3 = 22) 2 -
HisH Write-offs - = - =

RZE-ME+ZA Impairment allowance
=t+-HWRERE as at 31 December

(B¥3E20) 2024 (Note 20) 60,048 = 1,594 61,642
EURERES Change in loan impairment
allowance 35,175 22 225 35,422
E?ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ@ Net change in loan commitment
BREEEE impairment allowance 2,211) - - 2,211)
W E B M E K Recoveries of loans
previously written-off - - (128) (128)

REZ-Z_NF Total change in impairment
+=A=t+—HiEE allowance recognised
REZREINHERE  in profit or loss for year
BB (i 14) ended 31 December 2024
(Note 14) 32,964 22 97 33,083

REE-Z-=F Total change in impairment
+ZA=+—BI%5E allowance recognised
PIERTERRRERSE  inprofit or loss for year
28 (e 14) ended 31 December 2023
(Note 14) 18,710 () (327) 18,378
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RehEREe

RZZEZME+=RA=+—H
MREREHESRERRFE
HIVDREREEIRNT

Cash and short-term funds

The impairment allowance for cash and short-
term funds as at 31 December 2024 reconciles to
the opening impairment allowance as follows:

FET
HK$'000

R-TE-_=F—F—BHRERERE Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2023 3,104
BIARIE R IER R R E R = E) Change in the impairment allowance recognised

(F¥=E14) in profit or loss during the period (Note 14) 1,043
RZEBE_=F+-_A=1+—HH Impairment allowance as at 31 December 2023

B (5L 16) (Note 16) 4,147
HRNRERERREREE Change in the impairment allowance recognised

(FfzE14) in profit or loss during the period (Note 14) 1,502
RZZE-_NE+=ZA=+—HH Impairment allowance as at

WERE (M 16) 31 December 2024 (Note 16) 5,649

REBEHENIRERS - AF
B{EA FRREDRITHED
FERIEEEFRMIRTT ©

REEEET — AR EERE -
&AM BN FER 5 F RN
BEAFEIEENEEREER
BRACE  WIRIRATHE R E
REBIEETTHE - AEER
BERENEREERE A%
B ARBE2HEHER 2 LA
ROBHEIR - E B RIS
O EER  BEETHREN
REGRREBEEREE
& o BHIEBE R R AT AT 1
BEREEME -

According to the approved investment guidelines,
the Group can only place deposits with note-
issuing banks or banks with a certain minimum
credit rating.

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward-looking views.
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ZRE| A TR IRITHEFR
BRI RRERR  AEZE
& @B E B RAR AIEER
Itk B A B R R E B B 2[R 0
F—FEERM12{E A REEEE
BeFR - REREBENTDE
ZHNRITFEFEMAR - I
BERER_RERRFE=FER -

RZZE—WNE+=—A=+—H
MZTEZ=F+=ZA=+—
H - IEXNHEEHREET
BAA2(IBEELR)  P-2(
H)MF-2(EE) -

i

HFIE

EFREHEBEFRREE
MK MEBEFIEEE
REBES REEERBES

REBEHENIRERS] F5
BERBHFNERERETEIR
EREFENENERES -
EERBERZBR SRR
AME DR EETER R
Ao NIEBBEEREMMAR R
BRRENBOERIRIERE
ROEZREBESNERE T
XEEREMNESLRERE

EEBRRER -

All of these financial assets are considered to be
low risk in view of all deposit banks are rated at
investment grade by rating agencies, and thus
the impairment allowance recognised during the
period was limited to 12-month ECLs for stage 1.
During the year, the increase in the impairment
allowance was mainly due to the increase in
deposits with banks and there was no transfer to
stages 2 and 3.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December
2023, the minimum acceptable short-term
credit ratings are A-2 (Standard and Poor's), P-2
(Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch's).

Investment securities

Investment securities are composed of debt
securities and investment funds, while debt
securities comprise conventional debt securities
and infrastructure-related bonds.

According to the approved investment
guidelines, conventional debt securities can only
be invested with a certain minimum credit rating.
The proportion of investments according to rating
categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.
Investment in infrastructure-related bonds which
are secured by project assets and other typical
security package for infrastructure financing, is
governed and monitored by IFSIC.



RIFINERE &R RS R RT AR
(RELR BakEE)RE
RINEHME B R R B IR L AR
RBEETH AR - T
REBRMREEE F LT ER
BT - MFBHARH LB
ERMBITHE  MIRAESE

The table below presents an analysis of debt
securities by rating classification as at the end
of the reporting period, based on external credit
rating agency’s ratings (Standard and Poor’s,
Moody's and Fitch’s) or internal ratings based
on the rating models provided by external credit
rating agency. In the absence of issue-specific

TARGERE MW ° ratings, the ratings for the issuers are reported.
UAFERE R AR A
STAHMEE JIIRMEHRRE
KEHNEHRE Investment
Investment  securities at
securities at amortised Fob ]
FVOCI cost Total
R-ZE-_WME+=-A=+—H FTHERT TART THET
As at 31 December 2024 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA /Aaa AAA/Aaa 182,621 665,399 848,020
AA-Z AA+/ A3 ZE Aal AA-to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1 2,745,410 6,790,367 9,535,777
A-EA+/A3EAT A-to A+/A3 t0 A1 793,790 7,153,171 7,946,961
BBB* BBB* - 501,383 501,383
axE Total 3,721,821 15,110,320 18,832,141
3 HEiZEBES @ Infrastructure-related bonds

AT EZE TR SHRK AR

B FIRHEHIEE

A B AEIR Investment

Investment securities at
securities at amortised Rk
FVOCI cost Total
R_E-_=F+_-_A=+—H FHTT FHT FHET
As at 31 December 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA Aaa AAA/Aaa = 395,913 395,913
AA-Z AA+/Aa3 E Aal AA-t0 AA+/Aa3 t0 Aa1 1,622,326 3,878,862 5,501,188
A-EA+/A3ZEAT A- 10 A+/A3 t0 A1 887,211 10,303,881 11,191,092
Fak ] Total 2,509,537 14,578,656 17,088,193
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TREBCHERRERBENE
FREMEERBRA T - X
N TEESBREE _ERLSE

The following table contains an analysis of the
credit risk exposure of investment securities
for which impairment allowance is recognised.

=REER o There was no transfer to stages 2 and 3 during
the period.
E—RE ERE E=RE wEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
R-ZB-ME+=-A=+—H TERT TERT TERT FTHET
As at 31 December 2024 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IREEE Gross carrying amount
— DRAFEEZ{ A —FVOC
Hith 2 HE = 3,721,821 - - 3,721,821
— JREE S R AN B R — amortised cost 15,110,320 - - 15,110,320
B Impairment allowance
— B ARTIIR — amortised cost (4,850) - = (4,850)
IREE Carrying amount
— ARAFEZEFA  —FVOCI
Hih 2 HE = 3,721,821 - - 3,721,821
— JR SE K AT iR — amortised cost 15,105,470 - - 15,105,470
18,827,291 - - 18,827,291
E—EER E B E=PEER 45
NERCH Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RZZEZ=F+-fA=+—8H FHET FET FHET FHT
As at 31 December 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IRERE Gross carrying amount
—UAFEEEA —FVOCl
H 2 EKE 2,509,537 - - 2,509,537
— RE R AR — amortised cost 14,578,656 - - 14,578,656
RE R Impairment allowance
— TR SER AT IR — amortised cost (4,677) = = @,671)
IREE Carrying amount
—UAFEEEA —FVOCl
H 2 EKE 2,509,537 - - 2,509,537
— RE R ATIIR — amortised cost 14,573,985 - - 14,573,985
17,083,522 - - 17,083,522
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RZZE-_NFE+=-A=+—H
B 75 5 15 A L 1B 6 4 B B T 0RL

BEREZHIRAT

The impairment allowance for investment securities
as at 31 December 2024 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

E—MEE EZIEE B HE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

TAT TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-Z-=%—HF—H
R BB B

Impairment allowance
as at 1 January 2023

— AAFEZ{EEA —FVOC
Hih 2 mEz= 398 - - 398
— REHERATR  —amortised cost 4,582 - - 4,582
HARNERERN Change in the impairment
EREE allowance recognised in
profit or loss during the
period
— AFEZETA  —FVOCI (Note 14)
H 2 E s
(PFigE14) 477 - = 477
— IR R AT — amortised cost
(BHizE14) (Note 14) 89 = - 89
R-ZZE-_=%F+=H Impairment allowance
=+—BERHMERE asat31December 2023
— AAFEEZ{EEA —FVOC
Hih2mz= 875 - - 875
— IR SR AR — amortised cost
(BzE21(0) (Note 21(c)) 4,671 - - 4,671
HRR B R R Change in the impairment
REREE allowance recognised in
profit or loss during the
period
— UAFEZ{LET A —FVOCI (Note 14)
H b2 mEilas
(FiFaE14) 147 - - 147
— B ABIE  —amortised cost
(PffE14) (Note 14) 179 - - 179
R-Z-m&£+=H Impairment allowance
=+—HHRMERHE asat 31 December
2024
— UAFEEL — Fvocl
STAHEMEZmEKE 1,022 - - 1,022
— REGERARGIE  — amortised cost
(BiFEE21(c)) (Note 21(c)) 4,850 - - 4,850
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() BEBHEAAXT|RNEFRE

12 B 55 pX AN 51 i B9 78 55
REBRETRIELT
BEHESF -R-_T_MN
FH+-A=+—B8E
B 55 A AN D1 IR B 7B 5 4R
BOR B 1 1 2 B U)RL (B
BASHIRAT -

() Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities at amortised cost
include listed and unlisted debt securities. The
impairment allowance on investment securities
at amortised cost as at 31 December 2024
reconciles to the opening impairment allowance
as follows:

FTExT
HK$'000

R-E-=F—H—BHFERAE Impairmentallowance as at 1 January 2023 4,582
HARERERRREREEE Change in the impairment allowance
(FFEE14) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 14) 89
R-ZBE-_=F+_"A=+—HH Impairment allowance as at 31 December
BB (FTEE21(c)) 2023 (Note 21(c)) 4,671
HINR B ER AR EREE Change in the impairment allowance
(PfizE14) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 14) 179
R-ZZE-_HWFE+=-A=1+—HH Impairment allowance as at 31
WER M (M 21(c) December 2024 (Note 21(c)) 4,850

AEEDEY —EEE
B ZEEENEE
RXZHFHOINBEERF
R ABDEEFR(RE
SMNERIE B AT AR R IR
M RFARIEEIAETT) RAEME
MBEEEBELE
YRBATHEERBRE
BBETHE  ARE
HERBNREBERES
B AREERERR
B = AR E 1R
% WERBEMERE
HHEER EEET
AREMEEERSE R
HAERBEERL 2l
EMERABAE LS
EEEME o

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating or
internal credit rating (based on rating model
provided by external credit rating agency) of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward-looking views.
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(ii)

All of these investment securities carried at
amortised cost are considered with no significant
increase in credit risk as at 31 December 2024,
and thus the impairment allowance recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2024 was limited
to 12-month ECLs under Stage 1. During the
year, the increase in the impairment allowance
was mainly due to the increase in investment
securities at amortised cost.

Investment securities at FVOCI

Investment securities at FVOCI include listed
and unlisted debt securities. The impairment
allowance on investment securities at FVOCI as
at 31 December 2024 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

FHT
HK$°000

R-EBE_=%—HF—H

TA EL A 2 T W o e 8 M O L R £
HIATME s iR MR E B (R

(F&E14)

Impairment allowance recognised

RZE_=F+-_A=+—H
R E b 2 B S FE R R R B B
HIRRIE S ERE R E R EE S

(fizE14)

R-ZE_WFE+=-A=+—H
REM2E W SRR E R E

in OCl as at 1 January 2023 398
Change in the impairment allowance

recognised in profit or loss during the

period (Note 14) 477
Impairment allowance recognised

in OCI as at 31 December 2023 875
Change in the impairment allowance

recognised in profit or loss during the

period (Note 14) 147
Impairment allowance recognised

in OCI as at 31 December 2024 1,022
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REBEBRHREEBRE - 8
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EEHREANE L RBEHEE
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ERTEEB A HIE =155 (A
B EARRBR) MR
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REBBRER  MIEXREBZR
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B 92RETEEEHRA
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The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward-looking views.

All of these financial assets are considered to
be low risk in view of all investment securities
at FVOCI are rated at investment grade by rating
agencies, and thus the impairment allowance
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2024 was limited to 12-month ECLS under Stage 1.
During the year, the increase in the impairment
allowance was mainly due to the increase in
investment securities at FVOCI.

In preparing the ECL, Credit Committee had formed
three forward-looking views (that is good, normal and
bad) based on market conditions, real economies
and a designated period of historical macroeconomic
variables to formulate the probability rating for three
scenarios (that is optimistic, base and pessimistic)
under each forward-looking view. The good view
assumed a high probability of optimistic scenario
outcome whereas the bad view assumed a high
probability of pessimistic scenario outcome. A
designated period of historical data that covers peaks
and troughs of economic cycles were selected to
ensure the selection of scenarios stays unbiased.
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The weightings assigned to each economic
scenario, base, pessimistic and optimistic as at
31 December 2024, were maintained at the same
weightings as at 31 December 2023 in view of
market conditions, for the Group’s infrastructure
loans, deposits and debt investments, of which
the impairment allowance is provided based on
credit ratings (either external or internal) and
forms the majority of total impairment allowance.

Sensitivity analysis of ECL

The Group applies three alternative macro-
economic scenarios (base, pessimistic and
optimistic scenarios) on the forward-looking
views to reflect probability-weighted range
of possible future outcomes in estimating
ECL. The table below provides approximate
levels of provisions of impairment under the
normal, bad and good forward-looking views
for the infrastructure loans, deposits and debt
investment portfolio of the Group:

2024 2023
EHREHEE EHRBHEE

EESEHLHE EEEH SR
Amount Amount
change from

change from

the reported ECL the reported ECL

FH&xT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
#hn, (i) #hn,/Crid)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

TEEEEEE : ECL:
— EREX — normal view (32,965) (16,541)
— RrEE — bad view - _
— RIFEE — good view (39,200) (20,078)
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(H ERFTFAFEARFREME (H  Maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
EREEMRERT AEES assets of the Group before taking into account of
B EN RS =B R EER collateral held or other credit enhancements are
EARFENES - equal to their gross carrying amounts.
@ EEREER (g Credit-impaired loans
2024 2023
THET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
WEERAES AR Gross impaired loan portfolio 2,221 2 441
BB EFRE Allowance for loan impairment in
BiE— F=EER respect of such advances — Stage 3 (1,594) (1,347)
627 1,094
WoZE-—pmEt+r—A=+—08 There were no credit-impaired loans for the
R-_E-—=&+-A=+— residential mortgage portfolio as at 31 December
H RREERELEE 2024 and 31 December 2023. Allowance for loan
B AE S o B R E B impairment is assessed after taking into account
B DEERRAEASSES of collateral held for impaired loans.
@ -
y  KEmE (n)  Repossessed properties
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The Group obtained assets by taking possession
of collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce
the outstanding indebtedness and are classified
in the statement of financial position within “Other
assets”. If excess funds arise after repayment
of the outstanding indebtedness, they are
distributed to the beneficiaries of the assets
under the applicable laws.
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued and
assets by the use of cross-currency swaps as fair value
hedges and economic hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results
of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.
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A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income under
different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative
impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis points parallel
downward shift of the interest rate curve as at 31 December
2024 would increase the future net interest income for the
next twelve months by less than HK$1 million (2023: less
than HK$1 million) and decrease by less than HK$1 million
(2023: less than HK$1 million) for a similar upward parallel
shift.

As at 31 December 2024, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been higher by around HK$30 million
(2023: HK$39 million) and the fair value reserve would have
been higher by around HK$20 million (2023: HK$14 million) as
at 31 December 2024. If interest rates had experienced a 20
basis points parallel shift upwards, profit for the year would
have been lower by HK$30 million (2023: HK$39 million) and
the fair value reserve would have been lower by around
HK$19 million (2023: HK$14 million).

As at 31 December 2024, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$14 million higher (2023:
HK$10 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$14
million lower (2023: HK$10 million).

As at 31 December 2024, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than US
dollars, profit for the year would have been higher by HK$0.2
million (2023: HK$0.5 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong
dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest points against
foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit for the year
would have been lower by HK$0.2 million (2023: HK$0.5
million).

300 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



7K 52 B T i (R 1N PR < 7 3K ] R R A
BEAMNPEER - B R ERE TR
BFEE(EHATHREEREHRSE
HEfREER—AEFHET  MEH
BEESNERGNRE= A A sk
F)e R-_E-_ME+_A=+—
HEARFERNRRE EA T
0.1% * fEFTE H Ath A & F RIRIF T
WIERT  EASERAINEES
TR A #3510, 5 2> 493,800 &
BIL(ZE =4 : 34008%87L) °

RZE-_NWF+=—A=+—8 " &FFR
BHMAZERRRETENERT
MRSHMEBESHERTHKI%
FREMNBFERPHI0EBL(=ZF
Z=F108EBL)c R2 RS
FEEESNER 1% FRE
BB I0BBT(ZTE_=F:
10&B7TT) °

AR TRRBRERE R - EX
RAEEE+ A A BE A RS
BB ST o

T & fh 4 B E) R bR R BRER & 4%
R AR T RER T EDITEHR
Ff3E3.3(C)

@ SRk

AN &= B A 3R 17 51N T 45 I RO
@JiTﬁﬁﬁf%Hjﬁ/}ﬁ&L@uium%m
TEMAERR BEFRRT
AERT AR E B B H)IMNE -
BEEABERLZEGRTEAA
x%%ﬂﬁmmﬁ I B #
TR - ERESE  FHE
%%ﬁ#%TyEf%%%
B AFAAEERETEEE
T AR MK T &
B Rt BMTKBEZEEE
EHNES - FAEINEESY
R TEETT ©

The Group is exposed to financial risk arising from changes
in the rate of return on the placements with the Exchange
Fund, which is set annually (the placements include
Investment Portfolio which rate of return will reset in January
while the return of Long-Term Growth Portfolio will only be
available in March in the following year). As at 31 December
2024, if there were an increase/decrease of 0.1% in the
current year rate of return, it is estimated that, with all
other variables held constant, the Group's income from the
placements with the Exchange Fund would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$38 million (2023: HK$34
million).

As at 31 December 2024, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds had
decreased by 1%, profit for the year would have been around
HK$0.1 million lower (2023: HK$0.1 million). Conversely, if the
price of exchange-traded funds had increased by 1%, profit
for the year would have been around HK$0.1 million higher
(2023: HK$0.1 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month
period.

An analysis showing the impact of interest rate curve
movement on profit before tax and equity driven by
insurance and reinsurance contracts is included in Note
3.3(0).

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars, British
pounds, Australian dollars, Euro and Japanese yen. All
foreign currency-denominated debts are hedged into
Hong Kong dollars or US dollars.
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The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.

B

HKD
TER
HK$'000

xR
usD
TER
HK$'000

Hgshe
Other foreign
currencies
TEx
HK$'000

et
Total
TEx
HK$'000

R-ZE-MF As at 31 December 2024
T=A=t-8H
SHEE Financial assets
BekEHEs Cash and short-term funds 51,641,868 992,467 12,8471 52,647,182
JEMR R B R BE R Interest and remittance
receivables 2,200,462 741,030 279,887 3,221,379
fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 664,618 - - 664,618
BRREAESEERE  Loans with 100% guarantee
MER from the Government 82,782,698 - - 82,782,698
ERAAFE Loan portfolio, net
—URTEREGA  —FPL
B 2,596,858 - - 2,596,858
— IRE R AR — amortised cost 3,539,734 5,511,228 1,066,155 10,117,117
BHEE Investment securities:
—NDATEZGA  —FVOCl
A 2E KR 494,313 2,159,566 1,067,942110 3,721,821
—URATEREFIA  —FWPL
B 1,318 8,456 - 9,774
— REHIATIR — amortised cost 1,846,188 12,277,696 981,586 A 15,105,470
INEESTFH Placements with the Exchange
Fund 49,244,684 = = 49,244,684
ReREMEE Deposits and other assets 71,423 308,900 88 380,411
SHEELE Total financial assets 195,084,164 21,999,343 3,408,505 220,492,012
SRER Financial liabilities
JERTFIE Interest payable 2,454,023 612,558 275,743 3,342,324
EFTIRIE « JEAtRET  Accounts payable, accrued
REMARE expenses and other liabilities 2,210,375 1,922,291 - 4,132,666
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,740,649 - - 1,740,649
BRIERES Debt securities issued 103,576,603 26,302,558  18,420,475** 148,299,636
SHEEAE Total financial liabilities 109,981,650 28,837,407 18,696,218 157,515,275
FRFE Net position? 60,992,512 (6,838,064)  (15,287,713) 38,866,735
BEBERINF Off-balance sheet net notional
BEREY position® (34,136,902) 18,058,822 15,241,661 (836,419)
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Amounts included cash and short-term funds in Australian
dollars of HK$12 million and renminbi of HK$0.4 million.

Amounts included loan portfolio, net at amortised cost in
Australian dollars of HK$1.1 billion.

Amounts included investment securities at FVOCI in renminbi
of HK$1.1 billion.

Amounts included investment securities at amortised cost in
renminbi of HK$0.5 billion and Euro of HK$0.4 billion.

Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$0.6 billion and renminbi of HK$17.6 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.

“Net position” represents the difference between total assets
and total liabilities.

"Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.
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BT

HKD
FET
HK$'000

e
usb
THL
HK$'000

HAoh&
Other foreign
currencies
TET
HK$'000

Total
TET
HK$'000

RZB-=% As at 31 December 2023
+-A=+-H
SRHEE Financial assets
BekEfge Cash and short-term funds 49,456,858 2,326,572 37,6217 51,821,051
JEMH B K [ 50 Interest and remittance
receivables 1,756,009 1,123,738 490,631 3,370,378
fTHEERMTA Derivative financial instruments 828,542 - - 828,542
B2 AD BEE  Loans with 100% guarantee from
HER the Government 97,362,356 - = 97,362,356
ERHEAFE Loan portfolio, net
—UAFEEEGIA  —FVPL
B& 1,907,045 - = 1,907,045
— B ERANTIR  —amortised cost 3,523,735 5,520,608 1,186,074/1 10,230,417
BHEE Investment securities:
—UATEELEA  —FVOCl
Hip 2 - 1,785,727 723,810 2,509,537
—UATESLGTA  —FVPL
Bs 1,308 8,562 = 9,870
— B ERCRTIR  —amortised cost 3,709,195 9,378,134 1,486,656MA 14,573,985
INEEESTFR Placements with the
Exchange Fund 34,070,393 = = 34,070,393
BeREMEE Deposits and other assets 1,050,545 523,531 91 1,574,167
SREELS Total financial assets 193,665,986 20,666,872 3,924,883 218,257,741
SRIBE Financial liabilities
&2 Interest payable 2,153,898 1,057,906 472,611 3,684,415
FERTIRIE - FEETRIS K Accounts payable, accrued
HiaE expenses and other liabilities 3,067,433 1,040,036 - 4,107,469
TESRIE Derivative financial instruments 2,825,522 - - 2,825,522
BRIEEES Debt securities issued 105,581,434 30,424,259* 25,712,804%% 161,718,497
TRARLESE Total financial liabilities 113,628,287 32,522,201 26,185,415 172,335,903
R FE Net position® 61,242,817 (11,855,329)  (22,260,532) 27,126,956
EEERINE Off-balance sheet net notional
LEEAY positiont (44,000,532) 20,124,483 22,221,762 (1,654,287)
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A Amounts included cash and short-term funds in Australian
dollars of HK$34 million and renminbi of HK$4 million.

AN Amounts included loan portfolio, net at amortised cost in
Australian dollars of HK$1.2 billion.

AAN- Amounts included investment securities at amortised cost in
renminbi of HK$1.5 billion.

S Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

* Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$1.2 billion and renminbi of HK$24.3 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.

# “Net position” represents the difference between total assets
and total liabilities.

# “Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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—-@ANE  ZEANL —-ENE
ZZfA E-f ik FitE
—fiARn Over Over Over BENE Non-

Upto 1monthto 3monthsto  1yearto Over interest ]
1month 3 months 1year 5 years 5 years hearing Total
T Thn Tn Thn TEn Tén Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE-MET=A=1-A As at 31 December 2024

SREE Financial assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 24,421,783 27,881,330 - - - 344,069 52,647,182
JEUHIE RER Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 339 3221319
fiEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 664,618 664,618
BRREBSBEROER Loans wit 100% guarantee
from the Government 82,782,698 - - - - - 82,782,698
ERESFE Loan portfolio, net
—UATERHAER —FVPL 225,843 - - 33,034 2,337,981 - 2,596,858
— B SR — amortised cost 5,383,365 2,077,927 2,062,443 340 593,042 - 10,117,117
EFRE Investment securiies:
—ATERGIALZARE  —FVOC 212,175 233,278 592,321 2,526,782 97,265 - 3721821
—WATERGH AR —FVPL - - - - - 9774 9,774
— R AT — amortised cost 504,668 1,285,373 2,169,752 8,698,347 2,447,330 - 15,105,470
NEESRH Placements with the
Exchange Fund - - - - - 49,244,684 49,244,684
REREMEE Deposits and other assets 308,854 - - - - 71,557 380,411
SREESE Total financial assets 113,899,386 31477908 4824516 11258503 5475618 53,556,081 220,492,012
SREE Financial liabilities
FEfTFI8 Interest payable - - - - - 334234 3342324

FERTIRIE - ERtEI RAMEE  Accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabiliies 2,530,790 - - -

1601876 4,132,666

fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1740649 1,740,649
BEERES Debt securities issued 4209731 25292645 34,290,741 77,962,455 6,544,064 - 148,299,636
SRABLE Total financial liabilities 6,740,521 25,292,645 34,290,741 77,962,455 6,544,064 6,684,849 157,515,275
FlEsRERDESE Total interest sensitivity gap* 107,158,865 6,185,263  (29,466,225) (66,703,952) (1,068,446

HEGETE(BASEMLELE)  Interest rate derivatives (notional
amounts of net position) (9,833,311) (12,905912)  8,088484 11,677,601 2,136,719

* Rt APTE SR T AHB T & Before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
BB FETCENTE - on the debt securities issued.
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E-E ERf A&
—f@ARRA Qver RENE Non-
Upto  Tmonthto  3monthsto 1yearto Over Interest
1 month 3months 1 year 5years 5Yyears bearing Total
T T T T Thr ThL
HKS'000 HKS'001 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000
WZBZ=F+tZR=1-H As at 31 December 2023
SREE Financial assets
ReREES Cash and short-term funds 16,105,303 35,279,605 - - - 136,143 51,821,051
A8 RER Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 3,310,378 3,370,378
fELBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 828,542 828,512
BRREFH BERNER Loans with 100% guarantee
from the Government 97,362,3% - - - - - 97,3623%
EFAAEE Loan portfolio, net
—WATEE A AER —FVPL 123982 = = 10478 1772625 = 1907,045
— B AT iR — amortised cost 5,760,482 2,705,732 1,150,741 43 573019 = 10,230417
BARRE Investment securities:
—UATER(GEARR2ENE  —ROC = 93,768 86,418 2,054,381 214970 = 2,509,537
—NATER G ARR —FVPL - - - - - 9870 9870
— BB AT IR — amortised cost 78,081 651,720 5,165,533 5,504,348 3,174,303 = 14,573,985
NEESRR Placements with the
Exchange Fund - - - - - 34070393 34070393
RERAMEE Deposits and other assets 523485 - - - - 1,050,682 1,574,167
SHEELE Total financial assets 119,953,649 38,770825 6,402,692 7,569,650 5,794,917 39,766,008 218,257,741
HAR Financial liabiltes
T HIS, Interest payable - - - - - 3,684,415 3684415
FERIRE - EsrBI RAMEE  Accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabiltties 2,761,647 - - - - 1,345,822 4,107,469
fTEeRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 280552 2825522
BETERER Debt securities issued 2,833208 50,261,710 55,784,241 49,158,797 3,680,541 - 161718497
PHAREE Total financial liabilities 5,994,855 50,261,710 95,784,241 49,158,797 3,680,541 7855759 172335903
HegEERDEE: Total interest sensitivity gap* 114,358,794 (11490885  (49.381549)  (41,589,147) 2114376
MEGETE(BESEMLEEE)  Interest rate derivatives (notional
amounts of net position) (6499,036) (15610349 5057,665 15,596,706 (199.273)
* Rt ALTES B T AN 31T * Before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

BEBHFEESHNTE - on the debt securities issued.
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€ RERBREEANIEER (c) Interest rate risk on insurance and reinsurance
contracts
LA D4 TR AT B HAth & 2R The following analysis is performed for reasonably
BAERBER T EHER possible movements in interest rate curve with all
SIRFRE B EET - BRER other variables held constant, showing the impact on
b & BRER & A BB AT &R profit before tax and equity driven by insurance and
MEIERH L © reinsurance contracts.

ARHBITLEB/(TB): HERBiA B R
HEHA  BAGIGRE (BfFE (IR
BAINYE RRINYE RRINYE RRINYE

Impact on

profit  Impact on
Parallel upward/ Impacton  hefore tax equity  Impacton
(downward) shift of profit net of gross of equity net of
interest rate curve; before tax reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
THET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

25 26 25bp 511,664 432,302 659,888 432,302
(25) 225 (25) bp (534,788) (450,211) (695,738) (450,211)

MERERFITLE,/(TH) : HEBA ot e B3 el
HEBAT AT GRS (BB (ks
HMNTE RRINFE FRIOFE RRIWFE

Impact on

profit Impact on
Parallel upward/ Impact on before tax equity Impact on
(downward) shift of profit net of gross of  equity net of
interest rate curve: beforetax  reinsurance  reinsurance  reinsurance
T THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

25 [EEE 25bp 410,267 326,945 502,231 326,945
(25) (E A2 (25) bp (429,464) (340,548) (530,681) (340,548)
ERETHZERSEERR The impact shown in the above table covers entire
HE ER—Ho(FEARZL insurance portfolio, part of which, mainly reverse
EZRBEZ)RAFERASE mortgage loans, are held in the loan portfolio of the

ENEFHEAFEES o Group at fair value.
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3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and
the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources
of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

(@ Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on
a net basis, derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis, and insurance liabilities by
remaining contractual maturities as at the end of the
reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the tables
are the projected contractual undiscounted cash flows
including future interest, claims and benefits payments
as appropriate on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
Cross currency swaps and currency forwards that will
be settled on gross basis.
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() ETETERERAGRE) ()  Non-derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

=EARL -ENE
2-F BRE
—fBARK Oover Over Over RENE

Upto  1monthto 3 monthsto 1 year to Over &g
1month 3 months 1year 5 years 5 years Total
TiEn TiEn TR TiEn TiEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W-Z2-MmE+=A=+-H  Asat31December 2024

af Liabilities
EMRE - EiRIR Accounts payable,

EfaE accrued expenses

and other liabilities

—REAE — lease liablties (4,648) (9.297) @183 (131327) (5757)  (192,3866)
RRaHEE Instrance contract iabilities (132,437)  (244,006)  (1,112,028)  (5,645880) (27,442,513) (34,576,864)
BREANAR Reinsurance contract liabilties (1,115) (2,233) (6,256) (54156)  (275:869)  (339,629)
BRIERES Debt securities issued

— 58D — principal portion (3,912,281) (23,421,321) (35,032,647) (79,729,622)  (6,697,163) (148,793,034)
— 55 — nterest portion (198971)  (1,899,583)  (3491,350)  (6784,746)  (1,628,996) (14,003,646)

(4,249,452)  (25,576,440) (39,684,118)  (92,345,731)  (36,050,298) (197,906,039)

A —Ep b
fa ZhE
—f@AR Over Over Over RENE

Upto Tmonthto  3monthsto 1yearto QOver
1 month 3months 1 year 5years 5years
AT T TAT AL TEL
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W=B-=%+-A=+—H  Asat31December 2023

Ak Liabilities
EMEE R R Accounts payable,

iR accrued expenses

and other liabilities

—HEAR — ease liabilities (2,3%9) (8716) (34,671) (147 456) (28783) (217,984)
ReatERE Insurance contract liabilities 1,209 (272,381) (745731)  (4109907)  (20584,627)  (25711943)
BREBAVAR Reinsurance contract liabilities 4,570 (987) (4,380) (21,693 (65,158) (87,648)
BETELES Debt securities issued

X — principal portion (1834,661)  (46,322548)  (57,514,499) (51,818 468) (3870511)  (161,360,687)

—HEHA — interest portion (126337 (2380489 (3430233 (3684544 (1351395  (10,97299)

(1957,577)  (48,981,627)  (61,729514)  (59,782,068)  (25,900,474)  (198,351,260)
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iy PTEIERERACRit) (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

—fEANE  ZERME —ENE
Z=f@R B-F gt
AR Over over Over RENE

Upto  1monthto 3 monthsto 1 year to Over ok
1month 3 months 1year 5 years 5 years Total
TER TAn TAR TER AR TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZB-mE+=F=+-8  Asat31December 2024

BT R ELEEH Derivative financial
ITESRTA: instrument settled:
—BREHRE —0n net basis (193,100) (3,649) 68,577 (205,674) (18,883) (352,729)
—BEaE — 0N gross hasis
ikt Total outflow (2,612,157)  (9,358,072) (14,355,600) (37,833,127)  (4,442,210) (68,601,166)
MALE Total inflow 2,399,452 9,241,245 14,218,156 37,971,719 4323924 68,154,496

(405,805) (120,476) (68,867) (67,082) (137,169) (799,399)

—Ep
A 5 E¥ik
—fAARA Over Over Over

Upto  1Tmonthto  3monthsto 1year to 0
1 month 3months 1year 5years 5years Total

AT TiEn TR

] AL TR TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'0

00 HKS'000 HKS'000

WZZE-=F+-A=t—-H  Asat31December 2023

BTSIRELEH Derivative financial
ITESRTE: instrument settled:
—FERE — on et basis (160,101) 8970 3622 (57,049) (35.299) 124,805
— Rk —on gross hasis
iojurtic Total outflow (980,472 (30720341)  (11,389.820)  (32.812,102) (2870885 (78,773,620)
MABE Total inflow 892,614 30,301,411 11,047,507 32,766,483 2883 774 77,891,789

(247,959) (427,900) 4391 (102,668) (22410 (757,026)
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(b) (b)  Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.

R=B-mET=A=+-H

As at 31 December 2024

ISR
Repayable

on demand
TET
HK$'000

—-f8RRk
Upto
1 month
TET
HK$'000

-BANE
Z=fA
Over

1 month to
3 months
T
HK$'000

ZEANL
2-F

Over

3 months to
1 year
T
HK$'000

—ENE
E3ik3
Over
1yearto
5 years
T
HK$'000

IFENULE
Over

5 years
THT
HK$'000

ERH
Undated
TR
HK$'000

aE
Total
TR
HK$'000

EE Assets
REREHAS (188) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 913,754 23,854,077 27,885,000 - - - - 52,652,831
BRRERS BERNER Loans with 100% guarantee
from the Government 42,060 1179226 1,803,777 8,549,097 41,141,100 30,067,438 - 82,782,698
EFaES Loan portfolio
—NATEE(GARR —FVPL - - - - - - 2,596,858 2,596,858
— REH AR (88) — amortised cost (gross) 312 126069 118207 632746 3,811,014  5490,076 335 10,178,759
BHRE Investment securities
—NAFERIALMRERE —ROC - 155098 - 592321 2877137 97,265 - 371821
— WATES( A ER —FVPL - - - - - - 9,774 9,774
— B ATR (88) — amortised cost (gross) - 232882 8584 2,292,098 9,823,178 2,753,578 - 15,110,320
SHEESHEH Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - 377157 14,743,389 30,730,138 - 49,244,684
956,126 25,547,352 29,815,568 15,837,419 72,395818 69,138,495 2,606,967 216,297,745
1 Liabilities
BRIERES Debt securities issued - 3,909,800 23373275 35090701 79,381,796 6,544,064 - 148,299,636
- 3909800 23373275 35090701 79,381,796 6,544,064 - 148,299,636
E
ESikS
HE3E  —fERR Over  REMNE
Repayable Upto  Tmonthto 3monthsto  1yearto Over ERH it
on demand Tmonth  3month 1year 5 years 5years Undated Total
BT THT BT T T T i TAn
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
RZE-=F+-F=1-H As at 31 December 2023
AE Assets
BeRRHES (88) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 118772 15413817 35,282,609 - - - - 51825198
BRRERABEROER Loans with 100% guarantee
from the Government 46,102 1,075,873 1816511 9651688 49444714 35327468 - 97,362,35%
EZa4 Loan portfolio
—RATEE( AR —FVPL - - - - - - 1907045 1,907,045
— REHRATIR(48) — amortised cost (gross) 919 116,963 159,081 507763 4066023 540562 22 10256637
BERE Investment securities
—KATER(: —Rvocl - - 93768 848 2,054,381 24,970 - 2509537
— NATHER(AR —FVPL - - - - - - 9870 9870
— REHRATIR(48) — amortised cost (gross) - 78,083 558082 5166848 5600134 3175509 - 15786%
NEESER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - 619546 12958372 14921475 - 34070393
1175793 1668473 37910051 21603263 74123624 59105048 1917177 212519692
2 Liabilities
BRIERES Debt securities issued - 2833208 46240752 57084223 51879773 3680541 - 161718497
- 2833208 46240752 57084223 1879773 3680541 - 161,718,497

312 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



Bk Latsh - e B R -
BNFEREMEE - B
B BARE . BRAXRE
HRBEEE RAKEZ®HA
MR+ @A RKRE S E
& MERAMBRRKRNE
WEEMAE  RBEHH2R
BHMEFRER T —EAT 6
WEIHEE -

Uboh - SNERS B - T -FF
RARBBBEREERFRAA
SEIRMHB0EETRIREE -
EEZHEAREAEREL
BRETREFREE  AM
FRBMBEITRETBRITR
T RIS E HI(ERS ©

Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current tax liabilities are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from the reporting date.
Other assets and liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$80 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility since 2020,
which enables the Group to maintain smooth operation
under exceptional circumstances, so that it can better
fulfil its mandate to promote banking and financial
stability in Hong Kong.
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3.5. Risks arising from insurance contracts

(@)

Insurance contracts and reinsurance contracts

Through its general insurance subsidiary, the Group
provides mortgage insurance cover to participating
lenders for first credit losses, in general, of up to 50%
of the property value of a residential mortgage loan in
Hong Kong with loan-to-value ratio 90% or below at
origination, or other thresholds as specified from time
to time. The general insurance subsidiary also provides
insurance cover in respect of reverse mortgage loans
originated by participating lenders and secured on
residential properties and, if applicable, other assets,
and in respect of policy reverse mortgage loans
originated by participating lenders and secured on
life insurance policies. Through its life subsidiary, the
Group offers annuity product to personal customers.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By
the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is
random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory
of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance
contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying
amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims are greater
than estimated. Insurance events are random and the
actual number and amount of claims and benefits will
vary from year to year from the estimate established
using statistical technigues.
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Accordingly, the main risks that the Group is exposed
to are, as follows:

o property price risk — risk of outstanding loan is
higher than value of collateral;

. mortality risk — risk of loss arising from the
incidence of policyholder death being later than
expectation;

3 expense risk — risk of loss arising from expense
experience being different from expectation;

. loan default risk — risk of default of repayment
to mortgage loan; and

3 policyholder decision risk (non-death termination)
— risk of loss arising due to policyholder
experiences (lapses and surrenders) being
different from expectation.

The Group aims to ensure that sufficient reserves are
available to cover the liabilities associated with the
insurance that it issues. The risk exposure is mitigated
by diversification across the portfolios of insurance
contracts. The variability of risks is also improved by
careful selection and implementation of underwriting
strategy guidelines, as well as the use of outwards
reinsurance arrangements. In addition, the assumptions
are reviewed regularly with regular experience studies
conducted.
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The Group purchases reinsurance as part of its risk
mitigation measures. The reinsurance contract is quota
share reinsurance which is taken out to reduce the
overall exposure of the Group to certain classes of
business. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in @ manner consistent with the underlying
insurance contract liabilities and in accordance with
the reinsurance contracts.

The Group's placement of reinsurance is diversified as
far as practicable to avoid being dependent on a single
reinsurer or a single reinsurance contract. The Group
conducts comprehensive assessment including the
financial strength and credit ratings of the reinsurers in
accordance with the reinsurance policy under the Risk
Management Framework. The approved reinsurers are
subject to periodic reviews.

The Group monitors closely and review regularly on
the exposure to key insurance risks. The nature of the
Group’s exposure to insurance risks and its objectives,
policies and processes used to manage and measure
the risks have not changed from the previous period.
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Sensitivities

The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact
(gross and net of reinsurance held) on CSM, profit
before tax and equity for reasonably possible
movements in key assumptions with all other
assumptions held constant. The correlation of
assumptions will have a significant effect in determining
the ultimate impacts, but to demonstrate the impact
due to changes in each assumption, assumptions
had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be
noted that movements in these assumptions are non-
linear. Sensitivity information will also vary according

to the current economic assumptions.

FERRBAN

Insurance contracts issued

HRRAER  BREARR Hign Hign
(HERBRR) (BRERR) (NRERR) (BEERR)
BREL* NEE (2§ nEE 2 S

Impacton  Impacton  Impacton Impact
profit before  profit before equity on equity
Changein  taxnetof tax gross of net of gross of
HK$'000 assumptions* reinsurance  reinsurance  reinsurance  reinsurance

NEERERBAL Property price growth
percentage -05%  (1,747,881)  (1,795057)  (1,486,789)  (1,426,673)
A Mortality rates -10.0% (784,932) (785,090) (706,880) (678,761)
(53 Expenses #00% (101587 (101,587) (96,653) (96,653)
ENE Default rates +10.0% (2,988) (3,371) (2,907) (3,281)
FRTLRIEE Non-death termination rates +10.0% 13,254 13,238 11,259 10,287

Insurance contracts issued

\mpacton \mpacton Impact on \mpacton

profitbefore ~ profit before equity equity
Change in taxnetof  taxgrossof net of gr0ss of
HK$'000 assumptions*  reinsurance  reinsurance  rensurance  reinsurance

NEEREREAL Property price growth
percentage 05% (1,701,190 (1,703 495) (1,470,814) (1,377,094)
RER Mortality rates -10.0% (674,531) (674,797) (619.132) (699,680)
% Expenses +10.0% (62,465) (62,528) (58,079) (58,143)
ek apd Default rates +10.0% (2.654) (2953 (2484) (2,765)
R LR Non-death termination rates +10.0% 11,592 11,581 10,292 9708

* J:i%ﬁﬁﬂﬁx& ST ERE *

The impact on change in the assumptions shown in the above

table covers entire insurance portfolio, part of which, mainl
(EBAREZRBER) KA POTHONO, v maiy
ERAE B M E %A A F ?_if_ reverse mortgage loans, are held in the loan portfolio of the
Ao Group at fair value.

BEERRES - HEP—*B
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3.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(@) Fair value estimation

The following table shows financial instruments
recognised at fair value, by valuation method.

5-F A= e ol -] £E F=[
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level2 Level3
iR TEr TER iR THL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
&E Assets
fAESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 664,618 - 664,618 - 828,542 - 808,542
BFEAEE Loan portfolio, net
—URTER{ABR —FWPL - - 259858 2,596,858 - - 1,907,045 1,907,045
FHRE Investment securities
—UATER{GA  —FOC
E2ENE 3,605,206 116,615 - 378 2,509,537 - - 2,509,537
—HATEREFA  —FPL
B 9774 - - 9,774 9870 = = 9870
NEELER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - 19,244,684 49,244,684 - - 34070393 34070393
3,614,980 781,233 51,841,542 56,237,755 2,519,407 828,542 35,977,438 39,325,387
&ff Liabilities
FESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 1,740,649 - 1,740,649 - 2,825,522 - 2825522

RAEE  E—BHE_EW
SBTAZMLEEHE - I
EEARBL B -

) SH—EWe@ITA

RIERM SR 50T R’
TA EAFEERE
BERHNMSRE -
mEMSEREAIART S
Ho A FE B R 5 B
RHE BRI TEW
T TERFEEBNKE
ERBIRGHRE Mz
SEMARBAFELE
ERMERET SR
5 MRBAFEFE
MEEXBES @S
AEBMELE E&E@
BEEEZEHEANKEE
RERQFENER &
ZARGEAFE- M
ERTARNBREES

— & o
=

There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 nor
transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm'’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.
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Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps,
currency swaps and currency forwards. These
derivatives are fair valued using forward interest
rates and forward exchange rates, if applicable,
from observable yield curves.

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.
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(iii)

Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

Loan portfolio at FVPL

Certain loan portfolio accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss at consolidation level is
included in Level 3 with fair value determined
by using an internal model based on income
approach by discounting future cash flows
which are dependent on the expected terms
of the loans, annuity payout, premium and
interest income, loan repayment and the value of
collaterals (for example, the residential properties
or insurance policies securing the loans). The
Group is exposed mainly to collateral risk arising
from drop in residential property price. The
information of sensitivity to long term property
price growth assumption is included in Note
3.5(b).

IMNEE B TFFK Placements with the Fxchange Fund
ANEBEZET AEE The placements with the Exchange Fund,
E’J INE RS TFRETAFE accounted under fair value through profit or loss,
“EEQAFELZ2ER are included in Level 3 with fair value determined
S REFEREEFREE by reference to the principal amount and the
TE ° estimated rates of investment return.
FZESRITAENAQFE Movement in Level 3 fair value measurement as
B 22FHU0T follows:
2024
UAFELIEFA HNEEE NAT NEES
BRENERAES B EaMETAA T3
Loan Placements with Loan  Placements with
portfolio  the Exchange portfolio the Exchange
at FVPL Fund at FVPL Fund
TR TEL TEL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
w—A—H Asat 1 January 1,907,045 34,070,393 1,225,736 32,798 933*
RUTEERAMME  Gainsand losses recognised in
RER
— B (firsEn) — profit or loss (Note 11) (210,636) 1,374,291 51,532 1,067,546
—HtEE — other liabilities - - = 58,438
&7 Placement - 13,800,000 - 3,395,000
b Withdrawal - - - (3,449 524)*
R Drawdown 942,198 - 642,650 -
B Repayment (40,403) - (12,066) =
H Amortisation (1,346) - (807) -
W“t-A=1-H As at 31 December 2,596,858 49,244,684 1,907,045 34,070,393
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& BT _——F A * Since 2021, the Group has placed on behalf of the

5] 3 LB 2R B U AR 1 Government HK$6 billion with respect to the advance
EEA S AEREAR payment received from the Government for purchasing
BEXEI THERDN loans under 100% Personal Loan Guarantee Scheme
T8 1~ 218 R BT 1 AR (PLGS), of which HK$3 billion has been withdrawn to
OEBT EFER purchase of loans under PLGS for the Government and
EX 301878 7t B BT I8 HK$3.4 billion was withdrawn by the Government in
BREAFEEREIT 2023. As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023,
MER  RZT==%F there is no outstanding balance of the advance payment
BB HEE34 BT © placed with the Exchange Fund or accrued interest.

R-ZZE-_MFE+=A
=t+—BR-_ZT_=F
+=ZA=+—H ' &
FINE B TF IRAITEL
FIBLERRKEST RS o

WHAAFEFENESRHEE (b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
MEENLTE measured at fair value

RZZEZMNF+=—A=+—H The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
RZB_=F+_A=+— instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
B AEEIW KRR T BRI K financial position at their fair values are not materially
BRATEERBZS R IAD different from their fair values as at 31 December
IREEE N FEIREERD 2024 and 31 December 2023 except for the following
@ o bR B IR EME R R FEEE financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
WERIAIN  TRAIEAR and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
FTEAENEHIAZIKRE disclosed below:

B AFERAFERER

7l :

REE kA
Carrying ATE %-5 %-F  Camying R¥{E S-E 5E

amount  Fairvalue Level 1 Level 2 amount  Fairvalue Level 1 Level2
TEn TEr Thx TEn AT T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

SHEE Financial assets
BHRE Investment securiies
— BB AR — amortised cost 15105470 14,820,124 11,614,626 3205498 14573985 14261730 10493866 3,767,364
SRHER Financial liabilities
BRIERES DeDt securities issued 148,299,636 148,086,035 - 148,086,035 161718497 161,602,374 - 161602374
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HErEMmI AR TEREERD
MTTERERRR

(i)

(iii)

The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial

instruments:
RekEiiEs (i)  Cashand short-term funds
ReEREHESBER Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits
THEFR  XRMERRE and are stated net of impairment allowance.
BERIIR - F BT The fair value of floating-rate deposits is the
B FEEAREE - carrying amount. The estimated fair value of

ERFER(FRAEE D
RNBER) Bfa st R FE
TERERRREERER
BEBNERTEEMS
MEREGFHRARE L
MRAETRE - Btk
TFHRORFEHENE
HRIEI(E

BFRER D BERD (ii)

B A RN R E B
HEIR - BT AE R
MWENBERE®EES B
ER MY ESIRBE
B At ERAE
MIEmEASATFENS
BIHET ©

BERMAAFHE (iii)
BRHEA RN R E &
BEHNE - NEDE K
BEZRETEFERETE

Hit - ERAESHIE®R
BAAFENEERMHT -

12 B 55 PR N 51 IR O 78 55
BE

78 7 1B T HIRR R B B
BRI - LB HKA
SR ERBRE 2 AT
BEATERLR XD
BRERNFERER -
i REEERIS B B E L
AIRAABRRBAEE
AR R EERERE
Z B HF e E K E
EN AR BE TS EUE
B E T AR AFE °
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fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
six months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loans with 100% guarantee from the Government

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. With the 100% guarantee provided
by the Government to cover the default loss of
the loans, no impairment allowance is provided.
Therefore, the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities are stated net of
impairment allowance. Fair value for investment
securities at amortised cost is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price quotations, which
are the clean prices. Where this information is
not available, fair value has been estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar
credit, maturity and yield characteristics, or
valuation technigues which maximise the use of
observable market data.



(vii)

(viii)

HibEE

EETERIEAEZHMA
BREENERITERE
HFHEWHRE  EAF
EERIREERE °

BHITIERES

RFELBLENRTS
BEXNFEFE - 2R
AEMHRENES
SERNE MR R HR
B 35 B Wi 2 o b AR 3 R
AR REMBRIG

H o
Ean

HipB (&

HihBEEERR I i
B AR TR
BB (K EE33) &
NF B E AT 8 AT e 3
R E RER (B
RREMBMAS) HEA
FEEREERES °

& WA B % B 5K K% B A
R

FE &I B 1% 98 S R R -
HREHSEZERAR
FHE @A R E sk
BE  EQAFEERE
BHEE ERBHSE
HEAHEF—EAR
Yem - B E HE R E
EMRE -

(Vii)

(viii)

Other assets

These mainly represent receivables from
debt securities issued for settlement after the
reporting date with the fair value approximating
the carrying amount.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on
quoted market prices, which are the clean prices.
For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate
for the remaining term to maturity.

Other liabilities

These mainly represented the guarantee fee
and fund received (net of claims and related
expenses) under the special concessionary
measures of the SFGS (Note 33) and the PLGS,
with the fair value approximating the carrying
amount.

Interest and remittance receivables and interest
payable

Accrued interest is recognised separately with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount
as it is expected to be recovered or settled
within twelve months from the reporting date.
Remittance receivables are expected to be
recovered within one month from the reporting
date with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.
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3.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

o to comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary) and the Insurance Authority for its
insurance subsidiaries,

. to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholder;

o to support the Group's stability and growth,

o to allocate capital in an efficient and risk-based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the
shareholder; and

o to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the management in accordance with the
Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines) issued by
the Financial Secretary, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-
based capital adeqguacy framework. The minimum Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference
to the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. If the
CAR drops to the threshold level of 14%, the Chief Executive
Officer will alert the Executive Directors. If the CAR falls to
12% or below, the Board of Directors will be informed and
appropriate remedial actions will be taken. During the period,
the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set
out in the Guidelines by the Financial Secretary.
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Pursuant to the Guidelines on the CAR, the calculation
basis of capital ratio follows the basis of consolidation for
financial reporting with the exclusion of subsidiaries which
are “regulated financial entities” (e.g. insurance companies).
It is because these entities are supervised by a regulator
and are subject to the maintenance of adequate capital (e.g.
solvency ratio) to support business activities comparable to
those prescribed for banks. The investment cost of these
unconsolidated regulated financial entities is deducted from
the capital base whilst the corresponding related exposures
are also excluded from the calculation of risk-weighted
assets.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR as at the end of the reporting period.

2024 2023

FHExT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

&S (B 5 30) Share capital (Note 30) 26,500,000 14,500,000

et Reserves 9,032,222 8,931,860

B Impairment allowance 71,803 34,837
kR : Deductions:

—REEENBRRINIKRE

— investment in regulated subsidiaries (27,500,000) (15,500,000)

— HAf (640,826) (329,703)
BARERE AR Total capital base 7,463,199 7,636,994
BEARTE R K Capital Adequacy Ratio 19.9% 21.6%
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38. SRS ERESRARBZHE 3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
TREE D RER KB HERE AR The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
MERFIEELHHN S RMEEN DR financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
BE EZTEENBEBEXRGFE the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position but
HEETSOREEUERIANES are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
WA © R A ERFEFFRE similar agreements that cover similar financial instruments.
B TR - RIBGUREMERE ER R The disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross
Bt N & #t o and net amounts, as well as provide additional information

on how such credit risk is mitigated.

2024
HBEEREREHBRRR
GeE% HEneE: Ly #3 2
RREH Related amount Related amount
REE not set off in not set off in
Carrying  the consolidated statement Carrying the consolidated statement
amounts of financial position* amounts of financial position*
onthe ——— onthe
consolidated fT£2BIA consolidated ) a
statementof  Derivative  BEEAR P8+ statement of Derivative
financial financial Cash Net financial financial
position  instruments collateral amount* position instruments collateral
T T T TER BT BT TAT ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
fTESBIEL Positive fair values for
FHATE derivative financial
instruments 664,618 (646,152) (17,552) 914 828,542 (828,542) = =
SRER Financial liabilities
fTESRIEY Negative fair values for
BEATE derivative financial
instruments 1,740,649 (646,152) (297,386) 797111 2,825,522 (828,542) (496,847) 1,500,133

# [HHEEEI R ELRE BN R E G Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the consolidated
e | B FREE TS BAM statement of financial position” represent the amounts of financial
HEEEEIRMIHERORNESRE liabilities/assets position that are subject to netting arrangements or
&/ BESHE- similar agreements including CSA.

* FERIE R R A E R SR BT * Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject
HARNEMEEBF  BWELE to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group's
BHRS5EFEY HIWIEHEEMN counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
TREE BEEANEBEL - position with the Group to offset upon default.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1

4.2

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess ECLS on
a regular basis. In determining ECLS, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition and where appropriate,
default and impairment indicators. It is required to exercise
judgements in making assumptions and estimates to
incorporate relevant information about past events, current
conditions and forecast of economic conditions. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December
2024 is disclosed in Note 20.

Fair value of financial instruments

The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable
market data. However, the placements with the Exchange
Fund are valued on the basis of valuation techniques which
are determined by reference to the estimated rates of
investment return, approximate the carrying value. Details of
the fair value measurement of financial instruments are set
out in Note 3.6.
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4.3 Securitisation of infrastructure loans

For the securitisation of infrastructure loans, the Group
transfers a portfolio of loans to the special purpose entity
(SPE). On consolidation basis, the Group assesses whether
it controls the SPE, and the Group controls the SPE if and
only if the Group has (a) power over the SPE; (b) exposure
or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
SPE; and (c) the ability to use its power over the SPE to
affect the amount of the Group’s returns. If the Group has
existing rights to give the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the SPE, is exposed to variable returns from its
involvement with the SPE and has the ability to affect SPE's
returns through its power over the SPE, consolidation of the
SPE is required.

When performing the consolidation assessment of SPE,
the Group considers its role as collateral manager to act
for the SPE that has a decision-making power which may
impact the returns of SPE. In addition, the Group prepares
a quantitative test to assess whether its exposure to the
variability of returns that would be deemed to have control
over the SPE. Whether the Group has a control over the SPE
and is therefore required to consolidate the SPE depends on
whether the Group has the ability to use its power to affect
the SPE’s returns as a “principal” or an “agent”. Based on the
above analysis, the Group is not required to consolidate the
SPE.

The Group also considers whether the securitised loans
could meet the necessary requirements for derecognition.
Loans are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the loans have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
When the Group neither transfers or retains substantially
all the risks and reward of ownership of a loan and retains
control of the transferred loan, it is required to recognise
the loan to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the loan. Under the continuing involvement approach,
the Group continues to recognise part of the transferred
loan. The Group also recognises continuing involvement
asset and liability, which represents the extent of the
Group's continuing exposure to the risks and reward of the
transferred loan.
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4.4

Insurance and reinsurance contracts

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below. The Group based
its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the consolidated financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

(@) The methods used to measure insurance contracts

The Group primarily uses deterministic projections to
estimate the present value of future cash flows.

The following assumptions were used when estimating
future cash flows:

Mortality

Assumptions are based on standard industry table,
according to the type of contract written. They
reflect historical experience and are adjusted when
appropriate to reflect the Group’s own experiences.
An appropriate, but not excessive, allowance is made
for adverse selection and mortality improvements.
Assumptions are differentiated by policyholder gender
and age.

A decrease in expected mortality rates will increase the

expected claim cost which will reduce future expected
profits of the Group.
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Property price

Assumption are determined based on historical market
performance and long-term projection. A decrease in
the expected level of property price will reduce future
expected profits of the Group.

For Mortgage Insurance Programme, a drop in property
prices, where the collateral value falls below the
outstanding balance of the mortgage loan, will increase
the severity of claims.

For Reverse Mortgage Programme, future property
prices would affect the cash flow projections of the in-
force insurance contracts.

Loan default rate

Loan default rate is according to the best estimate to
the default rate of mortgage loan. They reflect historical
experience and are adjusted when appropriate to
reflect the Group’s own experiences.

An increase in the expected level of loan default rate
will reduce future expected profits of the Group.

Expenses

Operating expenses assumptions reflect the projected
costs of maintaining and servicing in-force policies
and associated overhead expenses. The current level
of expenses is taken as an appropriate expense base,
adjusted for expected expense inflation if appropriate.

An increase in the expected level of expenses will
reduce future expected profits of the Group.

Non-death termination

Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to
non-payment of premiums. Surrenders relate to the
voluntary termination of policies by policyholders.
Policy termination assumptions are determined using
statistical measures based on the Group’s experience
and vary by product type and policy duration.

The cash flows within the contract boundary include an
allocation of overheads directly attributable to fulfilling
insurance contracts. Such overheads are allocated to
groups of contracts using methods that are systematic
and rational, and are consistently applied to all costs
that have similar characteristics.
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FERRREY Insurance contracts isstied

(b) Discount rate

Insurance contract liabilities are calculated by
discounting expected future cash flows at a risk-free
rate, plus an illiquidity premium where applicable.
Risk-free rates are determined by reference to
those inferred from either swap rates or zero-
coupon government bond yields of that currency
(whichever of higher liquidity/market depth). This
method is comparable to the risk-free rate generation
methodology adopted under Hong Kong Risk-Based
Capital (HKRBC) regime. The illiquidity premium is
determined by reference to observable market rates
including corporate debt rates.

Discount rates (forward rates) applied for discounting
of future cash flows are listed below:

BAEH
Portfolio duration

RZB-MET=A=t1-H F_-#+-A=1-H

As at 31 December 2024 As at 31 December 2023
5E 05 plIf:3 NE 1% 5E 0% NE NE

Syears 10years 20years 30years  Tyear  Syears 10years  20years  30years

432%  495%  436%  486%  478%  3B%  499% 3% Ae1%
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N = F — [ FI e o

Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the
compensation that is required for bearing the
uncertainty about the amount and timing of cash flows
that arises from non-financial risk as the insurance
contract is fulfilled. Because the risk adjustment
represents compensation for uncertainty, estimates
are made on the degree of diversification benefits and
expected favourable and unfavourable outcomes in a
way that reflects the Group’s degree of risk aversion.
The Group estimates an adjustment for non-financial
risk separately from all other estimates. The Group
does not consider the effect of reinsurance in the risk
adjustment for non-financial risk of the underlying
insurance contracts.

The risk adjustment was calculated at Group level
and then allocated down to each group of contracts
in accordance with their risk profiles. The Group
determines the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
based on Margin Over Current Estimate (MOCE)
calculation methodology under HKRBC regime.

The MOCE reflects the uncertainty of liability cash
flows related to non-hedgeable risks, and is calibrated
to reflect the 75th percentile confidence level.

The methods and assumptions used to determine the
risk adjustment for non-financial risk were not changed
in 2023 and 2024.
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Amortisation of the CSM

The CSM is a component of the asset or liability for
the group of insurance contracts that represents the
unearned profit the Group will recognise as it provides
services in the future. An amount of the CSM for a
group of insurance contracts is recognised in profit or
loss as insurance revenue in each period to reflect the
insurance contract services provided under the group
of insurance contracts in that period. The amount is
determined by:

o identifying the coverage units in the group;

3 allocating the CSM at the end of the period (before
recognising any amounts in profit or loss to
reflect the insurance contract services provided
in the period) equally to each coverage unit
provided in the current period and expected to
be provided in the future; and

. recognising in profit or loss the amount allocated
to coverage units provided in the period.

The number of coverage units in a group is the
guantity of insurance contract services provided by
the contracts in the group, determined by considering
the quantity of the benefits provided and the expected
coverage period. Contractual payments under
different scenarios and the respective probabilities are
considered when determining the quantity of benefit
provided. The total coverage units of each group of
insurance contracts are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period to adjust for the reduction of
remaining coverage for claims paid and cancellation
of contracts in the period. For the MIP insurance
contracts, the quantity of benefits is the contractually
agreed risk-in-force insured over the period of the
contracts while the quantity of benefits for the RMP
and the PRMP contracts is the contractually agreed
outstanding balance at death insured over the period
of the contracts. With respect to annuity product, the
coverage unit for amortisation will be the maximum of
(a) expected annuity payment; and (b) expected death
payment if there is a CSM.

For reinsurance contracts held, the CSM amortisation
reflects the expected pattern of underwriting of the
underlying contracts because the level of service
provided depends on the quantity of benefits provided
by the underlying contracts in-force.
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45. PIERERRFITHES
BREAREER(ESER/M
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4.5 100% guarantee under the SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme (100% SFGS) and DLGS

As refer to Note 19, under 100% SFGS and DLGS, eligible
loans originated by the participating lenders are sold to the
Group, and the Government provides a financial guarantee
to the Group on these loans. The loans are classified as
financial assets measured at amortised cost under HKFRS 9.

In formulating the accounting treatment of 100% SFGS and
DLGS, the Group applied judgement on whether the loans
purchased from the participating lenders as recognised on
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
should be de-recognised as a result of the arrangement
with the Government; whether the contracts between the
participating banks and the Group and the contract between
the Government and the Group should be considered
together in the determination of accounting treatments; and
whether the contractual cash flow of the loans represent
“solely payments of the principal and interest” (SPPI).

When performing this assessment, the Group considers
several factors including, whether the Group has transferred
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the loans,
whether the contracts between the Government and Group
are considered together and whether the contractual cash
flows met the SPPI criteria etc.

Segment information

The Group is principally engaged in asset purchase and servicing,
general insurance and life insurance businesses in Hong Kong.
Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the loan purchase
and investment to reinvest the surplus funds from loan receipt are
considered ancillary to asset purchase business.

General insurance includes mainly mortgage insurance, reverse
mortgage and SME financing guarantee businesses. Life insurance
includes annuity business. Asset purchase and servicing include
loan acquisition business and other activities such as debt
issuance.
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TRINTAEE LD EBRIWA ~ @A R The following tables represent revenue, profit and other
HihER o information for operating segments of the Group.

BEEER
HHERRE bk SE
Asset —RiFR AERR Inter-

purchase General Life segment g
and servicing insurance insurance  elimination Total
THET THER THT THT THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HE-E-_ME+-A=t—-HLLEE Yearended 31 December 2024

FHEMA Net interest income 432,744 331,252 (146,035) - 617,961
FREEEEE Net insurance business results - (647,213)  (1,594,263) 209,948 (2,031,528)
HiglA Other income 308,886 162,772 1,221,874 (435,498) 1,258,034
BB/ (BR) Operating incomey/(0ss) 741,630 (153,189) (518,424) (225,550) (155,533)
e Operating expenses (566,343) (20,685) - 224,862 (362,166)
KetmEmNELRH/ (BE) Operating profit/(loss) before impairment 175,287 (173,874) (518,424) (688) (517,699)
AEREEY Change in impairment allowances (34,454) (227) (230) - (34,911)
BHAET/ (BR) Profit/(loss) before taxation 140,833 (174,101) (518,654) (688) (552,610)

BERS
Asset

purchase General Life segment +
and servicing insurance insurance elimination Total
TATL TATL BT TATL TATL
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

BE-T--E+-FA=f-HILFE Yearended31December 2023

FFIBHA Net interest income 225,059 309,548 (137,698) - 396,909
FRBEREE Net insurance business results - (296,301) (1,805,804) 225,674 (1,876,431)
HiA Other income 271,89 138,533 1,139,374 (139,028) 1,410,775
gEW A/ (ER) Operating income/(0ss) 496,955 151,780 (804,128) 86,646 (68,747)
mETH Operating expenses (510,889) (3492 - 190,559 (323,822)
RiDRERREE (BR)/ & Operating (loss)/profit before impairment (13934) 148,288 (804,128) 277,205 (392,569)
ARG Change in impairment allowances (20,106) 62 57 - (19.987)
BHA(BR) /A (Loss)/profit before taxation (34,040) 148,350 (804,071) 271,205 (412,556)
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BEEER
HHEBRY
Asset -RRR

ABRR
General Life
insurance insurance
TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000

purchase
and servicing
TR
HK$'000

Pk E

Inter-
segment b

elimination Total

TR
HK$'000

TER
HK$'000

RZZ-ME+-A=1+-H As at 31 December 2024
PEEE Segment assets 165,630,756 24,736,861 34,361,081 (2,902,522) 221,826,176
AUEE Segment liabilities 157,586,492 6,984,385 22,112,903 (3,724,339) 182,959,441

IR SR
purchase General Life segment
and servicing insurance insurance elimination Total
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-=F+-fA=1-H As at 31 December 2023
DEEE Segment assets 180,014,995 11,662,145 30,648,507 (3,022,833) 219,302,809
PHER Segment liabilities 172,060,725 6,075,852 17,987,590 (3948,314) 192,175,853

6. FIBUA

6. Interestincome

2024

THxT
HK$'000

2023
TAT
HK$'000

BER4EE Loan portfolio 757,120 643,081
B RRMHE A 5 B ERAOERK Loans with 100% guarantee from

the Government 4,533,483 4,231,367

RekEHES Cash and short-term funds 2,048,875 2,434,607

BHEE Investment securities 806,736 592,282

8,146,214 7,901,337
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IR

Interest expense

2024 2023

THET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

WITEARREBEITEREES Bank loans and debt securities issued 7,363,943 7,314,481
HEAE Lease liabilities 8,338 2,591
HAith Others 155,972 187,356
7,528,253 7,504,428

FRA R B MR B WA R FEZFA
BarEEE -

RBRUA

TREJFAEBNRBREA BB -

EESTRREASENEE Amounts relating to the changes
in the liability for remaining
coverage

AHRBMAESRRRIE % Expected insurance service expenses

All interest expenses are for financial liabilities that are not at fair
value through profit or loss.

Insurance revenue

The table below presents an analysis of the total insurance
revenue recognised in the year:

2024

Frgs Fras ]
RESY  BRBRAK it A 26
Insurance  Reinsurance Insurance  Relnsurance
contracts contracts contracts

contracts
issued issued Total issued issued Total
TR TET TET B BT THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

incurred in the period 449,877 4,743 454,620 371,710 835 372,545
FEBERNEREZES  Change inthe risk adjustment
for non-financial risk (66,511) 19 (66,492) (21,84) 1 (21,840)
RERNERNEH Amount of CSM recognised in profit or
RskmesE loss 677,693 - 677,693 584,290 - 584,290
EM4E  RERBUAL  Otheramounts including experience
BERAE adjustments for premium receipts - - - 45 - 45
EERERREERSHEN Amounts relating to recovery of
&8 insurance acquisition cash flows
PEBEBREREREERS  Alocation of the portion of premiums
ERRNREDS that relate to the recovery of insurance
acquisition cash flows 254,209 - 254,209 193,743 - 193,743
RIEBKA Insurance revenue 1,315,268 4762 1,320,030 1,127,947 836 1,128,783
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F3E - Notes:

EHHARNELENRERBHAX BEARER
A AN RREMH IR R R EA
X - AHETEENRERETEEE
75 2 BIPRE 2.22() ©

RRAEEHETANIBNEARE - A5
BTN - WEMHE222 -

BRI AR EMEL B AR
ERBREAFARR © F2HMEAA) -

EHRBTBREERRREEENFE - &
BHANRBEEFELAE -

B3R € R B R IR S 048 Bl AR HA R BE 1
EIRHHE - BASTERFER  F2H
fi7E2.22() ©

Expected insurance service expenses incurred in the period comprise claims
and other expenses which the Group expects to pay on insured events that
occurred during the period. Refer to Note 2.22(f) for the full list of the cash
flows included.

Change in risk adjustment shows amount of risk which expired during the
period. Refer to Note 2.22 for the details of accounting policy.

The CSM is recognised in profit or loss over the coverage period of the
corresponding group of contracts based on coverage units. Refer to Note
4.4(d).

Such adjustments exclude those that relate to future service which adjust the
CSM.

Acquisition cash flows are allocated in a systematic way on the basis of the
passage of time over the coverage period of the group of contracts. Refer to
Note 2.22(e) for details of accounting policy.
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Fissss RIB &4 FiasssBR
BEEX FiABRES N
A5 (ZH) W N FE

TREJNFANIEE K E b 2w s iR
RV R A S RABF BT

Net finance (expenses)/income from insurance
contracts issued/reinsurance contracts issued/
reinsurance contracts held

The table below presents an analysis of net insurance finance
result recognised in profit or loss and OCI in the year:

iR & N MR BT 75 Insurance finance income/(expenses)

WA (XH) from insurance contracts issued
EE S Interest accreted (885,204) (721,952)
F| = &E'ﬁﬂ BRSNS  Effect of changes in interest rates and

other financial assumptions 429,217 (1,041,004)
wE ﬁiﬂﬂéﬁ = RIRVIAERE  Effect of measuring changes in estimates

RO FI = TS 29 AR 7S W e at current rates and adjusting the CSM

0 EQ@JE‘/’ at the rates on initial recognition 382,457 139,395
R RBREANNTE Net finance expenses from

S HFEEE insurance contracts issued (73,530) (1,623,561)
2573 Represented by:

I8 R A © 58 Amounts recognised in profit or loss (413,039) (1,692,054)
EC, L {th 2 EWN R TR 5 Amounts recognised in OCI 339,509 68,493
s BRRENNRR Insurance finance income/(expenses)

MW A (X H) from reinsurance contracts issued

E=R i) Interest accreted (7,282) (1,421)
ﬂ = &E'ﬁﬂ BRSNS E  Effect of changes in interest rates and

other financial assumptions 3,601 (7,009)
RE R R 5T IR R Effect of measuring changes in estimates

RO FI = TS 29 AR 75 W e at current rates and adjusting the CSM

RETEZH e at the rates on initial recognition 1,800 41
BREARTELRRES) Changes in non-performance risk

of reinsurer - -
s BRREANEE HFEEE Net finance expenses from

reinsurance contracts issued (1,881) (8,389)
257 - Represented by:

KBRS 58 Amounts recognised in profit or loss (1,881) (8,389)
Eéﬁmiﬁﬂﬂl SRR 5 Amounts recognised in OCl = -
i BEREEANEREETH  Reinsurance finance income/(expenses)

WA () from reinsurance contracts held
2558 Interest accreted 16,118 (96)
F| = &E{ﬂ; Bis R e F L Effect of changes in interest rates and

other financial assumptions (25,026) 2,150
LE R R 5T RIRaERE  Effect of measuring changes in estimates
E'ﬁ@zuﬂ EENRBKE N at current rates and adjusting the CSM
ATE %1 at the rates on initial recognition (100,854) (54,790)
BIR ﬁ@ AT B4R Changes in non-performance risk of
reinsurer (4,544) (4,725)
IiFEBRREANEES HFEE Net finance expenses from
reinsurance contracts held (114,306) (57,461)
255 : Represented by:
EATE m R & 58 Amounts recognised in profit or loss 10,268 2,932
REAM 2 EREERN T Amounts recognised in OCI (124,574) (60,393)
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10. Fifs A BRSO iFEE

T8 HALG [B] HA R 2 A B9 1R B AR 7S s Expected recovery for insurance service

2024

TR
HK$'000

10. Net income from reinsurance contracts held

2023
T
HK$'000

expenses incurred in the period (6,476) (78,716)
FE B[R fe 19 [2 e S = 2 B Change in the risk adjustment for
non-financial risk 13,159 13,158
RIBRERNE LR K CSM recognised in profit or loss (75,073) (67,383)
BRI £ R 5 46 B R Y Amount relating to the changes
BEEHRBEHSE in the assets for remaining coverage (68,390) (132,941)
HNEENBRRREMASZA Amounts recoverable for claims and
Al E & 58 other expenses incurred in the period 25,335 74,054
FTEERREEEEMEED Changes in amounts recoverable
EEdEERELE) arising from changes in liability
for incurred claims 1,584 792
e Rl R A R R A E BT Changes in amounts recoverable arising
EARn kLl 4zEE s from changes in risk adjustment for
non-financial risk 5,802 513
HEEURBE BB Changes in fulfilment cash flows which
BHBEeREEH relate to onerous underlying contracts 388,591 336,281
Al M ERER A B U B /)& 58 Amount recoverable from reinsurers 421,312 411,640
FEFEBRBREANNRAFE Net income from reinsurance
contracts held 352,922 278,699
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11.

HA

KBINEES TR

11. Other income

Income from placements with the

2024

TR
HK$'000

2023
TAET
HK$'000

Exchange Fund 1,374,291 1,267,546
VE W =28 Exchange difference (187,457) (12,336)
PTHE T H R ¥ e * Gain from derivatives and hedging* 238,006 62,005
ARFEZ (LR ABED Net (loss)/gain on investments at fair value
®A& (BR),/ W75 through profit or loss (48) 238
HENATES Lt AREMEE  Netgain on disposal of investments at FVOCI
I 25 B93% & My W e )8R 400 =
BEREEN AT EES)FH Net change in fair value of loan portfolio
(B % 3.6(a)ii)) (Note 3.6(a)ii)) (210,636) 51,532
EERENREBA Dividend income from listed investments 289 265
TTEERRA Administrative fee income 9,042 8,972
HAt Others 34,147 32,553
1,258,034 1,410,775
* STHETE RS U A TSI MBI AR : () * Gain from derivatives and hedging represented the aggregate of (i) HK$631

million fair value gain on hedging instruments designated as fair value hedge
(2023: HK$1,996 million) and HK$531 million fair value loss on the hedged
items (2023: HK$1,851 million); and (i) HK$138 million fair value gain on
derivatives mainly for hedging foreign currency exposures which are not
qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2023: HK$83 million loss).

B AATFEL R TAAFER6.31
BB (CE=4F : 19.96 B8 7T) R¥hiA
BEATFEERNEBST(ZT=_=F:
1851 L) + K (ii) = 2 A 1EL N E RS
BRFARAEFE A ANITETART
B 2E1.38EET(ZZT - =4F : F5188,300
BB °
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12. #MHEISHZH

BEMAREEEENSTHANER TR :

12. Expenses by nature

An analysis of the expenses incurred by the Group in the reporting

period is included in the table below:

2023
FHIT
HK$'000
EEMNA : Staff costs:
— & MER — salaries and benefits 458,385 408,110
— RIRE A — pension costs — defined
— REHENETE contribution plans 26,280 23,165
E=Yokn Directors’ fees = =
MEEREARANTEHEEN Emoluments in respect of directors’
HEMREmN T2 other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the
company:
— e SRR RIEA — salaries, allowances and bonus 8,065 7,135
— BRIRFTEIFT{EZ 3R — retirement scheme contributions 726 703
& (Hf3E25) Depreciation (Note 25) 89,748 82,158
B 48 & =T IR 7S Financial information services 16,201 16,065
RS & Consultancy fees 97,741 94,260
MSHEEMES ST Marketing and advertising expenses 40,813 47,087
/NG Premises 17,602 14,556
H s Other operating expenses 59,282 52,966
e E R/ EERTE]  Recovery of operating expenses from
NMEOBHEREREETZ 100% SFGS and DLGS (Note 31(a))
R S I (HI5E31() (166,388) (161,609)
648,455 584,596
REREERESREEEN Amounts attributed to insurance acquisition
FEME 2 R Bt BB X cash flows incurred and other directly
attributable expenses (286,289) (260,774)
HEas s Other operating expenses 362,166 323,822
BEREEE Claims and benefits 787,624 614,310
Bt R R A LR EE Losses on onerous insurance contracts 2,257,995 778,349
REREER S REEH Amortisation of insurance acquisition
cash flows 254,209 193,743
RE2 AR TS = Insurance service expenses 3,299,828 1,586,402
3,661,994 1,910,224
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13. ZE(RTEN S 13. Auditor’s remuneration

2024 2023
FET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EZ RS Audit services 4,605 6,472
H b AR %5 Other services 4,382 4,228
8,987 10,700
14. BIEEBHEE) 14. Change in impairment allowances

e MEHES (BI5E3.2(c) Cash and short-term funds (Note 3.2(c)) 1,502 1,043
BHEE Investment securities:
— R AT IR — amortised cost (Note 3.2(d)(i))
(B EE3.2(d)(0)) 179 89
— AT EE LT AEMD — FVOCI (Note 3.2(d)(ii)
2 ME (FTEE3.2(d)ii) 147 477
BERHAE  BIEEFES Loan portfolio, including loan
(FI3E3.2(0)) commitments (Note 3.2(0)) 33,083 18,378
34,911 19,987
15. BilE 15. Taxation
(a) HFEEWBSRABBIES : (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
2024 2023
Tz FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BBFEH Hong Kong profits tax:
— EHITIE — current tax 50,650 140,723
— BEFERE — adjusted in respect of past years - (2,416)
IRIERRIE Deferred taxation:
— ARFEERE — credit for current year (185,220) (291,361)

(134,570) (153,054)
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PN F B E A W (E AT IE SR BDE AR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5%( —F = = 4F : 16.5%) B Fi =X (2023: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
STRAANGHRE - BLEHIEAE year. Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
BEEL165% (=T Z=4F : 16.5%) differences under the liability method using a principal
MEEREAE TR ER - taxation rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%).

AREEHBRT R EIENTIBEER R The taxation on the Group's loss before taxation differs from
BHERGTENERSENEENT ¢ the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation

rate of Hong Kong as follows:

2023
FET
HK$'000
MrEiATE 1R Loss before taxation (552,610) (412,556)
12165% (—ZE==4 : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
R R 5T E (2023: 16.5%) (91,181) (68,072)
RIS 2 Tax effect of:
— BARB WA — income not subject to taxation (443,699) (451,919
— PA AR — expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 415,517 322,794
— RIER T IBE 18 — tax losses not recognised 5,060 83,600
— BEEERE — adjustment in respect of prior years = (2,416)
— Hfb — others (20,267) (37,041)
BIEELE Taxation credit (134,570) (153,054)
(b) EABMRARAMBIERES : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial

position represents:

2023
F&TT
HK$'000

BEHRIBEEE Current tax assets (included in
GtATHEMEE]) “Other assets”) 38 38
EHFIEAE Current tax liabilities 223,782 156,851
BEEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 174,488 307,254

398,270 464,105
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RERTE(BE) BENEBHEMKE The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and

DRERNEFHMOT the movements during the year are as follows:
HERER
HititE
MEFBRE Impairment RBRENER
Accelerated allowances Insurance
tax and other WEESR contract faEg
depreciation provisions Tax losses liabilities Total
T T T TEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WZE-=%—F—H Asat1January2023 8,208 (3,774 (148,905) 729,327 584,856
RlzsRA% /(EA)  Charged/(credited) to
income statement 165 (3,355) 5028 (293,199) (291,361)
REMZAREATE  Chargedto OC = - - 13759 13759
RZE-=%+-F As at 31 December 2023
=t+-H 8,373 (7.129) (143,877) 449,887 307,254
PR A/ Charged/(credited) to
(BA) income statement 28 (6,077) (26,244) (153167) (185,220)
REf2EREAMB  Charged to OCI = - - 52,454 52,454
R=B=RE As at 31 December 2024
+=ZA=+-H 8,641 (13,206) (170,121) 349,174 174,488
RZZE-_ME+_A=1+—HEZ-Z There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as
ZEFTZ A=+ —HEEEARE at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023. Deferred tax
HIRLETIE - BEHIBEERIRNE assets are recognised to the extent that sufficient future
B SR IR B R B A ] (IR AV 1B taxable profits will be available for realisation. The unused
TR EWHR o KRBT EE A R tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.
HAggEE o
RTZEAA - EEAERREERIE There is no significant amount of deferred tax assets/
BE/REREEE - liabilities to be settled within twelve months.
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16. IREREHIES 16. Cash and short-term funds
2024 2023
FET TFETT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
$E1TIE S Cash at banks 913,754 1,128,772
RITEETER Time deposits with banks 51,739,077 50,696,426
ReMBHELR Gross cash and short-term funds 52,652,831 51,825,198
He MEHESHRERE Impairment allowance on cash and
(Hf3E3.2(0) short-term funds (Note 3.2(c)) (5,649) (4,147)
52,647,182 51,821,051
HBETREERTNE  BeRkEZERBEIER For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
AENTEREE A= 8 sA N - cash equivalents comprise the following balances with

original maturities of three months or less.

2024 2023
F#&x TFETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITIR % Cash at banks 913,754 1,128,772
SRITEBATFER Time deposits with banks 41,562,077 49,999,426
RENERRSIBR Cash and cash equivalents 42,475,831 51,128,198
17. FEWFI B REESR 17. Interest and remittance receivables
2023
FETT
HK$'000
PATR 278 i) JE U 2, Interest receivables from:

— F AL — interest rate swap contracts 2,575,665 2,767,783
— EBEHERE — investment securities 191,886 154,657
— RITEHTER — time deposits with banks 297,330 250,373

B E KU S Interest receivables and instalments,
KEZ RS H R in transit from loan portfolio 156,498 197,565

3,221,379 3,370,378
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(a)

TTETRHER

AEERATITET RS A AEH
e Bl

EREHNA O RERRB AL
TERIE R B S EIMNEmAGE - B
R A R B S DA — 43R M B4R
A—HBRTRENEE - HFHEHE
K F R RMEASEIR - [RET
BRI ZERXZ TS REBRA
T ARENEERRARSHEFR
RERTEEAMBEERRANNE

A - REBERBRENEBE R ZEH
FRBRERKS  FEZNERHEER

G
AA

o

ETREESRTIANEEESE AN
e MR RIERH TARZHE—E
FEEEVEAE - HER MRS BB AR IR
ReERENTRIATEZRNAF
& - Bt - AR RS EE R
EEHBEBER - BEE TSN RE
KRS E AR RE) - FTET ARTEE
HAKBEELER(BE)HTH (R
BINTE - TESRITANGLK
FECEETE - DA NS
BE RTAETESMEERBEY
NFHAE - FIRE AR ATRIRE) o Prfs
BNTET AR TESRN T

18. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivatives

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency forwards are commitment to purchase or sell
foreign currency at a pre-specified exchange rate on a future
date. Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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&R/ /
258 AV 2558 R
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional 8E g notional BE afE
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Liabilities
T Fign T T THTL TbT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
e RBHREHAE Derivatives not qualified as hedges
MiTETR for accounting purposes
— Fli — interest rate swaps 4,601,054 35,329 (2.802) 6771769 55,587 (4,779)
— EitisE — currency swaps 8,109,388 152,812 (8,338) 7322928 34,270 (39,197)
— EEREAH — currency forwards 2,878,363 5,204 (3,024) 2,715,097 669 (5,897)
193,345 (14,164) 90,526 (19,873)
ATEERITAETER Fair value hedge derivatives
— Fl&izH — interest rate swaps 110,629,191 212,397  (596,795) 99,654,192 283,590 (737,144)
— BB — currency swaps 52,465,683 258,420  (1,127,930) 61158725 454426 (1,800,484)
470,817 (1,724,725) 738016 (2537,628)
RemEmiTELR Cash flow hedge derivatives
— EMeE — currency swaps 388,397 456 (1,760) 2,998,250 - (238,021)
456 (1,760) - (238,021)
BRRTETA Total recognised derivative assets/
B/ (R 0E (iabilities) 664,618 (1,740,649) 88502 (2825520)
(b) ¥fihiESH (b) Hedging activities
iWHTE T AER A FELIRHIA SR Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
i EEREmE - STEIEA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
IREFRF S R ERE ©
(i) AFEHH (i)  Fair value hedges
AEENRFEEHREZRE The Group's fair value hedge principally consists of
ARREREZEITEBESA interest rate and currency swaps that are used to
B K AT B A E B P 5| B protect interest rate risk and foreign currency risk
1) 2= [ Ba A0 NG [ Bz A ) 2= A0 resulting from any potential change in fair value of
B¥tEHE o underlying debt securities issued.
(i) BEREH (i)  Cash flow hedges
AEEGFHABREREHANE The Group hedged the portion of foreign exchange
Bt B AN SHERN £ risks arising from variability of cash flows from foreign
TERSREBMEERINE currency denominated financial instruments using
B pER D © currency swaps under cash flow hedge.
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19.

B R E 5 BRRIER
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BERENOARAEEHERBAER
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FIE - REERHSENG AR EE L
B A R AR B — ARAE I RATIR B 14 9
REEA -

19.

Loans with 100% guarantee from the
Government

100% SFGS

The Group introduced special 100% SFGS in 2020. This measure
aims to alleviate the burden of paying employee wages and rents
by small and medium-sized enterprises which are suffering from
reduced income, thereby help minimise enterprise shutting down
and layoffs.

Under this scheme, loans are originated by participating lenders.
Upon origination, these participating lenders would sell the loans
to the Group without recourse. These loans are fully guaranteed by
the Hong Kong Government.

An interest rate of the Prime Rate minus 2.5% per annum is
charged to the borrowers. These loan interest, net of the funding
costs and relevant general operating and administrative expenses
incurred by the Group, are passed to the Government.

The maximum repayment period of the loan under the guarantee
is 10 years, with an option of principal moratorium for up to forty-
two months.

DLGS

The Group introduced DLGS in 2023. This measure aims to assist
eligible operators, registered vehicle or ferry owners of cross-
boundary passenger transport, licensed travel agents, local tour
bus operators and registered owners to support their business
resumption, and to encourage taxi owners to replace their
liquefied petroleum gas, petrol or hybrid taxis with electric taxis.

Under this scheme, loans are originated by participating lenders.
Upon origination, these participating lenders would sell the loans
to the Group without recourse. These loans are fully guaranteed by
the Hong Kong Government.

An interest rate of the Prime Rate minus 2.5% per annum is
charged to the borrowers. These loan interest, net of the funding
costs and relevant general operating and administrative expenses
incurred by the Group, are passed to the Government.
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BOBTIEREERAELRE D BER
ERFEHEFENBEERNEFTENER
BBARERMER - BERBFED
BB K - BRI ERE ARE
EREFAECHERNE  NEHBER
AREREEEFORERS - —REE
RATEBASZ o Fat B W S grz (anE)
HEXBA - AEEARKEXER °

The maximum repayment period of the loan under the guarantee
is 10 years, with an option of principal moratorium for up to twelve
months.

Accordingly, loan default losses are covered by the Government’s
guarantee in relation to loans with special 100% SFGS and
DLGS, and no impairment allowance is recognised in view of the
minimal default risk of the Government. All loan interest received
is set aside to meet the funding costs, general operating and
administrative expenses in relation to the purchase and servicing
of the loans of the Group. The remaining balance of the interest
received, if any, will be passed to the Government. The Group is
responsible for the operation of the product.

2024 2023

TR TET

BTt A 2 A ERANER -

HK$'000 HK$'000

Loans with 100% guarantee from

the Government under:

— B BRI EEERE — 100% SFGS 82,555,165 97,172,516
— BN BEERER=ESE — DLGS 227,533 189,840
82,782,698 97,362,356

20. EREESIEE
(a) MAFEESLHANBEHEE

20. Loan portfolio, net

(a) Loan portfolio at FVPL

e
2023
T 7T
HK$'000
FEZRBERES Residential mortgage portfolio 2,572,791 1,892,572
HtWEREE Other loan portfolio 24,067 14,473
2,596,858 1,907,045
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(b)

(c)

REBERAIIRNERES (b) Loan portfolio at amortised cost

2023
FAT
HK$'000
FERIBEE KA Residential mortgage portfolio 2,816,547 2,804,860
EEER Infrastructure loans 7,290,487 7,361,398
HAftb Others 71,725 90,379
10,178,759 10,256,637

BB ERE (H3E3.20) Allowance for loan impairment

(Note 3.2(h))

— FERBEREES — residential mortgage portfolio (6,849) (2,134)
—EZFZER — infrastructure loans (52,940) (22,555)
— HAb — others (1,853) (1,531)

(61,642) (26,220)
10,117,117 10,230,417
EREEBEEEGEERES (c) Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage
EREEFSEHROERE of the outstanding principal balances of the loan
portfolio

2024 2023

,\mﬂﬁﬁéﬁ%@“ﬁﬁ TX4H4  Total allowance for loan impairment

BB D as a percentage of the gross
loan portfolio 0.61% 0.26%
ELEERRERER EZRERR Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking
JERITE ° into account the current market value of the collateral.

2024 2023

FEERBSEEEERHES  Grossimpaired loan portfolio as a
REEHBE D (MFE3.29) percentage of gross loan portfolio
(Note 3.2(g)) 0.02% 0.02%
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21. BHKRE

(a) AFEEZFAEME2EI
AR HIRE

B EIRNERES

21. Investment securities

(a) Investment securities at FVOCI

2024
TERT

2023
THAET
HK$'000

HK$'000

Debt securities at fair value:

—REBLM — listed in Hong Kong 1,846,255 1,067,317

— REBIRIN LT — listed outside Hong Kong 1,758,951 1,442,220

3,605,206 2,509,537

—3Em — unlisted 116,615 -
AAFEEZ LT AEMBETR Total FVOCI securities

WS o5 L w5 3,721,821 2,509,537

UATFEEC AR M2 EREHE
SOEERES  HPANRLRE
EREE RS - TAEBISALE
R ES 2 E BN B EABBK

FVOCI securities comprise debt securities where the
contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and
the objective of the Group’s business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial

BEHRETERTECRHEENE assets.
EE °
BETHRBREANDITAREEZ 5T FVOCI securities are analysed by categories of issuers as
AHMEEWROEBESOT ¢ follows:
2024 2023
F#&x TFETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIT R E & RS Banks and other financial institutions 971,385 711,499
NalhE Corporate entities 837,460 931,689
N Y Public sector entities 1,044,727 361,587
PR Central governments 868,249 504,762
3,721,821 2,509,537
ARAFEZ T AR 2 E KRR E The movement in FVOCI securities is summarised as follows:
SR EghmaT
2023
TATT
HK$'000
n—A—H As at 1 January 2,509,537 1,244,974
Bl Additions 1,512,090 1,440,325
& K EE Sales and redemption (281,942) (195,990)
B Amortisation 1,746 1,442
NE(EEEF) Change in fair value 25,687 33,396
N[ 5, Z=RE Exchange difference (45,297) (14,610)
R+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 3,721,821 2,509,537

BRRE FEERRAKEEER
0 B0 B R Y 5 3.2(d) B

Information on the impairment, credit quality and the
Group's exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 3.2(d).
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(b)

(c)

UaEEZTANERNES (b)

R&E

Investment securities at FVPL

AT EFRNZ SEEES Exchange-traded funds at fair value:

—RBEBLEM — listed in Hong Kong 9,774 9,870
AR EZ LT AR Total FVPL securities
EHaeE 9,774 9,870

e [CERSRN s T e S
ATEB(CH AR 2T RS2
RBFEEE S NBHEEH AL
ATER{CE AR -

RATESCAA BRSO EENED
BRI

The Group classifies investment securities in exchange-
traded funds at FVPL, which do not quality for measurement
at either amortised cost or FVOCI.

The movement in FVPL securities is summarised as follows:

2023

FET

HK$'000

Rn—H—H As at 1 January 9,870 9,628

NEEED Change in fair value (48) 238

HNESTE 3, 22 %8 Exchange difference (48) 4

RT=ZHA=+—8” As at 31 December 9,774 9,870
HEERAIIRMEFIRE (c) Investment securities at amortised cost

2B 5H AN D1 R BV 1B 7% 8 55

Debt securities at amortised cost:

—REBLEM — listed in Hong Kong 5,715,799 6,631,315
— RBEBRINET — listed outside Hong Kong 6,190,447 4,172,749
11,906,246 10,804,064
—3JEm — unlisted 3,204,074 3,774,592
RN ATIRAFE SR E Gross investment securities
4a%E at amortised cost 15,110,320 14,578,656
RSN TRV B AR E R  Impairment allowance on
LB (M 5E3.2(d)) investment securities at amortised
cost (Note 3.2(d)) (4,850) (4,671)
PR S R AN B IR 1Y) P55 4B B8 Total amortised cost securities 15,105,470 14,573,985
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AEBERREFEATREZBR
B DEREFRE D BAREIHEK
AFIME :

e XBEANBEABEEEMN
WEREKHESRE &

o  REANKKERTERBNE
EREDZEANIMNAREM
NEERZEORE

REITHIBIRR 2 TR E AT 35K
ARHREFESFLAT

The Group classifies investment securities at amortised cost
only if both of the following criteria are met:

o the asset is held within a business model with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding.

Amortised cost securities before impairment are analysed by
categories of issuers as follows:

2024 2023

TExT T 7T

HK$'000 HK$'000

RIT R E A S phikE Banks and other financial institutions 4,520,414 6,077,582
NG Corporate entities 6,149,201 5,794,619
N T Public sector entities 1,936,527 1,070,127
AR SR AT Central governments 2,002,795 1,636,328
Hith (EZBEEES) Others (infrastructure-related bond) 501,383 -
15,110,320 14,578,656

Rl (L A1) 422 8 B P 7R 51 ) 2 ) S D
BT -

The movement in amortised cost securities before
impairment is summarised as follows:

2023

FH&TT

HK$'000

n—HA—H As at 1 January 14,578,656 13,147,658
140 Additions 6,434,043 3,945,347
HE M EEE Sales and redemption (5,848,597) (2,507,695)
By Amortisation 68,635 51,452
HNEEEE 2= 5E Exchange difference (122,417) (58,106)
R+=—_A=+—8 As at 31 December 15,110,320 14,578,656
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22. Placements with the Exchange Fund

The Group has classified the placements of the HKMCA and the
HKMCI with the Exchange Fund as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. As at 31 December 2024, the balance of the
placements with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$49.2 billion
(2023: HK$34.1 billion) (Note 31(a)), comprising a total principal
sum of HK$42.5 billion (2023: HK$28.7 billion) plus income earned
and accrued but not yet withdrawn as at the reporting date, which
represented the premium and capital placements made by the
HKMCA and the HKMCI.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are invested in the
Investment Portfolio and Long-Term Growth Portfolio of the
Exchange Fund, subject to a lock-up period. The rate of return on
the placements with the Exchange Fund is determined annually.
For Investment Portfolio, the rate of return is calculated on the
basis of the average annual rate of return on the portfolio over
the past six years or the average annual yield of three-year
Government Bond in the previous year (subject to a minimum of
zero percent), whichever is the higher. With respect to the Long-
Term Growth Portfolio, the rate of return is determined based on
the current year time-weighted rate of return.
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23. MIBABHRE

RZB_ME+_A=+—H " ' ARAH
IEMBARFENT

23. Interests in subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2024 are as follows:

AEMER I .56

ERTRARRAHE
(BB HERI)
Particulars of issued and

RN
(FEKEA)
FERONEDE
Percentage of
shares held by

RSNl P
(FHKEA)
FERONEDE
Percentage of
shares held by
the Company's

Place of FTEEE fully paid up share capital the Company subsidiary
incorporation Principal activities (Class of shares) (or its nominee)  (or its nominee)
AARIBEEBRAR Eib RAEEETEERIBREN 1,000,005 7 (@) 100% TR
HKMC Mortgage Management Limited Hong Kong ERRE  AEENEEZ  HKS1,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
HREERE  REEEE
ERRREFEER ML
Zi
Mortgage purchase and
servicing, servicing of
outstanding microfinance
oans, and origination of
reverse mortgage loans and
policy reverse mortgage
loans, all for the Group
BRRERRERAR &b —RRBER 15,000,000,000 77 (£ BR) 100% TEm
HKMC Insurance Limited Hong Kong General insurance business HK$15,000,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
ERFEERAR BB RERBER 12,500,000,000 77 (£ BR) 100% TEm
HKMC Annuity Limited Hong Kong Long term insurance business  HK$12,500,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
HKMC Premier Solutions Limited &5 AASEREEHRER 100787 (L) TER 100%
Hong Kong BRI RAERE HK$100 (Ordinary) N/A
Provision of marketing and
business development

services and related facilities
to the Group
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24, AfTRIE - HERHEMBEE

24. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

2024 2023

T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

NECHEFEH Corporate club debentures 910 910

EE S IFH R W OE CSA receivables 308,854 523,485
EiRE BB EE D 31TE AR Receivables from securities issued

FE UG IE for settlement after the reporting date - 1,000,000

HiEE Other assets 76,223 57,637

385,987 1,582,032
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25. BE&EE 25. Fixed assets
(a) BElE&EELE (a) Movement in fixed assets
BREE
nEN
FREEE BAERE
Right-of-use BRR%ER
assets on Office
leased HEWEXE  equipment, RE
properties  Leasehold furniture 2K Motor g
for own use improvement and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
TET TEx TiEx TET FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WZZE-=%-F—H  Costasat1lanuary 2023
PR 201418 60792 19,509 332,557 1,154 615,430
1 Additions 132,726 47% 1867 30,586 565 170,542
Wi/ be Written-off/disposals 41,293) (3,18¢) (707) 7,619 - (52,805)
NZE-=%+_f Cost as at 31 December 2023
=+—BHRA 292,851 62,400 20,669 355,524 1,719 733,167
) Additions 24,705 3,185 3606 28991 - 60,487
Wi/ He Written-off/disposals (23589) (284) 5 7772) = (31,650)
R-E-_ME+-H Cost as at 31 December 2024
=t-HRMEA 293,967 65,305 24,270 376,743 1,719 762,004
RZZZ=F—F—HK  Accumulated depreciation
ZEE asat 1 January 2023 (93,749) (32,385) (13063) (287,564) (893) (427,654)
& (HE12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (39527) (10,096) 2920 (29473) (142) (82,158)
s/ hE Written-off/disposals 41,293 3186 707 7,619 = 52805
R-E-=F+-f Accumulated depreciation
ZT—BMEGTE as at 31 December 2023 (91,983) (39,295) (15,276) (309,418) (1,035) (457,007)
& (K 12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (50,797) 7,952 (2,766) (27.997) (236) (89,748)
i/ e Written-off/disposals 23,589 24 5 7772 - 31,650
RZZ-mE+ZR Accumulated depreciation
=T-RNRHE as at 31 December 2024 (119,191) (46,963) (18,037)  (329,643) (1,271)  (515,105)
RZE-NE+=A As at 31 December 2024
==
KA Cost 293,967 65,305 24,270 376,743 1,719 762,004
ZETE Accumulated depreciation (119,191) (46,963) (18,037)  (329,643) (1,271)  (515,105)
REFHE Net book amount 174,776 18,342 6,233 47,100 448 246,899
W=B-=£+-A As at 31 December 2023
==k
AR Cost 292,851 62,404 20,669 355,524 1719 733167
ZiE Accumulated depreciation (91,983) (39,295) (15,276) (309,418) (1,035) (457,007)
REFE Net book amount 200,868 23109 5393 46,106 684 276,160
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HE

BN K5I R A B E & & 5 a0
T

Leases

The statement of financial position shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

EREEE —8BF

Right-of-use assets — buildings 174,776 200,868

HEBE: Lease liabilities:
——FR — within 1 year 49,262 34,049
—HiB—F — over 1year 127,707 161,075
176,969 195,124

HERERESHHMNT

The movement in lease liabilities is summarised as follows:

®n—H—H As at 1 January 195,124 109,781
1% 40 Addition 21,753 120,525
BoE Amortisation 8,338 2,591
HENHFI LD Interest portion of lease payments (8,338) (2,591)
HENRAE RS Principal portion of lease payments (39,908) (35,182)
MRZZT-_WFE+_A=+—H Asat31December 2024 176,969 195,124
BE-_T-_mE+—-—A=+—HItE The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31
. S 4 7 458 550,828,000 December 2024 was HK$50,828,000 (2023: HK$39,514,000).
HBIT(ZE =% : 39,514,000%7T) °

HE-_Z_NWF+-_A=1+—HILtF
E - {3 FAAE & E 3 HN 24,705,000 7 7T
(ZZT =% :132,726,000% ) °

malaks T ABEENSEN
T~

EREEENE —B8F

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended 31
December 2024 were HK$24,705,000 (2023: HK$132,726,000).

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

2023

TAET
HK$'000

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets — buildings 50,797 39,527

Interest expense

8,338 2,591
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AEEEESTHAE  MEHEE
Bl R7NF - BHH T ATt &R
RIEE -

RASELELT SN MEHEE
HeBREE MK ILRERE - KED
BHRERRIEERETHARET
£ - MIFERMMHEA -

26. FEFFFIR

The Group leases various offices and rental contracts are
mainly made for fixed periods of six years but may have
extension options as described below.

Extension and termination options are included in property
leases of the Group for operational flexibility. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

26. Interest payable

2024 2023

FER T

AT B IERERFR -

HK$'000 HK$'000

Interest payable from:

— BETEKES — debt securities issued 2,907,719 3,182,932
— MEEBHEH — interest rate swap contracts 429,198 499,175
—HEMaE — other liabilities 5,407 2,308

3,342,324 3,684,415

liabilities

27. FEFTIRIE « FEETRIZ R HEME 27. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
&

2023

FHTT

HK$'000

FEASIRIE K FE AT 52 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,988,126 1,937,813
HihaE Other liabilities 894,445 1,901,803
HEa & (F5E25(0) Lease liabilities (Note 25(b)) 176,969 195,124
H b Other provision 73,126 72,729
4,132,666 4,107,469

HihBEEEREFNEMEERAET
A4S BB RS (A 3E33) REASEER
T2 (MH3E31(@) TR B B B R B RER (B
K 8 2= & 18RI R 52 ) 894,445,000 7T (=
T — =4 : 1,901,803,000/87T) °

Other liabilities represented mainly the guarantee fee
and fund received (net of claims and related expenses) of
HK$894,445,000 (2023: HK$1,901,803,000) under the special
concessionary measures of the SFGS (Note 33) and the PLGS
(Note 31(a)).
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28. RIGEBERBIRIGEE 28. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

BENBETHAFEBRRAN - 3% The breakdown of portfolios of reinsurance contracts held,

e X RAFEZBRREHNRESHAE insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contacts issued, that

HNRTE are in an asset and those in a liability position is set out in the table
below:

2024 2023
EE &8 i BE afa ik

Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net
FET TET TER AL TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEEBRBEN Reinsurance contracts held
— iRk — general insurance 1,081,689 - 1,081,689 761,043 - 761,043
FERRREH Insurance contracts issued
— iRk — general insurance - 6,017,192 6,017,192 - 4,991,968 4,991,968
ASRR — life insurance - 18,833,695 18,833,695 - 14296229 14,296229
- 24,850,887 24,850,887 - 19288197 19,288,197
FERBERREA Reinsurance contracts issued
ASRE — life insurance - 195,009 195,009 - 87,648 87,648
28.1 R EBRIESY - IEER 28.1 Reinsurance contracts held, insurance contracts
[GEHIRFTEEBRESH issued and reinsurance contract issued
(@) HMEEBRBAEL IR (@ Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance
A RFIERBRRE LW contracts held, insurance contracts issued and
EEFENEEFREY (B reinsurance contracts issued showing the liability for
TRB TN REAERFTELS remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims
RBEET)
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iy FRBBRBREH — — (i)  Reinsurance contracts held — general insurance
A IR
FrfsE BiRE & A E The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for
EFEIAEFHEED reinsurance contracts held, showing assets for
(BAREZTHRRAR remaining coverage and amounts recoverable
B 3 765 P A D8R TR on incurred claims arising business ceded to
REEREELRRT reinsurers is disclosed in the table below:
I El & 58) N T RIFE -
BTRREE ThELE
Assets for Amounts
remaining coverage recoverable
g
WEEESS WEEEDS MEERE
Excluding
Ioss-recovery Loss-recovery Incurred
component component claims
(i T Thn Thn ThT
Notes HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000
R—A-ANERRANEE ReinsLirance contract assets
asat 1 January 249,002 506,104 5,937 761,043
BAURRRGARENERED Changes in the consolidated
income statement and

consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

ERRNRELE Allocation of reinsurance premiums
HATREEEZSAENLE Amounts relating to the changes
in the assets for remaining coverage 3 (68,390) - - (68,390)
ARELNRRREMFZN Amounts recoverable for claims and other
AYEEE expenses incurred in the period - - 25,335 25,335
FECRRAREHELN Changes in amounts recoverable
AESERS arising from changes in iabilty
forincurred claims - - 7,386 7,386
HEELEESDEED Changes in fulflment cash flows which
BHELTEREY Telate o onerous underlying contracts b - 388,591 - 388,591
FERERRANN(FR)/MAZE  Net(expenses)/income from
reinsLirance contracts held (68,390) 388,591 3211 352,922
ERRADMETE k) /MAFE  Netfinance (expenses)income
from reinsurance contracts C (119,542) 9,780 = (109,762)
ERRATTROERESNT 2 Effect of changes in non-performance
risk of reinsurers (4,544) - - (4,544)
(124,086) 9,780 - (114,306)
GARRRREASENSREHEE  Total changesin the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (192,476) 398,371 32,721 238,616
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BIRBEE HhELE
Assets for Amounts
remaining coverage recoverable
et
KEFESS WEEESS FELHRE
Excluding
loss-recovery Loss-recovery Incurred
component component claims
iR T T Tén TEn
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ReRE Cash flows

BARBRENGR Premiums and similar expenses paid 96,082 - - 96,082

BhEE Amounts received - - (21,099) (21,099)

Renesy Total cash flows 96,082 - (21,099) 74,983

EHENHR Other reclassification 7,132 - (85) 7,047

Rt=A=T-RNERREH Reinsurance contract assets

BE as at 31 December 159,740 904,475 17,474 1,081,689

Bt Notes:

a. BRENRES LR a. Included within the allocation of reinsurance premiums
BAEBEEARNTH are non-recoverable expenses incurred by the Group,
B - BEITHRE directly attributable to fulfilment of reinsurance
EBERBRENEEN contracts held.

2710

b. Wi FT R & b. Changes in the expected fulfilment cash flows on
KHER ) TEEE AR reinsurance contracts held which relate to groups of
LRMEERIBE NE underlying insurance contracts are recognised in profit
R AIELARBRBR S 4V and loss if the changes in expected fulfilment cash
AREENREE R flows from the group of underlying insurance contracts
RBEEHNHIESHELD issued was also recognised in profit and loss.

FEARETR ©

c. N5 B 5 B AR R BE 7S C. The Group disaggregates net reinsurance finance

WAFERNERRE income between profit or loss and other comprehensive

fio 2 T3 2 B -
BB 2 BIM 2 2.220)
e

income. Please refer to Note 2.22()(v) for details.
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; ThESE
Assets for Amounts
remaining coverage recoverable
TREREE EEESA FELRR
Excluding
loss-recovery Loss-recovery Incurred
component component claims
BT TAL TAL AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R-A-BHERRANEE Reinsurance contract assets
asat 1January 204,413 167,408 4,552 376,373
SABERRGA2EKEZES  Changes in the consolidated
income statement and

consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

BRENRELE Allocation of reinsurance premiums
HAMRBAEZDABNLE Amounts relating to the changes
in the assets for remaining coverage  a (132,941) - - (132,941)
BREENRRREMFERN Amounts recoverable
hEEE for claims and other expenses
incurred in the period - - 74,054 74,054
FELRRAREPELN Changes in amounts recoverable
hEEEE arising from changes in liability
forincurred claims - - 1,305 1,305
SERHARAORRY Changes in fulfiment cash flows
BORETERD which relate to onerous
Underlying contracts b - 336,281 - 336,281
FrABRRALNN () MAFE Net (expenses)income from
reinsurance contracts held (132,941) 336,281 75359 218,699
BRRANMETE H) /WAFE  Netfinance (expenses)/income
from reinsurance contracts © (55,151) 2415 = (52,736)
BRBATTENEREDNTE  Effect of changes in non-performance
risk of reinsurers (4,725) - = (4,725)
(59,876) 2415 = (57,461)
GARERREAZERERZSEE Total changes in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated
Statement of comprehensive
income (192,817) 333,696 75,359 221,238
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BT

Assets for Amount
remaining coverage recoverable
TeEhEEESS e FELRR
Excluding
loss-recovery Loss-recovery Incurred
component component claims
i F7 TAL BT
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ReRE Cash flows
ERRERENRS Premiums and similar expenses paid 24,877 - - 264,877
BhisE Amounts received - - (73,960) (73.960)
ReNENs Total cash flows 24877 - (73.960) 190917
EHERAR Other reclassitication (27471) - (1) (27,485)
Rt=A=t-REEREAY Reinsurance contract assets
EE as at 31 December 249,002 506,104 5931 761,043

fi

a2y

BRENFREDSEES
BEASEELENTA
WERFS - EETTAH
EBERBRAENEREE
@ -

i 48 B9 AT 2% B ARBR &
WERNEREDHR
EnBERBEAME
7 BIEERRRA K
AR R FT RSB B
R A KNTREELD
RenEZEHNTNE

& E % B AR R B 7S
WA FEN R R H
f2ERE 2B
#1555 2 B MY L 2.220)
(U

Notes:

Included within the allocation of reinsurance premiums
are non-recoverable expenses incurred by the Group,
directly attributable to fulfilment of reinsurance
contracts held.

Changes in the expected fulfilment cash flows on
reinsurance contracts held which relate to groups of
underlying insurance contracts are recognised in profit
and loss if the changes in expected fulfilment cash
flows from the group of underlying insurance contracts
issued was also recognised in profit and loss.

The Group disaggregates net reinsurance finance
income between profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Please refer to Note 2.22(i)(v) for details.
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iy FEERBREH — & (i) Insurance contracts issued — general insurance
R
R e NN EE The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for
FESEEFEE D (F insurance contracts issued, showing the liability
TREEMSR TREE for remaining coverage and the liability for
BERAEERRBE)RN incurred claims for portfolios, is disclosed in the
TER#EE ¢ table below:
204
BIRBAR fEtRRAE
LRC Lic
TEEEEND E&d2
Excluding loss Loss
component component
TEn TR TER Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R—A-RNRBANAR Insrance contract liabiltes
asat 1 lanuary 3,408,458 1,526,940 56,570 4,991,968

BAURERGARENERED Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive

income
REUA Insurance revenue
NFEAETRAY Contracts under fair valug approach (194,924) - - (194,924)
el Other contracts (723,591) - - (723,591)
(918,515) - - (918,515)
RERESEX Insurance service expenses
FELERREMHES Incurred claims and other expenses - (72,033) 140,670 68,637
RREERCTEEH Amortisation of insUrance acquisition
cash flows 3 238,000 - - 238,000
BRI ONERRZSERER Losses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - 1,258,773 - 1,258,773
MELBREEEY Changes to liability for incurred claims - - 23,405 23,405
238,000 1,186,740 164,075 1,588,815
REREEE Insurance service result (680,515) 1,186,740 164,075 670,300
{RIaBHHE (A /it Insurance finance (income)/expenses b (239,808) 30,454 - (209,354)
GARRERGASERAZEESE  Total changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated Statement
of comprehensive income (920,323) 1,217,194 164,075 460,946
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BIRBAR fELREZEE
LRC LiC
TEBERD -t
Excluding loss Loss
component component
T T T Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RefiE Cash flows

BliRE Prernium received 934,886 - - 934,886

ERBRREMERRY Claims and other directly attributable

expenses paid - - (106,370) (106,370)

BREEEs =g Instrance acquisition cash flows C (272,291) - - (272,291)

RenelE Total cash flows 662,595 - (106,370) 556,225

OS] Other reclassification d 10,276 1,551 (3,774) 8,053

RT=A=t-RHRRANER Insurance contract liabilities

as at 31 December 3,161,006 2,745,685 110,501 6,017,192

B Notes:

a. BEREREREAR a. Acquisition cash flows were allocated on straight-line
HHE R H FAREBAE A basis during the coverage period of the respective
LEZREDE - F2H group of contracts. Please refer to Note 2.22(e).
Mi5E2.22(e) ©

b. 7 55 B H AR B B b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
B EEEREAM disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
2HEHKZ2HASER or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
BETBREE - AKE does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
4% 1% IE & Bh R BR Y for non-financial risk between insurance service result
BB 78 B ) MR R and insurance finance expenses.

B 75 3£ 48 R 4R R B1 75
S ZEDHF ©

C. R )R T R A B 48 7 c. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
BXAHRBRERR group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
ERMEFEEH TR for remaining coverage.

BEE-
d. HitEH o RERR d. Other reclassification relates to where the accounting

BRNBEANRESR
EFEENETER
ERARBAZHBM
SR R E At B S SRR
HETHEEESR
B - B BRETE
AR E) A B A
B 15 R IR B £ 1T
FEFREE o

treatment of some overheads included with the cash
flows within the boundary of an insurance contract are
grouped under other financial statement line items in
the statement of financial position. A reclassification
is made with a corresponding adjustment to such
other financial statement line items in the statement of
financial position.
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TaEEE B85
Bxcluding loss L0ss
component component
i Thr T i Th
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R-A—-BHRRANERE Insurance contract liabities
asat 1 January 2,908,854 735,890 3,712 367645
GRURRRGR2ENERED Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income
REUA Insurance revenue
NFEETRAYN Contracts under fair value approach (265,247) - - (265,247)
Hah Other contracts (522,289) - - (522,289)
(787,53) - - (787,53)
REEREX Insurance service expenses
FELERREMES Incurred claims and other expenses - (35817) 58,652 2283
RBEERSREEH Amortisation of insLirance acquisition
cash flows 3 184,190 - - 184,190
BRI ONERRAZERER Losses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - 818,615 - 818,615
FELRRNEERD Changes to iability for incrred claims - - 17m .M
184,190 782,798 75,863 1,042,851
RREREE Insurance service result (603,346) 782,798 75,863 255,315
REEHBRR Insurance finance expenses b 273 5715 - 28449
GARRRREFASENAREEE  Total changesin the consolidated income
statement and consolidated Statement
of comprehensive income (580612) 788,513 75863 23,764
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Rk

Excluding loss L0ss

component component
ST Thr T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

RéfiE Cash flows

BhRE Premium received 1917867 - - 1917867

ERBRREMERRY Claims and otfer directly attributable

expenses paid - - (59943) (59.943)

RREERSTE Insrance acquisition cash flows (651,800 - - (651,800)

ReRstR Total cash flows 1,266,067 - (59,943) 1,206,124

HEH A8 Other reclassification (185,851) 2537 8938 (174,376)

RHZR=t-AfRRANAR Inurance contract liabiltes

asat 31 December 3,408,458 1,526,940 5,570 4,991,968

Bt Notes:

a. BERESRENZA a. Acquisition cash flows were allocated on straight-line
#)48 B &9 & AR B A R basis during the coverage period of the respective
EREDE - F2H group of contracts. Please refer to Note 2.22(e).

Fi5E 2.22(€) °

b. 7N 55 B 1 H A 1R B Bt b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
B HEE=EREAM disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
2HKEZHASER or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
SEHRERE - AEH does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
I £ 3 I £ B R R 5 for non-financial risk between insurance service result
[ B 3 B P MR B and insurance finance expenses.

RR 75 2% 48 % 1R B 81 75
S ZEDHF ©

C. R AR A B 48 5 c. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
BENHRBREER group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
EMEFEEHR TR for remaining coverage.

BEE-

d. HihEEH D HFERER d. Other reclassification relates to where the accounting
AHEEARNNE SR treatment of some overheads included with the cash
ERhEENETER flows within the boundary of an insurance contract are
EHWERAESMBR grouped under other financial statement line items in
SR A b B 7 Rk the statement of financial position. A reclassification

HEHTHRFIREESR
B - B BREET
R A A B A A
B 15 R IA B A 1T

is made with a corresponding adjustment to such
other financial statement line items in the statement of
financial position.

EHREVEERAT —S-_mEEH 369



SmEBEHRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

@iy FEERRELH — ASE (i) Insurance contracts issued — life insurance
R
R e NN EE The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for
FESEEFEE D (F insurance contracts issued, showing the liability
THEENBR TRREE for remaining coverage and the liability for
RFIEAERREBE)RT incurred claims for portfolios, is disclosed in the
RIEE table below:
204
BTRIBERE fELREZER
LRC Lic
TaEFES E&d2
Excluding loss Loss
component component
T T T Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R—A-RNRBANAR Insrance contract liabiltes
asat 1 lanuary 10,549,149 3,692,363 54,717 14,296,229

BAURRREARELERED Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive

income
RERUA Insurance revenue
NHEETHAN Contracts under fair value approach (211,375) - - (211,375)
Hthadh Other contracts (185,378) - - (185,378)
(396,753) - - (396,753)
RERESEX Insurance service expenses
FELERREMHES Incurred claims and other expenses - (269,562) 617,506 347,944
RREERSTEEN Amortisation of insurance acquisition
cash flows 3 16,209 - - 16,209
BRIEGONERRZSERER L0sses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - 1,322,103 - 1,322,103
16,209 1,052,541 617,506 1,686,256
REHS Investment components (569,450) - 569,450 -
RERELE Insurance service result (949,994) 1,052,541 1,186,956 1,289,503
RBEES Insurance finance expenses b 184,971 97,014 899 282,884
BANSRREASEREREDEE  Total changes i the consolidated income
statement and consolidated Statement
of comprehensive income (765,023) 1,149,555 1,187,855 1,572,381
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BTRRAE fELRRAE
LRC Lic
TEEEEND EERa
Excluding loss Loss
component component
Tén TEn TEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ReRE Cash flows

EHRE Prernium received 4,259,102 - - 4,259,102

BRRREMERRS Claims and other directly attributable

£Xpenses paid - - (1,180,048) (1,180,048)

REEER G2 Insrance acaisition cash flows ¢ (113975) - - (113,975)

Renses Total cash flows 4,145,127 - (1,180,048) 2,965,079

RTZA=t+-BRREAHER Insurance contract liabilities

as at 31 December 13,929,253 4,841918 62,524 18,833,695

Bt Notes:

a. BERSRENZA Acquisition cash flows were allocated on straight-line
#MHE R B AR EIE A basis during the coverage period of the respective
BEHREDE - F2H group of contracts. Please refer to Note 2.22(e).
BizE2.22(e)

b. N5 B VE H A 1R B Bt The Group made an accounting policy choice to
BXEEBRIEREM disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
2EKEZEDERN or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
SETHERE - AEH does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
4 45 IE S B R B for non-financial risk between insurance service result
B[ AR R IRE and insurance finance expenses.

BR 75 3% 48 K 4R B BA 75
S ZEAHF ©
C. R E R A B 48 Bl Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related

B NHRBBEER
EREABER TR
A -

group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
for remaining coverage.
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TMfEFE B85
Bxcluding loss L0ss
component component
i Thr ThL i Th
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R-A—-BHRRANERE Insurance contract liabities
asat 1 January 8,406,988 3653860 36,009 12,096,857
GRURRRGR2ENERED Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income
REUA Insurance revenue
NFEETRAYN Contracts under fair valuie approach (233983) - - (233.983)
HhAH Other contracts (101428) - - (101,428)
(340,411) - - (340,411)
REEREX Insurance service expenses
FELERREMES Incurred claims and other expenses - (235,276) 535,392 300,116
RBEEREREEH Amortisation of insLirance acquisition
cash flows a 9553 - - 9,553
BRIt ONERRAZERER Losses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - w0 - mn7
9,553 (12,259 535,392 532,686
e Investment component w8891 = 176891 -
REREEE Insurance service result (807,749) (12259) 1012283 192275
REEHBRX Insurance finance expenses b 1,504,047 50,762 303 1,595,112
GARRFREASENAREEE  Total changesin the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income 736,098 38,503 1,012,586 1,787,387
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TaEEE Bt
Excluding loss L0ss
component component
it T Thr T
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

RéfiE Cash flows

BhRE Premium received 1523810 - - 1523810

ERBRREMERRY Claims and otfer directly attributable

£Xpenses paid - - (993878) (993878)

RREERSTE Insrance acquisition cash flows C (117.947) - - (117.947)

RefEeR Tota cash flows 1405863 - (993879 411,985

RTZR=T-BHRBANAR Insrance contract liabilties

as at 31 December 10,549,149 3,692,363 54717 14,2929

B Notes:

a. BERESRERNRS a. Acquisition cash flows were allocated on straight-line
#) 48 B &) &R BRI R basis during the coverage period of the respective
LEZREDE - F2H group of contracts. Please refer to Note 2.22(e).
Mi5E2.22(e) ©

b. A= E e SRR B b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
B HERR REAM disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
2EkEZESEH or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
EETBRERE - AKE does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
I £ 5 IE £ 7 AR B for non-financial risk between insurance service result
2\ R 3 2K 2 B R R R and insurance finance expenses.

B 75 3£ 48 AR R B1 75
X ZEDH ©
c. A6 HE R A B 48 B C. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related

BXNHRREER
EMBRABEHR TR
mEafE -

group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
for remaining coverage.
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vy FIREBRBREY — A (iv)  Reinsurance contracts issued — life insurance

SRR

e BREEaHNEE The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for
FESE BT (BERAE reinsurance contracts issued, showing the
MR TNRE & ERFT liability for remaining coverage and the liability
EERRBE) N TEE for incurred claims for portfolios, is disclosed in
3 the table below:
204
BT RIBER FELRZER
LRC Lic
TafEBRES EERD
Excluding loss Loss
component component
it 47 TaR Ta7
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-A-RARBADAR Insurance contract liabiltes
asat1 lanuary 79310 7,938 400 87,648

SAPERRSA2EKRZED  Changesin the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

REBUA Insurance revenue
ATEETHAN Contracts under fair value approach - - - =
Hhoat Other contracts (4,762) - - (4,762)
(4,762) o = (4,762)
REREHX Insurance service expenses
HMELERREMES Incurred claims and other expenses - (1,241) 6,043 4,802
BRERONBRRZSFERE L08Ses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - 19,955 - 19,955
- 18,714 6,043 24,751
REHS Investment components (3,659) - 3,659 -
REeREEE Insurance service result (8,421) 18,714 9,702 19,995
REHBLL Insurance finance expenses a 938 943 - 1,881
BANGRRIEASENGERESEE  Total changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement
of comprenensive income (7,483) 19,657 9,702 21,876
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BTRRAE FELHRRER

LRC LIC
TafEEESD EE3%
Excluding loss Loss
component component
T T Thn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BeRE Cash flows
EhRE Premium received 94,659 - - 94,659
ERBRREMERRY Claims and other directy attributable
£XDenses paid - - (9,174) (9,174)
RenelE Total cash flows 94,659 - (9,174) 85,485
RtZR=t-ANRRENER Insurance contract liabilities
as at 31 December 166,486 21,595 928 195,009
B Note:
a. 7N 55 [ 37 4% A5 AR B B a. The Group does not disaggregate insurance finance

B iR kA
2HEWEZEAH 0 T
A I 2 R ) A
fex 5 B B 3 N R BR AR
BEERRREBX
HZRDH

expense between profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and does not disaggregate changes in the risk
adjustment for non-financial risk between insurance
service result and insurance finance expenses.
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Bxcluding loss L0ss
component component
T T
HKS'000 HKS'000
R-A—-BHRRAY Insurance contract (assets)/liabiliies
(B%)/ B asat 1 January - - i i

GRURRRGR2ENERED Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive

income
REHA Insurance revenue
AFEETHARN Contracts under fair valug approach - - - -
Hah Other contracts (836) - - (836)
(836) = = (836)
REEREX Insurance service expenses
FELERREMES Incurred claims and other expenses - (137) 3,055 2918
BRIEGONERRASERER Losses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those osses - 7947 - 7947
- 7810 3,055 10,865
REED Investment componets (533 - 53 .
ReRREE Insurance service result (1,369) 7810 3588 10,029
RipEHR Insurance finance expenses 3 8261 128 - 8,389
BAREERGASERAZEEESE  Total changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated Statement
of comprehensive income 6892 7938 3,588 18413
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Rk

Excluding loss L0ss

component component
5T Thr T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

RéfiE Cash flows

BhRE Premium received 72418 - - 72418

ERBRREMERRY Claims and otfer directly attributable

£Xpenses paid - - (3,188) (3,188)

Reiieen Total cash flows 748 - (3189) 69230

Rt-R=t-ANRRANAR Insurance contract liabifties

as at 31 December 79310 7,938 400 87,648

BiE Note:

a. 7N 2 [ S £ 1 R PR B a. The Group does not disaggregate insurance
B HREEREAM finance expense between profit or loss and other
2EMEZ BT - IR comprehensive income and does not disaggregate
EARESE AR R changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
% B E MR 2 AR between insurance service result and insurance finance
B HEERRBE B X expenses.

2D ©
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(b) FAFEBRBREXN - AFEER (b)
BRA O RMFEEBRRE KN
EEFEXEEFRLH(R
TIAKREREFREMGEE

Roll-forward of the net asset or liability for reinsurance
contracts held, insurance contracts issued and
reinsurance contracts issued showing estimates of the
present value of future cash flows, risk adjustment and

[E S T & A A RIS W e ) CSM
() FIFEEBEREEL (i) Reinsurance contracts held

TREJMEFABRR
BHMBEEFEXAE

The table below presents a roll-forward of the net
asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held,
showing estimates of the present value of future
cash flows, risk adjustment and CSM for reinsurance
held portfolios included in insurance unit.

ARBREBLHMATE B
R AR A B R AR 2R
EREMNRE - BB
BRADRM R -

2024

SRR RS
CSM

AREERE
Rt

FERERN
el E
Estimates of Risk
the present  adjustment for

value of future  non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others Total
iR T T T T Tén
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AFE

’-A-BHERRAK

Reinstrance contract (iabilities)/

(BfE)/4E assets as at 1 January (134,622) 351,089 157,515 387,061 761,043
SAURRRGA2EUHERHEE  Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
HESRBEBNEE Changes that relate to
current service
FEEXREERNAORKNE  CSMrecognised for the
services received - - (23,765) (51,308) (75,073)
HESHEREINERSEE Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired - 13,159 - - 13,159
BHRE Experience adjustment (2,258) - - - (2,258)
(2,259) 13,159 (23,765) (51,308) (64,172)
EARBREBNEE Changes that relate to
future service
BAARINAY Contracts initially recognised
in the period 3 (52,748) 1119 - 51,629 -
ARANRBRRNAT 2D Changes in estimates that
adjust the CSM 320,778 (242,952) 36,340 (114,166) =
PEFEANRERERETES  Changes i estimates that
(o not adjust the CSM b 111,155 298,553 - - 409,708
379,185 56,720 36,340 (62,537) 409,708
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2024

Gl e
CSM
ARBETE FERERN
REME L E AYER
Estimates of Risk
the present  adjustment for
value of future ~ non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others Total
LiFd Thn T T THr THn
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HRLREEBRNES Changes that relate to
past service
HEEERRIANAR Adjustments to incurred claim
component 1,584 5802 - - 7,386
BRREH () /WA ReinsLrance finance (expenses)/
income ¢ (125,730) - 2,894 13,074 (109,762)
BREANTENRREDNFE  Effectof changesinnon-performance
risk of reinsLrers (4,544) - - - (4,544)
(128,690) 5802 2,894 13,074 (106,920)
GAKSRREGAZANER Total changes in the consolidated
288 income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 248,231 75,681 15,469 (100,771) 238,616
RefiE Cash flows
BARBRENHR Premium and similar expenses paid 96,082 - - - 96,082
BREBR Claims recovery received (21,099 - - - (21,099)
Renesy Total cash flows 74,983 - - - 74,983
EENDR Other reclassification 7,047 - - = 7,047
Rt=B=t-AHBRRAH  Reinsurance contract assets
&g as at 31 December 195,645 426,770 172,984 286,290 1,081,689
Bi%E Notes:
a. FRVBREREHN a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(iii) for a detailed breakdown
FHARRAAN - FE2EAMTEE of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)(iii) °
b. i FEBE T 32 3 R A b. Changes in the expected fulfiiment cash flows on
BRI TEH R AR reinsurance contracts held which relate to groups of
EREERB=EARE underlying insurance contracts are recognised in profit
72 AIEERRBR A 4 and loss if the changes in expected fulfilment cash
BRIEBRFTES B flows from the group of underlying insurance contracts
R A XN TEEE 4 issued are also recognised in profit and loss.
=NFER ©
C. REB S BREMBE C. The Group disaggregates net reinsurance finance
WAFREREERE income between profit or loss and other comprehensive

2 EW a2 E D o income. Please refer to Note 2.22()(v) for details.
+F 15 75 2 B B 3 2.22()

V) °
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’-A-BHERRAN

ReinsLirance contract (iabilities)/

i
!

Estimates of

the present

value of future

cash flows

ik ThL

Risk
adjustment for
non-financial
risk

Thr

Fair value
approach

Others

(8F)/E& assets as at 1 January (291,486) 304538 78,200 285,121 316,373
BARBERRSA2ENEZEY  Changesin the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
HEARERENED Changes that relate to
current service
SEESRERANANORKAE  CMrecognised for the
services received - - (26,347) #1,030) (67,383)
SERERREANEREE Risk acfustment recognised for
the risk expired - 13158 - - 13,158
E538E Experience adjustment (14431) - : - (14431
(14.431) 13,158 (26,347) (41,036) (68,656)
HRRBHRRNEE Changes that relate to
future service
BRI H Contracts initially recognised
inthe period a (189,909) 19111 = 174849 4,051
FRANRBRANENED Changes in estimates that
adjust the CSM 178,076 (240,523) 104,601 (42.154) -
TeREANRRUENEES  Changesin estimates that
(o not adust the CSM b 87,107 254,292 - - 341,99
75874 32,880 104,601 132,695 346,050
HREREEBNEE Changes that relate to
past service
HEEERZIANAR Adjustments to incurred claim
component 792 513 - - 1,305
B{RIER (i) /WA Reinsurance finance (expenses)/
income ¢ (64,078) - 1,061 10,281 (52,736)
BRRAGFEOERESNFE  Effectof changesinnon-performance
risk of reinsurers (4,725) - - - (4,725)
(68,011) 53 1,061 10,281 (56,156)
GAbERRGA ZARER Total changes in the consolidated
29i% income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (6,568) 46,551 79,315 101,940 21238
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Estimates of

thepresent ~ adjustment for
value of future non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others
Thr ThL Thr Thr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 00 HK§/000
K3l | Cash flows
BARBRENAY Premium and similar expenses paid 24877 - - - 24,877
BREER Claims recovery received (73960) - - - (73960)
ReRetE Total cash flows 190917 - - - 190917
HEH A8 Other reclassification (27.485) - - - (27.485)
RTZA=Z+-BHBRKAY  Reinsurance contract (labilties)/
(BfE)/&& assets as at 31 December (134622 351,089 157515 37,061 761083
B E Notes:
a. FRVREREHNN a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(iii) for a detailed breakdown
SRR - F2 MM of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)(iii) °
b. HMEBMEERRE b. Changes in the expected fulfilment cash flows on
4RI B TEHI B 49 3R reinsurance contracts held which relate to groups of

B ERNBE A
R RIEARRRA L
ARIEBENMEA B
RRAEONTEBRRED

& RNEE K BRE VB G,
WAFERIBSERE
thEm 2 BDHF o
B2 B E2.220)

V) °

underlying insurance contracts are recognised in profit
and loss if the changes in expected fulfilment cash
flows from the group of underlying insurance contracts
issued are also recognised in profit and loss.

The Group disaggregates net reinsurance finance
income between profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Please refer to Note 2.22(i)(v) for details.
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iy FEERBREH — & (i) Insurance contracts issued — general insurance
R

TREJMBEZRRA
HWMBEEFERABF
BEY ERBETIARAR
RenEREMMGE -

The table below presents a roll-forward of the net
asset or liability for insurance contracts issued,
showing estimates of the present value of future
cash flows, risk adjustment and CSM.

2 58 2E B & #0 AR 75 W

Zs o
g

’-A-BfRBANAE

Insurance contract liabilities

AREERE
Ritfst

Estimates of
the present
value of future
cash flows
TER
HK$'000

FERERN
BA%

Risk
adjustment for
non-financial
risk

T
HK$'000

2024

ARRBRE
CSM

ATEL

Fair value
approach
TR
HK$'000

Others
TiEn
HKS$'000

Total
-7
HKS'000

asat 1 January 310,015 1,279,262 1,109,769 2,292,922 4,991,968
SAURRRGA2EUHERSEY  Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
EOREEENEE Changes that relate to
current service
SARERBREINEORENE  CMrecognised for the
services provided - - (236,495) (441,198) (677,693)
SERAREREINEREE Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired - 19,065 - - 19,065
BHRE Experience adjustments 46,750 - - - 46,750
46,750 19,065 (236,495) (441,198) (611,878)
EARBREBNEE Changes that relate to
future service
AN R D Contracts iniially recognised
inthe period (628,784) 36,801 - 612,909 20,926
EECrliv et Changes in estimates that
adjust the CSM 114,206 56,003 (11,080) (159,129) -
TeRBANRBUANEES  Changesin estimates that
o not adust the CSM 1,271,506 (33,659) - - 1,237,847
756,928 59,145 (11,080) 453,780 1,258,773
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2024

ARENE
(2}
ARBERE  FERERY
REMET BRA% AVEE
Estimates of Risk
the present  adjustment for
value of future  non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others Total
i Thn T T ThT Thn
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
RBCREERNEE Changes that relate to
past service
SEEERZHARELOEE  Adustmentstoliabiities for
incurred claims 2,031 21,374 - - 23,405
RERELE Insurance service result 805,709 99,584 (247,575) 12,582 670,300
R (RA) /B Insurance finance income)/
eXpenses b (321,261) - 20,357 91,550 (209,354)
GRNGRRGAZENGR Total changes in the consolidated
9% income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 484,448 99,584 (227,218) 104,132 460,946
RefiE Cash flows
BhRE Premium received 934,886 - - - 934,886
BN RERAMAY (BERE Claims and other expenses
BARREES) paid (inclucing investment
components and premium
refunds) (106,370) - - - (106,370)
RREERSTE Insrance acquisition cash flows ¢ (2712,291) - - - (2712.291)
Reiieen Total cash flows 556,225 - - - 556,225
HENDR Other reclassification d 8,053 - - - 8,053
Rt=B=t-AHRREH Insurance contract liabilities
& as at 31 December 1,358,741 1,378,846 882,551 2,397,054 6,017,192
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BT -

BHMBERS N
FAERRAE - 2R
28.1(c)(i) »

AN 55 B S AR B B
BXHARERR R
Hofth 2 s 2 A
BRI REORE - ARE
I £ 3 JF & B B Y
e B ) 2B 2 B Y R IR
BR 75 55 48 B AR B B 75
X Z D o

A #1467 R A B8 48 5
B NHRBRBEER
EREBRABEHR TR
BRE -

H A B D HRERR
ERNBEANRESR
EFEENETER
ERRBEAZHHMN
LR A A B 7 R
HETHMEEES
B - B BAHETS
R 3R A A B A
B mRIAB AT
FEREE o
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Notes:

Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(i) for a detailed breakdown
of initially recognised contracts.

The Group made an accounting policy choice to
disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
for non-financial risk between insurance service result
and insurance finance expenses.

Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
for remaining coverage.

Other reclassification relates to where the accounting
treatment of some overheads included with the cash
flows within the boundary of an insurance contract are
grouped under other financial statement line items in
the statement of financial position. A reclassification
is made with a corresponding adjustment to such
other financial statement line items in the statement of
financial position.



R-A-BHREAH

InsLrance contract (assets)/liabilities

Estimates of

the present

value of future

cash flows

i BT
Notes HKS'000

adjustment for
non-financial
risk

?

Fair value
approach
Tin

(BE)/8% asat1January (77,265) 991,310 1,348,995 143416 3,676,456
GENERRES2EYERED Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
ERREABNED Changes that relate to
current service
PFREREEINADREAE  CSMrecognised for the
Services provided - - (263488) (320802 (584,290)
FEOBEREINEREE Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired - 25560 - - 25,50
FEEE Experience adjustments (14219 - - - (14,219)
(14219 25,560 (263,488) (320802 (572,949)
HARBHEBHED Changes that relate to
future service
BANRERNAY Contracts nitally recognised
nthe period a (1,168,588) 51836 = 1123693 691
BELRBRRNETED Changes in estimates that
adjust the CSM (85,267) 29418 6,037 19812 -
MERERNRBREN G 2D Changes in estimates that
do not adjust the CSM 631828 172,284 - - 804,112
(592,027) 263538 6,037 1,143,505 811,003
RECREEBNEE Changes that relate to
past service
FAEERRH AR RS Adjustments to iabites for
incurred claims 8357 8,854 - - 171
RERELE Insurance service result (597,8%9) 287952 (257,451) 822,703 255315
(RIRETS (W) /B Insurance finance (income)/expenses b (46,579) - 18205 56,803 28,449
GalRRREAREhER Total changes in the consolidated
2988 income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprenensive income (644,468) 287952 (239,206) 879,506 283764
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A=k
Estimates of Risk
the present adjustment for
value of future non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others
iF3 T Thr
Notes HKS'000
BenE Cash flows
BRE Premium received 1917867 - - - 1917867
BRERREMFER (BERE Cleims and other expenses
B RRERZ) paid (nclucing investment
components and premium
refunds) (59943) = - = (59943
ReBERLT= Insurance acquisttion cash flows c (651,800) - - - (651,800)
RERELE Total cash flows 1,206,124 - - - 1,206,124
AERIR Other reclassification d (174,376) - - - (174,376)
WA= T-BHREAS Inurance contract liabities
af asat 31 December 310,015 1,219,262 1,109,769 2292922 4991968

B3 Notes:

a. FRVBREREHNE a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(i) for a detailed
AR - B2RM breakdown of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)(i) °

b. AN 52 B H A 1R B B b. The Group made an accounting policy
BxHoKREER R choice to disaggregate insurance finance
H A % Yoz 2 i #Y expense between profit or loss and other
BHBRER - AKE comprehensive income. The Group does not
3§ IE & Eb R R A disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
BB AR E R IRR for non-financial risk between insurance
AR 75 E 4R R AR B B 75 service result and insurance finance expenses.
X ZEDHF ©

C. 45 HE R A B 48 B C. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after
BIHHRREBEER the related group is initially recognised are
EREFABEZEHR TR adjusted to the liability for remaining coverage.
BEE-

d. HitEHHHERR d. Other reclassification relates to where the
ANBERNNBE SR accounting treatment of some overheads
EFREENETER included with the cash flows within the
ERWBEEMERK boundary of an insurance contract are
W P A B S 3R R grouped under other financial statement line
HE THEEESR items in the statement of financial position. A
B8 - EN D EAEIG reclassification is made with a corresponding
MRERFPEEEEAM adjustment to such other financial statement
B sR R IEE #ETHE line items in the statement of financial
JEFIEE position.

386 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



(iii)

FIRBRRAEKN — AS

ol

TREJMBHRRA
AMBEEFERBEF
HEY BERETRK
RenEREMNMGKET -
2\ iz 58 BE B & #0 AR 755 W

Zs o
iy

’-A-BHRBANAE

Insurance contract liabilities

(iliy  Insurance contracts issued — life insurance

The table below presents a roll-forward of the net
asset or liability for insurance contracts issued,
showing estimates of the present value of future
cash flows, risk adjustment and CSM.

AREERE
Rttt

Estimates of

the present

value of future

cash flows

i3 TER
Notes HK$'000

FERERN
Risk
adjustment for
non-financial
risk

T
HK$'000

2024

ARRBRE
CSM

AV

Fair value
approach Others
TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

Total
TExn
HKS'000

asat 1 January 14,150,143 146,086 - - 14,296,229
SANRRRGA2EUHERNSD  Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
HEHRBAENED Changes that relate to
current service
FERBRREINERER Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired - (8,102) - - (8,102)
RS Exgerience adjustments (24,498) = = g (24498)
(24,498) (8,102) - - (32,600)
BARBRERNES Changes that relate to
future service
BRERINEH Contracts initally recognised
inthe period 3 1,378,199 59,512 - - 14377111
TEREANRBRRNETES  Changesinestimates that
(o not adjust the CSM (132,006) 16,398 - = (115,608)
1,246,193 75910 - - 1,322,103
RERH£E Insurance service result 1,221,695 67,808 - - 1,289,503
RiEHH Instrance finance expenses b 202,884 - - - 282,384
GARRRREFAZERERS  Total changesinthe consolidated
2915 income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 1,504,579 67,808 - - 1,572,387
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2024

aRRENE
CsM

AREERE  FERERN
RiEff EhEE AYER

Estimates of Risk
the present  adjustment for
value of future  non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others Total
i Thn Thn T Thr TEn
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
RéfE Cash flows
BhRE Premium received 4,259,102 - - - 4,259,102
EREENEST Claims and other expenses paid
(BERESHRREER) (including investment components
and premium refunds) (1,180,048) - - = (1,180,048)
RREEEARS Insurance acquisition cash flows C (113,975) - - - (113,975)
REnEnE Total cash flows 2,965,079 - - - 2,965,079
RtZA=t-RHREBAY Insurance contract liabilities
af as at 31 December 18,619,801 213,894 - - 18,833,695
BisE Notes:
a. FRVBREREHN a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)() for a detailed breakdown
AR - MM of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)) »
b. 7N 5 B {E W A R B B1 b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
BXHoFEERR disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
Hfh % E a2 A or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
SETECRERE - AKE does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
7 4% 145 IF & Bh R B BY for non-financial risk between insurance service result
[ B 3 B 2 B PO R B and insurance finance expenses.
Rk 75 3£ 4& R AR BR BA 75
S 2 B o
C. R R A 48 B C. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
BENHREBESE group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
SMEABEHR TR for remaining coverage.

BAfE -
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Estimates of
the present adjustment for

value of future non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach
i BT Thn
Notes HKS'000
R-F-BHRBANER Insurance contract igbilties
asat1January 11,976,636 120171 - - 12,096,857

SANBEREARERERNEE  Changesin the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

REBREAENED Changes that relate to
current service
SEABEREINERAR Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired = (4,435) - = (4.435)
HEELS Experience adjustments (26:307) - - - (26,307)
(26,307) (4435) - - (30,742)
EAREHAENED Changes that relate to
future service
BANRERNAY Contracts nitially recognised
inthe period a 36,704 16090 - - 52,794
-E LRl e Changes in estimates that
(o not adjust the CSM 155,963 14,260 = = 170223
192,667 30,350 - - 223017
REREEE Insurance service result 166,30 5915 - - 192275
REETHLH Insurance finance expenses b 1,595,112 - - - 1,595,112
FRRGRREARENRRY Total changes in the consolidated
2907 income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprenensive income: 1761472 5915 - - 1,781,387
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Estimates of
the present adjustment for
value of future non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach
Thn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000
g Cash flows
EHRE Premium received 1523810 - - - 1523810
BRBRRAMRR Claims and other expenses paid
(BERESARREER) (inclucing investment components
and premium refunds) (993878) - - - (993878)
RBEERLTE Insurance acquisttion cash flows c (117,947) - - - (117.947)
RERELE Total cash flows 411,985 - - - 111985
WA= T-BORRAN Insurance contract liabities
ffE as &t 31 December 14,150,143 146,086 - - 14296209
Bt Notes:
a. FRVBREREHNT a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(i) for a detailed breakdown
FEARAAE - SE2RKT of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)(i) °
b. 7N 55 B 1 A AR B B b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
BxHoHEER R disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
Hib2E K= 2 Hr or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
BEBUREE - A5 E does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
7 4% 1% I & Bh R BR A9 for non-financial risk between insurance service result
[ B 3 EE 2 B A R B and insurance finance expenses.
Pl 75 25 48 B AR B BA 75
S Z EAHF ©
c. R A T R A B 4 R c. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
BEAHRBERSR group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
EREFBEZH TR for remaining coverage.
BEE-
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AT 25 st 3 8RR
BHMEBEEFEXAE
FE BRBETRRKR
EREREMNMGEF - A
RN E KRG Y

(iv)  Reinsurance contracts issued — life insurance

The table below presents a roll-forward of the net
asset or liability for reinsurance contracts issued,
showing estimates of the present value of future
cash flows, risk adjustment and CSM.

2024

ARREHE  FERERN
Rt BREE  SHREUE
Estimates Risk

of the present  adjustment for
value of future  nonfinancial

cash flows risk CSM Total
(i3 T Ti#n Ti#n TERL
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-A-BHRRANEE Insurance contract liabiiies as at 1 January 86,694 954 - 87,648
GRURRRGARENEREE Changes in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income
REDRBERNED Changes that relate to current service
SR BTRREINEREE Risk adjustment recognised for the risk expired - (24) = (24)
FEELS Experience adjustments 64 - - 64
64 (24) - 40
HARBHABNED Changes that relate to future service
BMRINAY Contracts initally recognised in the period 18,759 1,189 - 19,948
AeRBELNRBRENEHED Changes in estimates that do not ajust the CSM (147) 154 - 7
18,612 1,343 - 19,955
RERELE Insurance service result 18,676 1,319 - 19,995
REEH Insurance finance expenses 3 1,881 - - 1,881
GElBRRGR 2GR Total changes in the consolidated income statement
L% and consolicated statement of comprehensive
income 20,557 1319 - 21,876
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ARELRE  FERERN
REMT BREE  SOREUE
Estimates Risk

of the present  adjustment for
value of future  nonfinancial

cash flows risk CSM Total
i T T T Tén
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RéhE Cash flows

BhiRE Premium received 94,659 - - 94,659

BARRREMES (RERE Claims and other expenses paid (including investment

B5 RRER) compongnts and premium refunds) (9,174) - - (9,174)
FERseR Total cash flows 85,485 - - 85,485
RT=A=t-AfRE Insurance contract liabilities

ANEE as at 31 December 192,736 2,213 - 195,009

B Note:

a. 7R & B 3 £ 5 1R R BE a. The Group does not disaggregate insurance
B R B R EAM finance expense between profit or loss and other
2EKEZEDHF o A comprehensive income. The Group does not
& EI &G IESFR disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment for non-

CEELEE T TS
R 18 FR A5 2 48 5 AR IR
B 2 A -
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R-A-BRRBAN(EE)/8F

Instrance contract (assets)/iabilities as at 1 January

Estimates

of the present
value of future
cash flows
Thr
HKS'000

%

Risk
adjustment for
non-financial

HK$'000

Total
a7
HK$'000

HK$'000

GRRERRARRARERED

RERREARNZS
RERSRRERNERER

Changes in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income

Changes that relate to current service

Risk adjustment recognised for the risk expired

2083

- (1)

R Experience adjustments - - 2,083
2,083 (1) - 2082

AAREHERNED Changes that relate to future service

BRMeRANaH Contracts initally recognised in the period 6,938 862 = 7800

reFEANRB LR Changes in estimates that do not adjust the CSM 54 93 - 117

6,992 955 = 7947

RREREE Insurance srvice result 9075 954 - 10029

BB Insurance finance expenses a 8,389 - = 8389

FRbERIGRZENER Total changes in the consolidated income statement

2918 and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income 17,464 954 = 18418

RefiE Cash flows

BHRE Premium received 7418 - : 7418

B REREMAY (BERE Claims and other expenses paid (including investment

BoRREER) components and premium refunds) (3,189) - - (3,188)
RERELE Totalcash flows 69230 B, B, 9230
RTZA=T-RfRR Insurance contract liabilties

ahafk as et 31 Decermber 86,691 954 - 87,648

Bt Note:

a. 7N 55 B 3 4% S 4R B B a. The Group does not disaggregate insurance
B ERBEREAM finance expense between profit or loss and other
2EREZEDHF o A comprehensive income. The Group does not
SEVEEFESHRA disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment for non-

B B 2 xR B B B Y
R AR 75 3 48 B AR R

B HZ Mo -

financial risk between insurance service result and
insurance finance expenses.
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() HEBRD (c) The components of new business

) FREBREAD 0)

FFARBEMSOFAITE
BREANAR (251
RIMBENBRRAL)
MFEB IO RN T RW

& .

Reinsurance contracts held

The components of new business for reinsurance
contracts held portfolios (all were reinsurance
contracts purchased) included in the insurance
unit is disclosed in the table below:

2024 2023

THExT TF&TT
BREEHNEE Reinsurance contracts assets HK$'000 HK$'000

REBEMARER Estimates of the present value of

(EE future cash inflows 25,405 116,545
REBEMHIRER Estimates of the present value of

flst future cash outflows (78,153) (306,454)
[ Fx 8 K Risk adjustment 1,119 19,111
B KBRS W as CSM 51,629 174,849
FIEFEEBRBREHN Cost of retroactive cover on

EENEHRBERA reinsurance contract assets

held - 4,051
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AR BRRA A

ST AGR B B ALY AT ER
RS OHEBH IR

THRBE

FrE3RRAN

Insurance contracts issued

FERMEH
Non-onerous
contracts
TERL
HK$'000

Insurance contracts issued

The components of new business for insurance
contracts issued included in the insurance unit is
disclosed in the table below:

2024
FiEtan @t
Onerous Non-onerous
contracts contracts
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

Onerous

contracts Total
TR AL
HK$'000 HKS'000

Total
TER
HK$'000

ARBLRE(TaE  Estimates of the present value of
RBEEHSRE)N  future cash outflows, excluding
RiafkE insurance acquisition cash flows 116,062 5,462,083 5,578,145 121423 1,584,877 1,706,300
RREBERSTEMst  Estimates of insurance acquisition
cash flows 257,568 301,104 558,672 664,319 21,906 692,225
KRB ERHBERGE  Estimates of the present value of
future cash outflows 373,630 5,763,187 6,136,817 785,742 1,612,783 2,398,525
FARESRARENGS  Estimates of the present value of
future cash inflows (1,015,838) (4,371,564) (5,387,402) (1,955,040) (1,575,369) (3,530,409
FERERNERAE  Riskadjustment for non-financial risk 29,299 67,014 96,313 45,605 231 6792
aHRE KR CSM 612,909 - 612,909 1123693 - 1123693
BEMAHRMAERE  Losses on onerous contracts at
HER initial recognition - 1,458,637 1,458,637 = 59,735 59,735

A IR o
EWMEBEEANTIEHAR
AEBEYEKE DA
REFAAARERE
B BABETSER
HARH R 2 X3 & BTN
EmATHAAERSER

B%
V=] °

New contracts were issued on market terms.
Onerous contracts were accepted as the Group
did not have an opportunity to reprice them
for the relevant group of policyholders and we
believe that the market has a high development
potential for future renewals and cross selling of
additional products.
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@iy FIRBEBRBREY (i)  Reinsurance contracts issued

2024

FERMAN  BRUGK B BB [
Non-onerous Onerous Non-onerous Onerous

contracts contracts Total contracts contracts
TEn Tan AR AT
MERRBAHL Insurance contracts issued HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FRBESEG (RaE  Estimates of the present value of
RBBERSHRE)N  future cash outflows, excluding

B insurance acquisition cash flows - 114,398 114,398 - 85,351 85,351
RRBERSRER  Estimates of insurance acquisition
cash flows - = = - - _

KBS ERERN G Estimates of the present value of

future cash outflows = 114,398 114,398 = 85,351 85,351
FEELTARENGE  Estimates of the present value of

future cash inflows - (95,639) (95,639) - (718413 (18413)
FEBERDAREE  Riskadustment for non-financial risk - 1,189 1,189 - 862 862

FiEARRMMIEDE  Losses on onerous contracts at
i) 3] initial recognition - 19,948 19,948 - 7,800 7,800
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28.2 SHIRFS W IR 1A IR AR AT

BB R ARREEFABRNE AR
BRERBERTRES

FREBRBAY Reinsurance contracts held
—RRiRE General insurance
FERRBEH Insurance contracts issued
—RiRE General insurance

28.2 CSM recognition in profit or loss

PR1E
Less than

1 year
TR
HK$'000

70,055

633,011

The disclosure of when the CSM is expected to be in profit or
loss in future years is presented below:

2024

1-5% 5-10% 1015 15-20% BiB205 @it
More than

1-5years  5-10years 10-15years 15-20 years 20 years Total

TR TER ThER TER TER TER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

192,682 98,955 33,690 24,529 39,363 459,274

1,734,319 775,342 89,798 18,394 28711 3,279,605

FEABRRAN Reinsurance contracts held
—RiRE General insurance
FEERRAN Insurance contracts issued
—RiRE General insurance

PIME
Less than

1year
TR
HK$'000

66,994

579,844

2023

154 5106 10-15%F 15-20F RBNE
More than
1-5 years 5-10years  10-15years  15-20years 20 years Total
TAT TAT THT TAT AT b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

197,140 123147 53,003 38,341 65,951 544,576

1,676,870 895,958 159,957 34,26 5,216 3,402,691

AEBEFEHROFARRAALON
BRERA RGNS - AAEEM
RENBRAHTHRERELRAR -

AT BRER A NER S QO RFK
SN ERREEARBERRAN—
B o

The Group expects to recognise the CSM in profit or loss
for existing contracts within 60 years, which represents the
longest coverage period for the contracts in force issued by
the Group.

The expected timeline for the CSM recognition for

reinsurance contracts held is in line with insurance contracts
issued.
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29. BEITERBES

29. Debt securities issued

2024

TR
HK$'000

2023
T
HK$'000

TR0 88 B A 51l R 9 (B 7S 5% 35 Debt securities carried at amortised
cost
R HIE S MTN 5,799,769 11,548,631
TR SHAR ARG IR AV ETS 554258  Total debt securities carried at amortised
cost 5,799,769 11,548,631
EEAMWTERLURSHRY T Debt securities designated as hedged
WEBR S items under cash flow hedge
R HIE S MTN - 2,741,419
eEAYRIEE W AR &A% Total debt securities designated as hedged
WETE BB items under cash flow hedge = 2,741,419
EEBHHIER WL AFESHF Debt securities designated as hedged
W EH# 5 items under fair value hedge
R ER(E 5 MTN 142,499,867 147,428,447
EEAEDRIE B WA AT EE ) Total debt securities designated as hedged
R G157 5 1B items under fair value hedge 142,499,867 147,428,447
BEITERESER Total debt securities issued 148,299,636 161,718,497

ERTEFRESNESHANT

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

2024 2023

THET TFETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

n—H—H As at 1 January 163,787,833 134,993,402
1T Issuance 103,507,595 98,329,402
W fEE Less: redemption (117,658,640) (69,456,323)
AN b, = KR Exchange difference 256,615 (78,648)
HEEEERE Total nominal value 149,893,403 163,787,833
REHITEE S Unamortised portion of discount (169,545) (114,053)
NFEFEE Fair value adjustment (1,424,222) (1,955,283)
R+=H=+—H As at 31 December 148,299,636 161,718,497
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30.

REFZBRITNES

Notes issued during the year comprise:

RHAE S MTN
BETLEAEE Amount issued at nominal value 103,507,595 98,329,402
2 UELAE Consideration received 103,114,200 98,146,625

PIAEBITHEBIEF DB A SEERA
B MBOZEEBIFEERT R
BEESMEBRERE -

(&N

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
working capital and refinancing.

30. Share capital

2024

2023
TAT
HK$'000

THxT
HK$'000

BETRER Issued and fully paid

20 1B A% E Ak 2 billion ordinary shares 26,500,000 14,500,000

AR A Eh T The movement in share capital is summarised as follows:
2024 2023
F#ET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R—A—8 As at 1 January 14,500,000 12,000,000
EE Capital injection 12,000,000 2,500,000
R+=A=+—H As at 31 December 26,500,000 14,500,000
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31. HAMEALETIIMNEXRRS

@)

ARBRIREZEHEA
EESAE2EHEE - FA

B B B AR S
P R H

BREALIT BN EAR SN

T~

HRFERREEEEERNIRSE
ETHIEIA

(i)

(iif)

REBRAFERERHTEF
REEZFEATIRBEHOTE R
BERERBEREESE RSN
BRBRE2008BT(ZTE=_=
F1608BT)

REBRABBEE26/08

BIL(ZEZ=F : 24608 7%
TIEBRE (FAREESE

BEAEINER

CREEEEFRINEE DM
KRR AR B IRE B 80018
T RZEZWMF+=A
=+t —AUWEREERERE
AAMB(ZEZ=F: mEY
)

B

CREEEEFRINEESE
BABRAARRREABINE S
AHEEEIDERBTIEARE
(FFERABIR=ZZ=—F<A
Z+NB ZB=-=—FXA
—t+ttBR-_ZE-=FXA
Zt+tEHmMBEBEERANEE
BEBTLE RERNSER
2008 THIR) - EMER
ERARNBIMESFES QA
BINEE - MARREEEH
MEBES R EAREEIN
BEoERERA - BWNERR
BESFLARNERNE DR
B—EKFE &

RZZE-_WFE+=A+~8"
CREEEEFRINEE S M
ZAN/N T&Aﬁimm,%mﬁ
BERA BEWMERENAR
EIRERBR A RMEE am
ERRFEBFRE R A EN
BENEBR—EKF -

31. Material related party transactions

@)

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries are wholly
owned by the Government for the account of the Exchange
Fund. During the year, the Group entered into or maintained
material transactions with the related parties as follows:

Transactions with the HKMA, a Government-related entity,
included the following:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

the Group paid a total fee amount of HK$2.0 million for
the year (2023: HK$1.6 million) to the HKMA in respect
of custodian and clearing agent services from the
Central Moneymarkets Unit;

the Group incurred a secondment fee of HK$26.7
million for the year (2023: HK$24.6 million) in respect of
secondees from the HKMA;

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
provided a revolving credit facility of HK$80 billion to
the Company, and there was no outstanding balance
and accrued interest as at 31 December 2024 (2023 nil
for both);

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
maintained its commitment to inject additional funds
up to HK$12.5 billion in aggregate (reduced from
the original amount of HK$20 billion after taking into
account the HK$2.5 billion capital injection each into
the HKMCA on 28 June 2021, 27 June 2022 and 27 June
2023 respectively) into the Company as equity for the
sole purpose of financing the Company’s additional
capital injection into the HKMCA and the Company
maintained its commitment to inject such additional
funds into the HKMCA as equity for the sole purpose of
maintaining the HKMCA’s margin of solvency above a
certain level; and

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
injected HK$12.0 billion capital into the Company on
16 December 2024, as equity for the sole purpose
of financing the Company’s capital injection into the
HKMCI as equity for the sole purpose of maintaining
the HKMCI's margin of solvency above a certain level.
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HERFNZSBRETIIEEA

0]

(iii)

mERRQBRMNAK - LK
MBS AT/ NEREERT S
TEERER  ABFRER
SE2900FETHREEE
RAGE(BEAARBH N
TEREERFTETRENE D
BEFRERWER)  FIERHM
33 RED AR/ NERERE
R Bl BEEETE - BUTF
A 4% 78 R [ 22 ) 75 18 1.660 &
BIL(ZZEZ=F : 1616188
7)) EREBERRARAFE
MTTHFX

ANRREBAFRI R B
It - AR B S AGE R
BEERTI THEREES
HEEGoBER/NEREER
SFEITHEN  ARNERIE
BREARERTER - F1B
BIEE19

AR EB NG B &
It RARERAERED A
ERERBZIEE THE
BEREEEE B ERERSE
B ETHER  HBRFSE
ZERBARMEREEER K
T 9 48 4 (R 7 55 R 9 (B
TC - B RKE19 . KB EE
ERE » BUT MR FRE A A
HEOEBT(ZE=_=F:
10838 L)  EARBREREA
AIAFENITHRAY

Transactions with the Government included the following:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

the HKMCI provided 80%, 90% and 100% SFGS loan
guarantees with a total guarantee commitment up
to HK$290 billion reimbursable by the Government
(including guarantees on 100% SFGS loans acquired
by the Company), see Note 33 for details. With respect
to the day-to-day operation of the 100% SFGS, the
Government reimbursed HK$166.0 million (2023:
HK$161.6 million) to the HKMCI for the administrative
expenses incurred by the HKMCI for the year;

the Company entered into an agreement with the
Government, pursuant to which the Company
maintained its commitment to purchase from SFGS
lenders all 100% SFGS loans that are fully guaranteed
by the Government via the HKMCI, see Note 19 for
details;

the Company entered into an agreement with the
Government, pursuant to which the Company
maintained its commitment to purchase from DLGS
lenders all DLGS loans that are fully guaranteed by
the Government via the HKMCI with a total guarantee
commitment up to HK$9.1 billion reimbursable by the
Government, see Note 19 for details. With respect to
the day-to-day operation, the Government reimbursed
HK$0.4 million (2023: HK$0.1 million) to the HKMCI for
the administrative expenses incurred by the HKMCI for
the year;
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(iv) ARRRIZFERE DB RBERAF
RRIHE  RIBEWE - ARA
A2 EEAREE R E
MRAREBEEMEER - M
BRI ARARREEHES
ABB B P AR R KA 8
MER - RERBRARAAR
BERERMEANTEE NG
g - R IEBFKRIIAREER
BEARBE R B &R AL
R ZBNRFHIEECHE
ARFHHE - D183
BIL(ZTZ=F 1 147687
TT) o FA - BBRBARCHE
BRZERBASEERE
MEEA - BERRI0EET

ZEZ=F:9008 &) °
BEARFBE R B ERELH
R\ e % 10 3 R R T AECHE %

vy RZE-_NF+RA=+-—
B ARRREERB AR
B1RI78EBT(ZE=_=F:
949N EAB L) BB BT EFH
ERE - HF R AB34708 %
T(ZE-=%:21108 %
JL) °

AR B AN A A EL B A RIER AR
EERERY  AEBREATEE
EE - 2 REBRBR AR EENR
IR B METEIMERERE - ARFE
RZEREBIERRBEAZHERF]
BR - EREERRARIZZETHE
RBRIEE R BITHERS - BL2ERE
BEE AR BRRIGEIRBIREN
RREERHRREREA » AAF
ERZRBAIEEBHERREREA
ERXEAEHERRIER - e
AFEMENER

the Company and the HKMCI entered into an
agreement with the Government, pursuant to which
the Company committed to purchase all loans under
the PLGS from the participating Authorized Institutions
(Als) and the Government provided full funding to the
Company for the purchase of all PLGS loans. The HKMCI
is responsible for the operation and administration
of the PLGS. With respect to the advance payment
received from the Government to purchase loans
under the PLGS, a portion of such advance funding
was deposited with Als with an outstanding balance
of HK$189.3 million (2023: HK$147.6 million). The
HKMCI was appointed by the Government to act as the
administrator for the PLGS for a fee of HK$9.0 million
(2023: HK$9.0 million) for the year. Risks and rewards
arising from the PLGS loans rest with the Government;
and

the Company and the HKMCI held investment of
HK$1,297.8 million (2023: HK$949.1 million) in the Hong
Kong Government Bonds as at 31 December 2024
and the interest thereon was HK$34.7 million (2023:
HK$21.1 million).

The Company provided corporate support services to its
subsidiaries during the year for fees on an arm'’s length basis.
The Company had issued a parental guarantee in favour of
the participating lenders for the HKMCI's due performance
of its obligations under the insurance programmes and
schemes operated by the HKMCI. The Company had issued
a parental guarantee in favour of ceding partner insurers and
policyholders under the respective reinsurance agreements
or policies of the HKMCA to facilitate the development of the
local annuities market.
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FESHERA B RAE A TE SR ¢ Balances of amounts due to relevant related parties are as
follows:

HEES B
The Exchange Fund The Government

2024 2023 2024 2023
T FHT Ti#gx TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HNEE S F(HEE22) Placements with the Exchange Fund

(Note 22) 49,244,684 34,070,393 - =
EmBE (P27 %33)  Other liabilities (Notes 27 and 33) - - 894,445 1,901,803
(b) EEEEEAS (b) Key management personnel
FTEFTEEBABAEENEEEED Key management personnel are those persons having
REBEXRE - EBERESAEREL authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
WAL BEEERSAEEAS - controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,

including directors and senior officers.

FN - ETEZEBEEAENTMELE Compensation of the key management personnel for the
year comprised:

e MEME RS EF Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 29,658 28,812
BERR1Z A2 T Post-employment benefits 2,573 2,537

32,231 31,349
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32.

33.

xiE
(a) &=&E

EHERETA

Authorised and contracted for

32. Commitments

(a) Capital
2024 2023
FATT
HK$'000

THxT
HK$'000

29,394 44,362

Bt EAAYEE B REEEERE R
SR -

(b) EAthikiE

RRAERAER

Undrawn loan commitments

The above capital commitments mainly relate to
commitments to purchase computer equipment and
software.

(b) Other commitments
2024 2023
FETT
HK$'000

TR
HK$'000

476,663 1,013,479

/R B R R ET S T B4 Bl
BRI

AEERRENTNEREERE TR
NERENRERREOERERE SRR
BENEREKRKT  ARRADBEHR/ B
BERRBMBGHER - BBTRE
RESERESE 290088 T °

BRANKRNAKERER  AFREERE
REMABIHERE  B$ELXZEAR
AR EREN RERRAS - A%
KA R R T BT » ATRERE 2R B T
RAEMBRZIRRER  BFSEAE
AR AEE B H IE MM EEL AER
FEERX HAKENGRAKERIE
BAEREANBARZORELREZE -
ERAEBERERRBTEEZTER
AEBERAE BILE MO R RN 5158
B o B - 5% 5 2 an HO B B A HE DR
BINAEBEEERBERINEAR

B BRI EREERAEINESF
15 B2HEMEE -

33. Special concessionary measures under the SME

Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Group provided loan guarantee products with 80% and 90%
guarantee coverage under the existing SFGS at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate, together with guarantee for 100% SFGS loans
acquired for a total guarantee commitment up to HK$290 billion
reimbursable by the Government.

Regarding the 80% and 90% guarantee products, all guarantee
fees collected under the special loan guarantee products are set
aside to meet the relevant default claims and related out-of-pocket
expenses. The remaining balance of the guarantee fees, if any, will
be returned to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the Government.
The Group is responsible for the operation of the product and
the applicable day-to-day operating costs. There is no impact on
the consolidated income statement of the Group in respect of
guarantee fee revenue and default claims. Given that the Group
operates only these products for the Government, the Group
considers the risk and rewards associated with this product rest
with the Government. Hence, the risk-in-force for these products
has not been included as the Group'’s off-balance sheet exposures.

For the 100% SFGS, please refer to Note 19 for more details.
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34.

SLEREENRBEGIEEE 34. Involvement with unconsolidated structured

entities
REEEERGEAIRESEERANER The Group acts as a sponsor and collateral manager to structured
EENRBARBHAREEA - FTEREM entities that the Group does not consolidate but in which it holds
ERERNEIRME an interest. The following table describes the type and nature of

the structured entities:

2024 2023
FRERERR HEREMN rEEfREES TET FHT
Type of structured entities  Nature and purpose Interest held by the Group HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEFEHER RESEREBREZH TS REZRABTHEER 640,826 329,703
Securitisation vehlcle for To develop an infrastructure Investment in notes issued by
infrastructure loans financing securitisation the vehicle
platform in Hong Kong REAER 23,304 19,809

Sponsor loan

FEUA Interest income 33,286 15,268
RBEAERHF EBA Interest income on sponsor loan 2,008 870
ERREREE Collateral management fee 7,043 1,092
BEAEERBARENERELSNIRE S The maximum exposure to 10ss is the carrying amount of the
B o investment in the structured entity.
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35. ANTIHMBIRA TR HEHEE 35. Statement of financial position and reserve
£J)] movement of the Company

BANARKAFTR_-_FT_ME+_A
=+—BHHBRAR

35.1 Statement of financial position of the Company as at
31 December 2024

2024 2023
FEx T
HK$'000 HK$'000
&E ASSETS
BehEHEs Cash and short-term funds 46,314,950 46,876,199
U ) B R B FR Interest and remittance receivables 3,161,265 3,322,402
TESBMIE Derivative financial instruments 664,618 828,542
B RHE 5 BEROER Loans with 100% guarantee from the
Government 82,782,698 97,362,356
ERHEAFE Loan portfolio, net 9,307,080 9,337,433
BHIEE Investment securities:
— URFEELEA — at fair value through other
Hih 2wz comprehensive income 3,721,821 2,509,537
— AATEE G ABR — at fair value through profit or
loss 9,774 9,870
— IREE SRR ARSI R — at amortised cost 13,337,065 12,176,127
B ARIEE Interests in subsidiaries 32,981,543 21,089,334
AR - ke R EMEE Prepayments, deposits and other
assets 331,170 1,552,692
EERIBEE Deferred tax assets 4,681 17
EEEE Fixed assets 229,443 256,030
BEHAE Total assets 192,846,108 195,320,539
=1 LIABILITIES
FERF) S Interest payable 3,343,451 3,684,484
L IIEENGIES Placements by subsidiary 561,000 50,000
FERIIRIE « EETRAS R Accounts payable, accrued expenses
HibBE and other liabilities 3,356,023 3,683,136
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,740,649 2,825,522
EHHIBEAE Current tax liabilities 165,598 98,666
BEITEBES Debt securities issued 148,299,636 161,718,497
BERE Total liabilities 157,466,357 172,060,305
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2024 2023

TERT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
& EQUITY
BatEE ARMHIRA R Capital and reserves attributable
to the equity holder:
%N Share capital 26,500,000 14,500,000
R & A Retained profits 35.2 8,857,536 8,733,357
N ERHE Fair value reserve 35.2 23,518 8,158
Eapat= Hedging reserve 35.2 (1,303) 18,719
A Total equity 35,379,751 23,260,234
BERESAE Total liabilities and equity 192,846,108 195,320,539
EERER _ZE-_AFHA_-_1+/~H Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
oA R FERETIT o on 26 May 2025.
REX YUE Wai Man, Eddie fif1 52 38 POU Hak Wan
BlFEFEHNTESE Deputy Chairman and HITEEFIAL Executive Director and
Executive Director Chief Executive Officer
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35.2 R ATIWIHEE 35.2 Reserves of the Company

RERF  ATERE Eapale i ot
Retained  Fair value Hedging

profits reserve reserve Total
FHET THET TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZZE-=F—HF—H#&#% Balanceasat 1January 2023 8,734,079 (1,017) 138,966 8,872,028
AEEER Loss for the year (722) - - 722)
ﬁ’rﬂ’ﬁ@ EB),/ e Other comprehensive (loss)/income
NEES( ARMAE  Change in the fair value of debt securities
W SREREFATEE at FVoCl - 8,698 - 8,698

AATEEEIARMAE  Change in the loss allowance of debt
Hﬁl SR EREFEREE securities at FVOCI

& - 477 = 477
MBS RE R EHa T A Change in the fair value of hedging
NEEEE instruments at cash flow hedge - - (120,247) (120,247)
AEE2E(ERE)/Wzia5E Total comprehensive (loss)/income for
the year (722) 9175 (120,247) (111,794)
R=—Z-=#+=-H=+—H Balance as at 31 December 2023
F423 8,733,357 8,158 18,719 8,760,234
AEF R Profit for the year 124,179 - = 124,179
Hmw %/ (58) Other comprehensive income/(10ss)
AFHEE ftﬁr)\ﬁ f2E  Change in the fair value of
llﬁzmwi &L NG debt securities at FVOCI - 15,213 = 15,213

ARAEESPEFARMRE  Change in the loss allowance of
Hﬁl M ERESEBREE debt securities at FVOC

£ - 147 - 147
MR SRR TR Change in the fair value of hedging
ATEES instruments at cash flow hedge - - (20,022) (20,022)

AEE2EN/(FR)®% Total comprehensive income/(l0ss)
for the year 124,179 15,360 (20,022) 119,517

R-Z-@m&+=-A=+—H Balance as at 31 December 2024
F93 8,857,536 23,518 (1,303) 8,879,751
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36. EENX S - RHMEHDH 36,

37.

38.

EXFIERAR

BRPMEEST AT EEE SN - R R F AEM
KE - AFEASBEAKEES—T
HARBEBBEEZR AFANBRESF
MATEABEER(REARIKRIDE
B)EETAEERIMEEANEHENE
AR5 RHMEL -

EERBEREMESRE

RZE-_RE-_A_1+ME  ¢@pEEHE
BFRBINEESHARFFEAEES0EE
TAEBRA - BERNELSEMARRAEE
FELRNAMEINEE  BHNERRIFES
FELRRINEMNENBR—EKFE -

BBMBRR

BEERRN _ZE-_AFAA -t BHAABARN
B 7Rk o

37.

38.

Directors” material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

Apart from those disclosed in Note 31, there was no other
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to
the Company’s business, to which any member of the Group was
a party, and in which any person who was a Director at any time
during the year or a connected entity (as defined in the Companies
Ordinance) of any such person had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Events after balance sheet date

On 24 February 2025, the Monetary Authority through the
Exchange Fund injected capital of HK$5 billion into the Company
as equity for the sole purpose of financing the Company’s
additional capital injection into the HKMCA for the sole purpose of
maintaining the HKMCA's margin of solvency above a certain level.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
on 26 May 2025.
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